
 
 

 
    
 
 
 
 1.    Call to Order 6:30 p.m. 
  
 2. Moment of Silence 
 
 3.     Be Our Guest 
 
 4. Celebrations 
 
 5.     Superintendent’s Update 
 
 6. Agenda Review and Approval 
 
 7. General Public Comment 
 
 8.    Board of Education Meeting Minutes 
 
 9.    Consent Agenda 

a. Sale of Morris Street Facility 
b. Child Nutrition Services – Funding for Equipment Upgrades 

   
10. Reports of the Committees 
 I.   Support Services Committee 

a.  Professional Learning Communities Early-Release 2014-2015 
 

  II.   Administrative Services Committee 
a.  2012-2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
b. Initial Budget Resolution (2013-2014) 
c.   Teacher Tenure and Contract Process 
d. Teacher Tenure – Board Resolution 

 
11.    Closed Session  

• To consider personnel matters and to prevent the disclosure of confidential personnel 
records pursuant to 143-318.11(a)(1), (6) and 115C-319. 

• To consult with the board attorney to preserve the attorney-client privilege as provided in 
NCGS 318.11(a)(3). 

 
12.  Adjournment 

 
A G E N D A 

 
Durham Public Schools Board of Education 

Monthly Meeting 
December 19, 2013 

Fuller Administration Building 
511 Cleveland Street, Durham, NC 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Mission Statement 
In collaboration with our community and parents, the mission of Durham Public Schools is to provide all students 
with an outstanding education that motivates them to reach their full potential and enables them to discover their 

interests and talents, pursue their goals and dreams, and succeed in college, in the workforce and as engaged citizens. 
 

 



                                                                   Date: December 19, 2013 

Durham Public Schools 
Board of Education 

PRECIS 

Agenda Item:   Be Our Guest 
 

Staff Liaison Present: Chrissy Pearson   Phone #   560-9112 
      

 

 
Main Points: 
 
The board welcomes the parents/guardians from the following schools:  
 

• Sandy Ridge  
• Powe  
• Shepard  
• Eno Valley  
• Hillside  
• City of Medicine Academy  

 
 
Fiscal Implications:  N/A 
 
 
Strategic Plan Alignment: 

II.2   DPS will strengthen internal and external communication practices as measured by public 
perception and employee satisfaction.  
 
 
Purpose    

Information    Discussion    Action    Consent    

Reviewed by:  Finance __________      Attorney __________ 

 
 



                                                                       Date:  December 19, 2013 

Durham Public Schools 
   Board of Education 

PRECIS 
 
Agenda Item:  Celebrations 

 
Staff Liaison Present:  Regina Nickson    Phone # 560-2082 
     

 

Main Points: 
 
Duke University’s DPS Student of the Month – This program spotlights students who distinguish 
themselves with character and integrity. Tyler Booker is the December Student of the Month for City 
of Medicine High School. (Celebration moved to January due to unavailability of school staff and 
SOTM) 
 
Student Recognition 
 
Riverside High School – On October 19, a team of Riverside High School Engineers competed in the 
3rd Annual Creative Food Drive held at the American Tobacco Campus in Durham. The students 
planned and designed their 6x6x6 foot structure. The students completed test builds of their structure 
and prepared to compete against professional engineering, architectural and design firms at the 
Creative Food Drive. The students, in conjunction with the National Technical Honor Society, 
collected the needed non-perishable food items to build their structure.  The team donated more than 
740 nonperishable food items through their participation in the event, most of which were used in the 
actual construction of their "Oceanside" display. All the food collected helped support the Food Bank 
of Central & Eastern NC. 
 
NC State Fair Art Show Winners-  Durham Public Schools is proud to honor students from George 
Watts Elementary School  who were the NC State Fair First Place Art winners. 
 
NC Honors Chrous – Durham Public Schools had a number of students selected for the North 
Carolina Honors Chorus. NC Honors Chorus has three choirs made up of the best singers from across 
the state at the elementary, middle, and high school levels. They will perform a holiday selection. 
 
International “Drawing for Peace” contest- Durham Public School’s Club Blvd. had the 1st Place 
winner in the 10 year old division in the international “ Drawing for Peace” contest for the Mahatma 
Gandhi Center for Peace. 
 
Southern School of Energy and Sustaniablity- This fall, the Southern School of Energy and 
Sustainability’s CADA classes and Habitat for Humanity of Durham have worked in partnership to 
produce 150 birdhouse kits that Habitat will be using to raise awareness and resources to support our 
affordable housing mission. 
 
 
 



                                                                       Date:  December 19, 2013 

Durham Public Schools 
   Board of Education 

PRECIS 
Community Partners – Celebrating community partners who provide support to our students and 
school improvement efforts. 
 
Judge Webster- CourtCares, an initiative by Judge Joe L. Webster and staff of the United States 
District Court for the Middle District of North Carolina in Durham, was launched on April 11, 2013 to 
reach out to students in the Durham Public Schools. Middle school students are introduced to the 
federal court system, encouraged to stay on the right side of the law, and exposed to life-long strategies 
for leading successful and healthy lives. During the visit, students participated in a brief mock criminal 
trial, conducted by Judge Webster and his staff, followed by a tour of the judicial chambers, lock-up 
facility, and an informal question and answer period.  
 
Triangle E-Cycle – Triangle E-cycling is a triple bottom line business providing STEM-based 
vocational education for Durham Public School students through the collecting, refurbishing, and 
recycling of electronics. The mission is to provide internships to educate and mentor high school 
students, raise awareness about the environmental and humanitarian threats created by ewaste, protect 
our environment, and give back to our community. In addition to offering internships and educational 
opportunities for DPS students, Triangle E-Cycle donates 10% of their profits to Durham Public 
Schools. 
 
Strategic Plan Alignment:  Goal II.2 DPS will strengthen internal and external communications 
practices as measured by public perception and employee satisfaction.  

 

Purpose    

Information   Discussion    Action    Consent    

Reviewed by:  Finance __________      Attorney __________ 

 
 



                                                                      Date:   December 19, 2013 

Durham Public Schools 
Board of Education 

PRECIS 

Agenda Item:   Board of Education Meeting Minutes 
 

Staff Liaison Present:       Phone #  
      

 

 
Main Points: 
 

• Presented for approval:  
 

o November 21, 2013 - Regular Meeting – Open and Closed Sessions 
o November 25, 2013 – Special Meeting – Open Session 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Fiscal Implications: 
 
N/A 
 
Strategic Plan Alignment: 

 
 
 
 
 
Purpose    

Information    Discussion    Action    Consent    

Reviewed by:  Finance __________      Attorney __________ 

 
 



 

MINUTES 
DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
NOVEMBER 21, 2013 

 
The Durham Public Schools Board of Education held its regular monthly meeting November 21, 
2013, at 6:33 p.m. in the Fuller Administration Building, 511 Cleveland Street, Durham, North 
Carolina.   
 
Board Members present: 
Heidi Carter, Chair; Minnie Forte-Brown, Vice Chair; Natalie Beyer; Pastor Fredrick Davis; 
Nancy Cox; Omega Curtis Parker and Leigh Bordley were present.   
 
Administration present:   
Dr. Eric J. Becoats, Superintendent; and Dr. Stacey Wilson-Norman, Deputy Superintendent of 
Academic Services; Hugh Osteen, Deputy Superintendent of Operational Services; Dr. Tina 
Hester, Chief Human Resource Officer; and Ms. Chrissy Pearson, Chief Communications 
Officer were present. 
 
Attorney present: Ken Soo  
 
Call to Order 
Chair Carter called the meeting to order and presided over a moment of silence. 
 
Be Our Guest 
Leigh Bordley shared comments and thanked the Northern High School Culinary students for the 
meal during Be Our Guests.  She invited the Board Members and Superintendent Becoats to join 
her on the red carpet to pay tribute to the parents/guardians of students at Club Boulevard 
Elementary, Morehead Elementary, Carrington Middle, Lowe’s Grove Middle, Hillside New 
Tech High, Southern School of Engineering, and Performance Learning Center. 
 
Celebrations 
Board Members recognized students, parents, and community partners including:  
 
Duke University’s DPS Student of the Month – This program spotlights students who 
distinguish themselves with character and integrity. Delecia Utley is the November Student of 
the Month for Hillside High School. Dr. Becoats invited Principal Logan to the podium to 
introduce Delecia who was presented a certificate and was asked, along with her mother, to walk 
the red carpet.   
 
Principal for a Day Recognition- Business & community partners had the opportunity to learn 
more about the successes and challenges of a principal and discovered ways their organization 
could get more involved with schools and students. Some of the activities for the day included: 
greeting parents and students, reading the morning announcements, sitting in on classes, 
monitoring and eating lunch in the cafeteria, attending student performances, participating in 
physical education and more. We thank our community and business leaders for their 
participation in the 2013 Principal for a Day! Dr. Becoats introduced the participants and they 
were welcomed to walk the red carpet. 
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School                                              Participant    Organization 
E. K. Powe                   Anish Patel, Head Instructor    Kuman Math                                   
                                                                                                                          &Reading  
                     Center Durham Univ.                                        
Glenn                   Steve Toler, Managing Principal             Steve Toler LLC 
Lakewood Montessori         Katie Wyatt, Executive Director  Kidznotes 
Bethesda                             Athalia Carroll, Marketing Cord.         Texas Roadhouse 
Githens Middle                 Kisha Daniels, Associate Professor NCCU 
CC Spaulding Elementary    Wendy Jacobs, Co. Commissioner  Durham County   
Neal Middle School                    Leslie Winner, Executive Director  Z. Smith Reynolds                          
                                                                                                                        Foundation 
Jordan High School                Kelly Witter Leovic, Dir. of STEM  U.S. Environmental   
                                                                                                                        Protection Agency                                   
Y.E. Smith                             Ellen Reckhow, Co. Commissioner Durham County   
Little River                             Barry Thompson, Associate Pastor   Rose of Sharon  
                                                                                                                        Baptist Church 
Hope Valley                             Nancy Cox, School Board   DPS 
 
Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council- Members of the Superintendent’s Student 
Advisory Council (SSAC) serve as student advisors to the Superintendent’s decision-making 
process.  These students provide feedback and suggestions on major district-wide initiatives and 
programs.  In addition, the SSAC members serve as liaisons between the school administration, 
student peers, and Central Services administrators in an effort to identify, express and resolve 
student concerns.  Dr. Becoats introduced the students, they were welcomed to walk the red 
carpet, and they were given certificates.  Faith Moavenzadeh shared comments and explained 
what this group of students is working on (i.e. a website, book study on student leadership, and a 
service project to help other students) just to name a few. 
 
School     Student Representatives 
Durham School of the Arts  Melissa Carrico 
J.D. Clement Early College  LaPrince-Miller Leigh Smith and Shazeeda Mohamad 
Hillside High School   Imari McLean and Luther Holman, III 
Hillside New Tech   Adrian Dorsey, Kieran Boudreau, and Sierra Dye 
Jordan High School   Margaret Gunn, Taylor Grissom, Summer Hayes and      
                                                            Nikolas McGovern 
Middle College    Faith Moavenzadeh, Brett Ellison, Alexandra Premont, and   
                                                            Gregory Myers 
Northern High School   Mercy Mensah, Eliza Sorrell, and Taylor Walker 
Performance Learning Center  Vanessa Portillo, Ashanti-Nia LeMay, and Beronica                       
                                                             Hernandez 
Riverside High School  Tiara Little, Jasmine Goldston, Luke Berndt, and Steven  
                                                            Powell 
School for Creative Studies  Mattiyah Jones 
Southern School of Energy &             Diamond Nowell, Ariadna Mishel Gomez, and Cynia Black 
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Sustainability     
Southern School of Engineering Zaysha Tyson-Ford, Cristobal Alvarez, and Amari   
                                                            Hamilton 
 
HS Foreign Exchange Program- DPS students and families recognize the value of global 
education. There are 12 foreign exchange students attending DPS this academic year hosted by 
DPS families. This is a record high! The countries represented are Denmark, Mexico, Sweden, 
Spain, Germany, Italy, Norway, Brazil, France, and Thailand.  Ms. Nancy Cox introduced the 
DPS Foreign Exchange Students and they walked the red carpet. 
 
Student    Country   School    
Caroline Rasmussen    Denmark   Northern   
Andrea Equiza Oropesa  Mexico   City of Medicine 
Porntippa Juntarajaturaput  Thailand   Riverside  
Luca D’Ambrosio   Italy    Jordan  
Rafael Faure    France    Jordan  
Elsa Lindgren    Sweden   Jordan  
Lucia Amado Gonzalez  Spain    Hillside  
Nilas Syverud Guibrabdsen  Norway   Hillside 
Marina Miranda Souza  Brazil    DSA 
Josie Tigges    Germany   DSA 
Charissa Srikorakul   Thailand   Southern  
Viktoriyah Lyakh   Ukraine   Southern 
 
Truancy Court Judges- Truancy court judges volunteer to serve the public schools in Durham 
on a regular basis throughout the school year.  During truancy court, judges educate parents and 
students on North Carolina's attendance laws and consequences for violation of those laws.  They 
assist in identifying the underlying cause of truancy, motivate students and parents to prioritize 
education, and facilitate the development of a plan to remedy truancy.  
 
Conflict Resolution Center (CRC) provides oversight to all the truancy courts currently in 
selected elementary and all secondary schools. Dr. Becoats invited Dr. Pitman and Theresa 
McGowan to the podium to recognize DPS Truancy Judges. Also Judge Craig Brown was 
honored for his contributions to the truancy program.  All were welcomed to walk the red carpet. 
 
Community Partners – Celebrating community partners who provide support to our students 
and school improvement efforts. 
 
The Summit Church – The Summit Church has been an outstanding partner with Hillandale 
and Little River Elementary Schools. Their service includes mentoring and serving lunch to the 
teachers and staff. Summit Church makes serving lunch special for teachers and while eating, 
teachers are able to have their cars washed by the volunteers! Summit Church prides itself on 
giving back to the community and working with school principals to address the needed 
resources. Summit Church gives of their time selflessly with a caring attitude that makes a 
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tremendous difference in the schools.  Dr. Becoats introduced and thanked Pastor Ryan Doherty 
of the North Durham Campus, KJ Hill, Director of Urban Development, and Matt Miglarese, 
Pastor of Local Outreach.  They were given a plaque and asked to walk the red carpet. 
 
Superintendent’s Updates 

Superintendent Becoats shared the following updates: 
 
• Reminder of Community Conversations for solutions to discipline and suspensions. 

o Saturday, Dec. 7 at 10:30 a.m. at Staff Development Center 
o Monday, Dec. 9 at 6:30 p.m. at Northern High 
o Tuesday, Dec. 10 at 6:30 p.m. at Southern School of Energy and Sustainability 
o We will provide Spanish-language interpretation. 
o Happy to bring together our community to share ideas as we provide alternatives 

to suspension and work to keep students in school. 
• Thanksgiving next week: 

o Holidays begin for schools on Wednesday; Central Services offices will be closed 
to public. 

o Spend time with your family and best wishes for a safe holiday weekend! 
 

Agenda Review and Approval  
Chair Carter asked for a motion to remove item “g” from the consent agenda to the upcoming 
Administrative Services Committee Meeting.  Vice Chair Forte-Brown made a motion to 
approve the agenda with the exception of item “g”.  Natalie Beyer seconded and the motion 
passed unanimously.  

General Public Comment:   None 
 
Board of Education Meeting Minutes 
Presented for approval: 
 

o October 21, 2013 – Special Meeting – Open and Closed Sessions 
o October 24, 2013 - Regular Meeting – Open and Closed Sessions 
o November 4, 2013 – Special Meeting – Open and Closed Sessions 
o November 12, 2013 – Special Meeting – Open and Closed Sessions 

 
Nancy Cox made a motion to approve the minutes as written.  Vice Chair Forte-Brown seconded 
and the minutes were approved as written by unanimous consent. 
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Consent Agenda 
  
Chair Carter noted that all Consent Agenda items were thoroughly discussed in committee.  She 
asked for a motion to remove item “g” from the consent agenda to an upcoming Administrative 
Services Committee Meeting. 
 

a. Pearsontown Elementary School – Bids for Repair, Roof and Chiller Replacement 
b. Staff Development Center – Bids for Roof and Canopy Replacement 
c. 2007 Bond Project Transfers 
d. Information Technology – Data Center Colocation Agreement 
e. Information Technology – Mobile Unit Cabling Agreement 
f. Carrington Middle School – Cell Tower Lease Extension 
g. Budget Resolution (2013-2014) 

 
Vice Chair Forte-Brown made a motion to approve Consent Agenda with the exception of item 
“g”.  Nancy Cox seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Reports of the Committees 
 

I. Instructional Services Committee 
a. Revised Policy 3200.6 – Credit for High School Courses – Second Reading 

Recommendation: Action 
Public Comment: None 

 
Nancy Cox, Committee Chair, stated the North Carolina State Board of Education voted 
to count all high school level courses with mandatory assessments a minimum of 20% per 
test.  The administration recommended revising this policy to reflect that all final exams 
for high school courses will count 20% toward a student’s final grade.  Vice Chair Forte-
Brown wanted to make sure the community understood that this was a state decision not 
a local choice. 
 
Vice Chair Forte-Brown made a motion to approved Revised Policy 3200.6 – Credit for 
High School Courses.  Leigh Bordley seconded and the motion passed 6 to 1; Natalie 
Beyer opposed. 

 
II. Support Services Committee 

a. Student Support Updates 
Recommendation: Information 
Public Comment: None 

 
Ms. Omega Curtis Parker, Committee Chair, recognized Dr. Debbie Pitman, Assistant 
Superintendent of Student, Family, and Community Services, who introduced the item 
and began the presentation.  She provided an update on the supports provided to students 
and schools including the redesign of character education, programs and strategies in 
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response to suspensions, and alternatives to suspension centers. Dr. Pitman shared in 
Response to Suspensions, the following areas: 

1. Programmatic Support- Programmatic and Intervention 
2. Data Analysis and Progress Monitoring 
3. Professional Development  
4. Alternatives to Suspension Options and Community Partnerships 
5. Community Conversations 

 
Dr. Pitman shared with the Board and invited the community to the upcoming dates for the 
Community Conversations.  Durham Public Schools is committed to working together with 
the community as One Durham to find common solutions that will lead to better outcomes 
for all students. 

 
• Saturday, Dec. 7, 10:30 a.m.-noon, DPS Staff Development Center at 2107 Hillandale Rd. 
• Monday, Dec. 9, 6:30 p.m.-8 p.m., Northern High School at 117 Tom Wilkinson Rd. 
• Tuesday, Dec. 10, 6:30 p.m.-8 p.m., Southern School of Energy and Sustainability at 800 Clayton 

Rd. 
 

     Concerns were expressed regarding how the students are monitored in attendance and suspensions to    
     detect the early warning signs.  At-risk names of students were submitted to Principals at the last   
     Principals’ Academy in order to assist in monitoring these students.  Once a week, System of Care is  
     reviewing cases across the community and a lot is happening in the schools and community to  
     connect and reach more children.  
 
    Superintendent Becoats assured Board Members that he would reach out to Principals to encourage  
    their participation in the Community Conversations so that all voices are heard.  
 
III. Administrative Services Committee 

a. Long Range Facility Plan Update 
Recommendation: Action 
Public Comment: None 

 
Natalie Beyer recognized Mr. Hugh Osteen, Deputy Superintendent of Operations, who introduced the 
item and began the presentation. The Long Range Facility Plan provides an analysis of facility needs 
for the next ten years. Mr. Osteen stated the plan supports the planning and funding decisions 
regarding capital improvements to our district’s facilities. This plan is updated every three to four 
years and can be found on the DPS Website.  
 
Mr. Osteen stated the last update occurred in May, 2010, and Cummings/SMG was hired to update the 
report.  Mr. Osteen commented they had visited several school sites and had met with several staff 
members to gather input for the report.  Mr. Osteen shared that the report is a historical document with 
constant changes.  He explained that this plan identifies almost $400 million in capital funding needed 
for the next ten years.  Mr. Hugh Osteen shared a section by section update and thoroughly answered 
all questions.   
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 Ms. Beyer stated the Board takes this planning very seriously in order to be efficient in spending  
   tax payer dollars.  Chair Carter encouraged the public to review the Long Range Facility Plan    
   which is located on the website. 
 
 Pastor Davis questioned the use of W.G. Pearson Middle School after the 2014-15 school year.  Mr.  
   Osteen assured Pastor Davis that the building would remain open to other programs such as Second  
   Chance, Student U, and other student services/activities. 

Natalie Beyer made a motion to approve the 2013 Long Range Facility Plan.  Pastor Fredrick Davis 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 

 
Closed Session  
 
On a motion by Vice Chair Forte-Brown, seconded by Leigh Bordley, the board convened in 
closed session to consider confidential personnel matters under NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6) and 
115C-319, to consult with the board attorney to preserve the attorney-client privilege as provided 
in NCGS 318.11(a)(3). 
 
The board convened in closed session at approximately 8:00 p.m. 
 
Open Session – Personnel Recommendations 
The board reconvened in open session at approximately 10:42 p.m. 
 
Personnel Approval 
Superintendent Becoats recommended approval of the November 21, 2013, Personnel Reports 
for Information, Approval, and the Substitute List.  On a motion made by Vice Chair Forte-
Brown to approve the Personnel Reports for Information, Approval, and the Substitute List dated 
November 21, 2013; seconded by Leigh Bordley, the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Chair Carter stated the Board of Education had completed the Superintendent’s Evaluation and 
unanimously agreed to not extend his contract past June 30, 2016, and not to offer a performance 
based increase at this time. 
 
Superintendent Becoats shared the following comments: 
 
Board of Education Members, I want to thank you for providing my annual evaluation.  As most 
of you know this is the first year we have utilized this new hybrid evaluation instrument and in it 
of itself has some challenges.  However, it is ultimately beneficial for the district to use it for the 
superintendent, principals, and teachers. 
 
One challenge in the 2012-13 process was a lack of agreed upon measures for evaluating each 
goal which made it difficult to adequately demonstrate progress for all areas.  I do feel sure that 
in 2013-14 hopefully we will have greater uniformity and we’ll be able to move forward with a 
common purpose.   
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As you may recall at the September Board Retreat, 2 Board Members did agree to work with 
staff on developing those agreed upon measures. 
 
I do support the decision made by the Board of Education not to provide me with a financial 
increase given teachers have not received an increase as originally recommended by the 
governor. 
 
I believe we have significant work to be done and I will do my best to ensure that we will meet 
the goals and objectives that are in my current contract dated June 30, 2016. 
 
Chair Carter asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Leigh Bordley made a motion to 
adjourn.  Natalie Beyer seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:47 p.m. 
 
 
  
 
      
        ____________________________________ 
      Heidi Carter, Chair 
      Durham Public Schools Board of Education 
       
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Dr. Eric J. Becoats, Superintendent 
      Durham Public Schools 
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MINUTES 

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

NOVEMBER 25, 2013 
 

The Durham Public Schools Board of Education held a special meeting November 25, 2013, at 
10:08 a.m. in the Fuller Administration Building, 511 Cleveland Street, Durham, North Carolina.   
 
Board Members present: 
Heidi Carter, Chair; Minnie Forte-Brown, Vice Chair; Natalie Beyer; Nancy Cox; Omega Curtis 
Parker; Pastor Fredrick Davis; and Leigh Bordley were present.   
 
Administration present:   
Dr. Eric J. Becoats, Superintendent; Dr. Stacey Wilson-Norman, Deputy Superintendent of 
Academic Services; Hugh Osteen, Deputy Superintendent of Operational Services, Chrissy 
Pearson, Chief Communications Officer; and Aaron Beaulieu, Chief Financial Officer. 
 
Attorney present: Neal Ramee  
 
Call to Order 
Chair Carter called the meeting to order and presided over a moment of silence. 
 
Agenda Review and Approval 
By unanimous board consent, the agenda was approved as written. 
 
General Public Comment - None 
 
Financial Policies and Procedures 
 
Chair Carter opened the meeting and shared the purpose of the meeting was the Board of Education 

expects we have a very strong fiscal management in this district and a culture of careful and prudent 
spending through every layer of the organization.  With the recent release of public records, there are 
concerns about spending in the district, particularly around travel.  These concerns have brought us here to 
review the policies and procedures. 

 
Chair Carter introduced Aaron Beaulieu, Chief Financial Officer, who leads the Board through the 

recommendations set forth by the administration surrounding policies and procedures as it relates to 
financial district spending.  The topics of the recommendations are as follows: credit card use, policy, travel 
polices, regulations and forms, training, and reports.  Durham Public Schools works hard to be good 
stewards of tax payer dollars. Durham Public Schools administration’s job is to continuously monitor and 
evaluate the controls and procedures in place to maintain a sound financial structure. 

 
Credit Card Use 
Durham Public Schools does not currently have a specific credit card policy.  The recommendation of 
the administration is that the district can properly operate without the use of credit cards.  Therefore, it 
would be best practice to cancel all credit cards at this time.  If the need for a credit card for a specific 
reason should arise in the future, it would be the responsibility of the Board to adopt a policy for credit 
card use. The handout discusses controls to consider when adopting a credit card policy. 
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Policy 
The two policies in the 7000 series of Finance and Fiscal Management were discussed. Mr. Beaulieu 
highlighted policy 7000 and policy 7630, both of which are cited below.  
 
7000 – Use of Funds 
 
The Durham Public Schools Board of Education, in recognition of its accountability to the people of 
Durham, hereby instructs all employees to use district funds and other assets in the most cost-effective 
manner possible, consistent with the primary mission of the Durham Public Schools. 
 
7630 – Employee Travel Reimbursement 
 
Durham Public Schools employees shall be reimbursed for transportation, subsistence, or registration 
expenses incurred while traveling on official business. Reimbursement must be authorized in advance by 
the Superintendent or designee. The amounts reimbursed shall follow guidelines established by the State 
Board of Education for its employees, except when amounts exceeding state guidelines are authorized 
by the Superintendent or his designee. All reimbursements are contingent upon funds available. 
 
 Both policies were deemed adequate by the administration. 
 
Chair Carter stopped the presentation to make it very clear that while the district does not have a specific 
credit card policy; it does have tight financial policies and regulations in regards to spending and 
reimbursements. 
 
Vice Chair Forte-Brown reemphasizes that Durham Public Schools is a good financial steward and has 
not operated without guidelines, however, procedures need to be tightened.  She made it very clear that 
these strict financial policies and guidelines should be understood by all employees of Durham Public 
Schools.  
 
Leigh Bordley agreed with Vice Chair Forte-Brown with the need for the policies to be clear and easily 
understood by all employees.  
 
Travel Policies, Regulations and Forms 
Mr. Beaulieu addressed the administration’s recommendation to change policy 7630 with regards to the 
amounts reimbursed shall follow guidelines established by “the State of North Carolina – Office of 
States Budget and Management” instead of by “the State Board of Education”.  He reviewed travel 
regulations for per diem, transportation and subsistence allowance. All employees should follow these 
amounts set forth unless approved by immediate supervisor. It is the employee’s responsibility to be a 
good steward of all funds and the funds must apply to official Durham Public Schools business. The 
guidelines clearly define expectations and leave no room for misinterpretation.  
 
Training 
All Durham Public Schools employees will be trained and educated using the standard reporting tool as 
well as regulations and forms. Each employee will have to sign off indicating their understanding of 
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these expectations.  It is important that all existing and new employees receive documented training.  
The strength and backbone of the district is dependent upon the controls and procedures and the staff 
monitoring. 
 
Reports 
In addition to the existing financial reports provided to the Board of Education, the following reports 
will be added: 

• Quarterly Review of Superintendent Budget 
• Quarterly Review of Board of Education Budget 
• Quarterly Review of Contracts between $25,000 - $90,000 
• Quarterly Review of Out-of-State Travel 

 
Mr. Beaulieu closed by stating it is the job of staff to continuously monitor and evaluate the controls and 
procedures in place to maintain a sound financial structure.  Upon the completion of this process, the 
current procedures will be improved and enhanced. Policies and procedures were in place with regards 
to travel and reimbursements but no direct policy for credit card use was in place.  In addition, now 
expectations are clearly defined.  The district feels that it can operate without the use of credit cards at 
this time.  The staff of Durham Public Schools takes the responsibility for managing public funds very 
seriously and hopes to build public confidence in its ability to manage those funds.  Internal controls are 
the mechanisms by which shortfalls are addressed and it is our thinking that we have improved upon the 
current procedures and reduced the ability in the future for weaknesses in our controls. 
 
The administration submits this information for discussion. 
 
Chair Carter thanked Mr. Beaulieu and stated that the change to policy 7630 would be brought to a 
upcoming committee meeting as an action item. 
 
Pastor Fredrick Davis asked for clarification regarding credit card use.  Mr. Beaulieu stated until a credit 
card policy is implemented, there will be no credit cards used in Durham Public Schools. He clarifies 
that store cards not considered credit cards and will not be cancelled.  There will be some cases where an 
employee will need to use their personal credit card until the paper work is processed.  
 
Omega Curtis Parker stated that Board Members do not have access to a credit card; only the Board 
Liaison. 
 
Chair Carter requested a set of guidelines be created to be used to approve Board travel.  Natalie Beyer 
recommended this request be taken to the Administrative Services Committee.  Leigh Bordley made a 
recommendation for there to be justification to attend a conference and the value it would have to our 
community.  
 
Natalie Beyer recommended the use of bus and train as forms of transportation to conferences in 
addition to airlines.  She also recommended consulting with the attorney prior to setting Board travel 
guidelines.  In addition, she suggested researching other school systems, Durham County policies and 
their Board travel policies.  
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Chair Carter closed the meeting by stating that Durham Public Schools will continue to operate fiscally 
conservative and will be educationally and socially liberal.  
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at approximately 11:00 a.m. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Heidi Carter, Chair 
      Durham Public Schools Board of Education 
       
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Dr. Eric J. Becoats, Superintendent 
      Durham Public Schools 
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                                                                    Date:  December 19, 2013 

Durham Public Schools 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 PRECIS 
 
Agenda Item:  Sale of Morris Street Facility 

 
Staff Liaison Present:  Hugh Osteen Phone #   560-3831 
  

 

Main Points: 
 

 The administration has sought offers to purchase the Morris Street facility from potential 
buyers. 
 

 The best offer to date is from Measurement, Incorporated for $901,200.  The 
administration recommends this offer be the starting point for the upset bid process as 
noted in G.S. 160A-269.   

 
Administration submits this starting offer for approval. 

 
Fiscal Implications: 
 

 Proceeds from the sale will be directed toward critical capital needs. 
 

Strategic Plan Alignment: 

None 
 
Purpose    

Information    Discussion    Action    Consent    

Reviewed by:  Finance __________      Attorney _Rod Malone  

 



  December, 2013 
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Durham Public Schools 
Sale of Morris Street Facility 

 
301 Morris Street 
302 Morris Street 

 
 

The Durham Public Schools Board of Education has declared its real property at 
301 and 302 Morris Street in Durham, North Carolina as Surplus and offers it for 
sale.  The properties will be sold as one together.  Durham Public Schools will 
follow the upset bid process as stated in G.S. 160A-269.  The best proposal will be 
approved by the Board and then be posted publicly.  Anyone may then raise the bid 
within 10 days by a minimum of 10% of the first $1,000 and 5% of the remainder.  
All bids require a 5% deposit.  The process will be repeated until no further bids 
are received.  The final bid will then be submitted to the Board for approval. 
 



                                                                                    December 19, 2013 

Durham Public Schools 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 PRECIS 
 
Agenda Item:  Child Nutrition Services – Funding Equipment Upgrades  

 
Staff Liaison Present: Hugh Osteen Phone #   560-3831 
 James Keaten    560-2370 
 G. Scott Denton    560-3822 

 

Main Points: 
 

 Additional serving lines are needed at Holt, Eno Valley and Shepard. Upgrades are 
needed at Pearsontown and Northern. 

 
 Other specific equipment is needed at other schools. 

 
 To continue the effort to eliminate fryers in the High Schools, combi-ovens are needed at 

Jordan, DSA, Hillside and Southern. 
 

 These equipment upgrades will require a Child Nutrition fund balance reallocation of 
$725,000.00. 

 
Administration submits this reallocation for approval. 

 
Fiscal Implications: 
 
For 2012-2013, Child Nutrition Services posted a fund balance of $3,544,33.44, a profit of 
$261,685.35 and an operating balance of 2.21 months of expenses. 
 
Strategic Plan Alignment: 

Goal IV.2: DPS will enhance processes and practices in all business environments. 
Goal IV.4: DPS will enhance the Child Nutrition Services program delivery model to support 
student health and wellness, as measured by national nutrition standards. 
 
 
Purpose    

Information    Discussion    Action    Consent    

Reviewed by:  Finance    AJB      Attorney ____________
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Child Nutrition Services – Funding Equipment Upgrades 

Executive Summary 
 

Child Nutrition Services (CNS) desires to use $725k in fund balance to support cafeteria 
upgrades and equipment replacement.  Equipment is needed in several school locations to 
support basic operations, ensure continued support of healthy food offerings and enhance the 
ability to meet nutritional standards.  In addition, the upgrades will allow CNS to reach its goal 
of eliminating fryers at all of the high schools during the 2013-1014 school year.  Below are the 
areas recommended for upgrade and associated projected costs. 

1. Refrigeration 
Refrigeration and cold-well serving units will be needed at Glenn, Jordan, Bethesda and 
Oak Grove.  One Two-Door Refrigerator and one Two-Door Freezer are needed at Glenn 
Elementary.  Two cold merchandising units are needed at Jordan.  Two cold serving 
wells are needed at Bethesda and two at Oak Grove.   

      Total investment needed: $46k. 

2. Serving Lines 
CNS must replace serving lines or add second serving lines to Eno Valley, Holt, Shepard, 
Pearsontown and Northern. 

                                                                                        Total investment needed: $303k.  
  

3. Ovens 
Combination ovens (combi-ovens) are needed at Jordan, DSA, Hillside and Southern in 
order to eliminate fryers. 

    Total investment needed: $312k. 

4. Miscellaneous Equipment 
Four schools (Eno Valley, Holt, Pearsontown and Southwest) need warming cabinets.  
The School for Creative Studies needs a slicer.  Three schools (Eno Valley, Holt and 
Pearsontown) need milk boxes. 

      Total investment needed: $64k. 

 
Total Fund Balance Allocation Requested:  $725,000 



                                                                       Date:  December 19, 2013 

Durham Public Schools 
Board of Education 

PRECIS 
 

Agenda Items:  Professional Learning Communities Early-Release 2014-2015  
    

 
Staff Liaison Present:   Dr. Debbie Pitman, Ph.D.   Phone #:  919-560-2554 

James F. Key, II        919-560-2597               
      

 

Main Points: 

• Administration will provide a proposal to add five additional PLC Early-Release Days for 2014-15. 
 

• New standards, assessments, and expectations have made it necessary to provide teachers more 
professional time to collaborate and share within PLC Teams. 
 

• Administration will share rationale for proposing additional PLC Early-Release Dates. 
 

• Administration will introduce proposed PLC Early-Release dates for the 2014-15 school year. 
 

• Administration will share school level expectations for PLC Early-Release days. 
 

 Fiscal Implications: 

• These efforts are supported through federal, state, and local funds. 
 

Strategic Plan Alignment: 

• Goal V.1 - DPS will employ and retain a highly-qualified workforce that engages in continuous 
improvement through ongoing, high-quality professional development. 
 

Purpose    

Information    Discussion    Action   Consent   

Reviewed by:  Finance __________      Attorney:   

 



Professional Learning Communities  
Early-Release Day Proposed Calendar for 2014-15 

 
December 19, 2013 

 
 

Dr.  Debbie Pitman 
Assistant Superintendent  

James F. Key, II 
Area Superintendent for High Schools 

 
 
 
 
 



Rationale for Increasing Number of PLC Early-Release Days 

• Standards have changed in all grade levels and courses 
• Teachers are preparing students for new assessments 
• The state has added five new NC Final Exams to middle school 

and fifteen new NC Final Exams to high school 
• The assessments are more rigorous and require a higher 

percentage of correct answers to be deemed “proficient” 
• Teachers need more time to analyze data, unpack new 

standards, develop common assessments, and create and 
share lesson plans 
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Proposed PLC Early-Release Day Schedule for 2014-15 
PLC Early Release 

2014-15 
Approved 

Year Round Proposed YR Approved  
Specialty HS 

Proposed 
Specialty HS 

Approved 
TRAD  

Proposed 
TRAD 

August Aug 6     Aug 20     

September   Sept 17 Sept 17   Sept 17   

October       Oct 15   Oct 15 

November *   *Nov 19   *Nov 19   *Nov 19 

December    Dec 10   Dec 10   Dec 10 

January   Jan 28   Jan 28   Jan 28 

February* *Feb 11   *Feb 11   *Feb 11   

March   Mar 11       Mar 11 

April* *Apr 29   *Apr 29   *Apr 29   

May             
3 * District-wide PLC Meetings reserved for 6-12 schools 



PLC EARLY-RELEASE DAY EXPECTATIONS  
 • Participation in PLC Early-Release Day meetings is mandatory for all DPS 

teachers and staff. 
• K-5 After-School programs would continue to operate on PLC Early-

Release Days.  6-8 After-School programs would not operate on PLC Early-
Release Days as many of the 6-8 After-School staff members are middle 
school teachers and would be unavailable to work on these days. 

• Teachers would be expected to meet in PLC teams until at least 4:00 p.m. 
for schools that dismiss at 12:30 p.m. and at least 5:00 p.m. for schools 
that dismiss at 1:30 p.m.  

• No after-school activities (such as athletic practices) will begin earlier 
than 4:15 p.m. on PLC Early-Release Days.  No Middle School athletic 
events will be played on PLC Early-Release Days. 
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Discussion 
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                                                                        Date:  December 19, 2013 

Durham Public Schools 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

PRECIS 

Agenda Item:  2012-2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
 
Staff Liaison Present: Aaron J. Beaulieu  Phone #  560-3544 
     

 

 
Main Points: 
 

• The fiscal year 2012-2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) audit report 
prepared by the Durham Public Schools Financial Services staff and audited by the 
certified public accounting firm of Rives & Associates, LLP will be presented at the 
December 19, 2013 Board meeting.  

 
Administration submits this audit for approval. 
 
Fiscal Implications: 
 

• It is required by Public School Law 115C-447 that public schools have their accounting 
records audited annually by a certified public accountant or an accountant certified by the 
Local Government Commission. 

 
Strategic Plan Alignment: 

None 
 
Purpose    

Information    Discussion    Action    Consent    

Reviewed by:  Finance   AJB 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

of the 
 

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS  

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by  
 

Paul LeSieur 
Interim Chief Financial Officer 
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Durham Public Schools Board of Education 
P. O. Box 30002  •  Durham, NC  27702  •  Telephone:  919-560-2000 

 
 

Letter of Transmittal 
 

November 25, 2013 
 
 
 
 
To the Members of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education and Citizens of 
Durham County, North Carolina: 
 
We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Durham Public 
Schools (DPS) Board of Education for the year ended June 30, 2013.  The Finance Department 
of Durham Public Schools has prepared this report, which includes the audited financial 
statements.  Responsibility for the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of 
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the district.  To the best of our knowledge, 
the enclosed financial information is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a 
manner which fairly presents the financial position and results of operations of the various funds 
of the district.  All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the 
district’s financial activities are included. 
 
The Report consists of four sections:  Introductory, Financial, Statistical and Compliance.  The 
Introductory Section, of which this transmittal letter is a part, includes a list of the Board 
members and principal officials, the district’s organizational chart, and the Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting awarded by the Governmental Finance 
Officers Association and the Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting awarded by the 
Association of School Business Officials for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  The Financial Section includes the independent 
auditors’ report, management’s discussion and analysis, the combined financial statements and 
the individual fund schedules arranged by fund type. The Statistical Section includes various 
tables of unaudited data providing financial history of the Board as well as demographic and 
other informative statistics of Durham County.  The Compliance Section includes the 
compliance and internal control reports, the single audit reports, the schedule of findings and 
questioned costs, the corrective action plan, the schedule of prior year audit findings and the 
schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that management provide a narrative 
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  This letter of transmittal is designed to 
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  Durham Public Schools Board 
of Education’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 
 
The Durham Public Schools Board of Education’s financial statements have been audited by 
Rives and Associates, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants.  The goal of the 
independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the 
Durham Public Schools Board of Education for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are free of 
material misstatement.  The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence 
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supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation.  The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, 
that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion and that the Durham 
Public Schools Board of Education’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2013 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The independent auditors’ report is 
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 
 
Durham Public Schools Board of Education is required to undergo an annual single audit in 
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act, the US Office of Management and Budget 
Circular A-133, “Audits of State and Local Governments,” and North Carolina State law for State 
funds.  Information related to this single audit, including the schedule of financial assistance, 
findings and questioned costs, and the independent auditors’ report on the internal control 
structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations are presented in the Compliance 
Section of this report.  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, there were no compliance 
findings or questioned costs. 
 
REPORTING ENTITY 
 
Durham City Schools and Durham County Schools merged on July 1, 1992 to become the 
Durham Public Schools.  Durham Public Schools Board of Education has total authority over 
non-charter public education in Durham County.  The seven-member Board of Education is 
elected by the citizens of the county and is accountable to the citizenry for the educational and 
fiscal operations of the system’s 56 schools.  For 2012-13, the school system served 32,569 
students from kindergarten through 12th grade in 30 elementary schools, 11 middle schools, 2 
secondary schools, 9 high schools, and 4 special/optional schools.  The Board is charged with 
the responsibility of providing a free and appropriate education for all students of Durham Public 
Schools.  As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the Durham Public 
Schools Board of Education is a separate reporting entity.  These statements cover all financial 
resources of Durham Public Schools -- State, Federal, Local, Child Nutrition and Grants, as well 
as funds received at each school. 
 
ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 
 
Durham Public Schools serves the diverse needs of the entire county of Durham, North 
Carolina, a 299-square-mile area with an approximate population of 277,588.  Our enrollment of 
32,405 students mirrors the diversity of the community, speaking more than 105 languages. 
 
Durham is home to the Research Triangle Park (RTP), a 7,000-acre business tract established 
in 1959 by local businesses, academia, and industry.  Located near Duke University in Durham, 
the University of North Carolina in Chapel Hill, and North Carolina State University in Raleigh, a 
major focus of the park is research.  Even though it was established as a regional research 
park, approximately 95 percent of its corporate enterprises are located in Durham County.  The 
park is home to industry leading firms such as IBM, GlaxoSmithKline, Ericsson, Cisco Systems, 
Research Triangle Institute and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, employing 
approximately 39,500 full time employees and an estimated 4,000 contract employees.  When 
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one thinks of the computer industry, they typically think of Silicon Valley, but RTP is recognized 
as one of the hottest markets in the United States for “high tech” industries. 
 
The City of Durham is the only municipality in Durham County and is known as the “City of 
Medicine” because of the importance that biotechnology, health care, and medical-related 
industries play in the city’s economy.  More than 300 medical and health related companies are 
located in Durham County including Duke University Medical Center, which was ranked the 
ninth Best Hospital in the US by US News and World Report, July, 2011.  The ongoing medical 
research and expanding clinical opportunities attract medical doctors.  Durham County has one 
of the nation’s top five concentrations of physicians per capita and nearly one third of the labor 
work force works in a health or medical related industry.  The metropolitan area of Raleigh-
Durham-Chapel Hill is consistently ranked among the top U.S. metropolitan areas in economic 
performance.  Our local economy has remained stable because of our diverse industrial base 
including medicine, research, education, “high-tech,” telecommunications, and manufacturing. 
 
Durham is home to the world-renowned Duke University and North Carolina Central University.  
Durham Technical Community College operates a successful industry-training program, which 
offers new and expanding companies with industrial, technical, and occupational classes 
specifically designed to meet their needs.  Also located in Durham County is the Museum of Life 
and Science and the innovative North Carolina School of Science and Mathematics, a statewide 
residential high school for gifted students.  Its strategic location, an excellent quality of life, and 
its ability to attract and retain quality businesses and industries bolster Durham County’s 
economy. 
 
MAJOR INITIATIVES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS 
 
Graduation Rate 
 
All but one of DPS’s high schools achieved a graduation rate of 80 percent or higher in 2012-13, 
with three schools—Hillside New Tech, J.D. Clement Early College, and Southern School of 
Engineering graduating 100 percent of their students. The DPS four-year graduation cohort rate 
reached just under 80 percent (79.6), representing approximately a 10-point increase in four 
years. 
 
Information Technology Refresh 
 
During the 2012-13 school year, Durham County appropriated funding for technology refresh 
which was used to upgrade a significant majority of DPS technology, including teacher and 
student computers and the placement of Brightlink projection systems in our classrooms.  While 
a technology refresh is necessary on an annual basis, the investment made during the 2012-13 
school year served as a springboard to ensuring technology solvency into the future. 
 
Child Nutrition  
 
Child Nutrition Services (CNS) worked to exceed state and federal nutrition standards during the 
2012-13 school year. In the midst of changing recipes, adjusting menus and addressing 
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required compliance issues, the CNS Department increased breakfast participation by 7.5 
percent and lunch participation by 1.0 percent. Fund balances were stable at 2.1 months of 
expenses. The program continues to develop strategies to increase participation and ensure 
students have healthy, nutritious meal choices. 
 
New Magnet Programs  
 
The DPS Board of Education approved five new magnet schools to be implemented beginning 
with the 2013-14 school year: 
 

• Holt Year-Round Elementary transitioned to a Language Academy.  
• Lowe's Grove Middle School became a Science, Technology, Engineering, and 

Mathematics (STEM) magnet school with a particular emphasis on the infusion of 
technology.  

• Neal Middle School became a Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics 
(STEM) magnet school with a particular emphasis on Engineering and Design. 

• The School for Creative Studies opened on the former Chewning Middle School 
campus.  The school is designed for students in grades 6-12 and focuses on the 
following creative themes:  Video Technology and Communications, Digital Media and 
Design, Creative Entrepreneurship and Marking, Music and Audio Production, and 
Design for Living: Architecture.  

• Southern School of Energy and Sustainability opened as a new magnet high school 
comprised of four small schools into which students may apply: The School of Computer 
and Technology Engineering, The School of Infrastructure Engineering, The School of 
Business Management and Sustainability, and The School of Biomedical Technology. 

 
Moving in the Middle 
 
Every DPS middle school met expected academic growth targets in 2012-13, with students 
meeting expected growth in reading, math and science in grades 6, 7 and 8 and with no low-
performing middle schools. To further accelerate our progress, DPS will offer new instructional 
focus areas at our Showcase (non-magnet) schools in 2013-14 while launching new magnet 
programs at Lowe’s Grove and Neal. The instructional focus areas include: 
 

• Brogden: Leadership Development 
• Carrington: Global Connections 
• Githens: Leadership Through Service 
• Lucas: Project-Based Learning  

 
New Farm and Educational Hub 
 
The Durham Hub Farm held a grand opening on October 20. It is a 30-acre school system farm 
and wilderness where students, teachers and the community grow and harvest healthy food; 
hike, bike, and explore nature; and study and learn about agriculture, food system, history, and 
the environment. 
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CPR Training 
 
Durham County Government, the City of Durham and Durham Public Schools joined to help 
improve the survival rates of Sudden Cardiac Arrest (SCA) victims by training Durham residents 
and students in Bystander Hands Only Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR), along with 
Automated External Defibrillator education. 
 
The joint training initiative supports both the County’s and the City’s strategic plan efforts to 
improve the health and safety of Durham residents, while addressing a state mandate that 
requires all publicly educated students to be trained in CPR before receiving their diplomas 
starting in 2015. 
 
The unique partnership includes emergency services personnel and Bystander Hands Only 
CPR trained employees, equipment provided by City and County Governments to train DPS 
students, and support from Duke University Health System. 
 
Positive Behavior and Intervention Support (PBIS) Recognitions 
 
Twenty-five schools received recognition from the State for their implementation of PBIS. Five 
schools (Eastway Elementary, Eno Valley Elementary, Carrington Middle, Lowes Grove Middle, 
and R.N. Harris Elementary) received the highest recognition of Exemplar status.  Twelve 
schools received Model status and seven schools received Green Ribbon status. 
 
FINANCIAL AND BUDGETARY CONTROLS 
 
The State of North Carolina is the primary funding source for public education in North Carolina.  
Minimum program criteria are determined by the State Board of Education and funds are 
distributed to each school system by the Department of Public Instruction.  Once minimum 
programs are established, the remaining funds are allocated on a per-pupil basis.  Local funds 
are appropriated in varying amounts by each county to supplement the basic educational 
programs.  These local monies are derived primarily from the general tax levy of the county.  
Federal funds are received through the State operating as a conduit to address the needs of 
identified categorical groups of students qualifying for federal funding. 
 
The management of the school system is responsible for establishing and maintaining an 
internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the school system are protected 
from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow 
for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  The internal control structure is designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.  The concept of 
reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely 
to be derived and the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by 
management. 
 
North Carolina General Statutes require all governmental units to adopt a balanced budget by 
July 1 of each year.  Our budget resolution is adopted at the purpose level for the General and 
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Special Revenue Funds.  The Capital Outlay Fund budget is adopted at the project level.  The 
Enterprise Fund budget is adopted at the fund level.  By statute, the Fiduciary Fund is not a part 
of the budget resolution adopted by the Board of Education.  The objective of these budgetary 
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions of the adopted resolution. 
 
An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments.  
Open encumbrances at year end are either canceled or are included as a reservation of fund 
balance in the subsequent year.   
 
Durham Public Schools uses a fund accounting system.  Each fund is a self-balancing set of 
accounts, segregated for the purpose of accounting for specific activities in accordance with 
law, sound accounting practice, special regulation or other limitations.  There are three 
categories of funds, Governmental, Proprietary, and Fiduciary.  The Governmental Funds have 
now been expanded to include the individual school funds.  Further explanation of these funds 
has been detailed in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis section within the Financial 
Section of this report. 
 
The Governmental Funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting, while the Proprietary 
and Fiduciary use the full accrual basis of accounting. 
 
CASH MANAGEMENT 
 
Employees of the school system who collect monies are required to make daily deposits unless 
the amount on hand is less than $250.  Money belonging to the school system or individual 
school must be deposited in an official depository. 
 
Durham Public Schools primarily uses the North Carolina State Treasurer’s Short-Term 
Investment Fund to invest idle funds.  Funds invested in the Short-Term Investment Fund can 
be called at any time, and the Fund invests only in high-quality fixed income securities.  General 
Statute 147-69.1 governs what securities are eligible for purchase by the Fund.  The Fund can 
invest in securities with maturities ranging from overnight to seven years.   
 
DPS also invests funds in the North Carolina Cash Management Trust (NCCMT) for many of the 
same reasons.  The NCCMT invests in high quality securities for a shorter term, and the rate of 
return has been slightly below the North Carolina State Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment 
Fund, but above the local banks.   
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Durham Public Schools has a risk management program which includes a combined program of 
self-insurance and commercial insurance.  This program is reviewed at least quarterly to ensure 
adequate coverage for the district and that it remains within budgeted resources.  The Board 
does maintain an insurance reserve of approximately 3.4 million dollars for its self-insurance 
program.   
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
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Certificates – The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada 
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting and 
the Association of School Business Officials (ASBO) awarded a Certificate of Excellence in 
Financial Reporting to Durham Public Schools for its comprehensive annual financial report for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  This was the 18th consecutive year that the government 
has achieved these prestigious awards.  In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a 
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual 
financial report.  This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and 
applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement 
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA and ASBO to determine its 
eligibility for another certificate. 
 
Acknowledgment - The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report on a timely 
basis could not have been accomplished without the efforts and dedication of the staff of 
Durham Public Schools and the independent audit firm.  Separate acknowledgment goes to the 
finance department for their contributions.  We would like to express our appreciation to all of 
the employees who contributed to the development of this report and to the Durham County 
government, Durham City government, and the Durham Chamber of Commerce for providing 
statistical data. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Eric J. Becoats      Paul D. LeSieur 
Superintendent      Interim, Chief Financial Officer  
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
 

To the Durham Public Schools Board  
of Education, North Carolina 

Durham, North Carolina 
 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of  the Durham Public Schools Board 
of Education, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013 and the related notes to the financial 
statements,, which collectively comprise of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina as of June 30, 2013, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary 
comparison for the Local Current Expense Fund and State Public School Fund for the year ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note V to the financial statements, in June 2011, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 63, 
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. 
Statement No. 63 is effective for the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2013. This statement provides a new statement of net position format to report all assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position. This statement requires that 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources be reported separately from assets and liabilities. 
This statement also amends certain provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, and related pronouncements to reflect 
the residual measure in the statement of financial position as net position, rather than net assets. Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 

As discussed in Note V to the financial statements, in March 2012, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 65, 
Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. The provisions of this statement are effective for the Durham 
Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. This Statement establishes 
accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows 
of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of 
resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. This 
statement also provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the financial statement 
elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such as changes in the determination 
of the major fund calculation and limiting the use of the term deferred in financial statement presentations. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 13 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s basic financial statements. The 
combining and individual fund statements and schedules - budget and actual, other schedules, as well as the 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards as required by U.S. Office and Management 
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States and Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State 
Single Audit Implementation Act, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules – budget and actual, other schedules, and the 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards are the responsibility of management and 
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements 
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund 
statements and schedules – budget and actual, other schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal and 
State awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our reports dated November 18, 2013, 
on our consideration of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of those reports is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. The reports are an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Durham Public Schools Board 
of Education, North Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
 

Rives & Associates, LLP 
 
Lexington, North Carolina 
November 18, 2013 
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This section of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education’s (the “Board”) financial report represents 
our discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Board for the year ended June 30, 2013.  
This information should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements included in this 
report. 

Financial Highlights 

• The Board had an decrease in enrollment of 164 students (or -0.5%) from the previous year.  
Despite the impact of economic recession, the inward migration from other states into Durham 
County continued to increase.  Durham’s population also increased 0.59% from the prior year.  
The Board continues to meet enrollment projections in the current school year 2013-14.  It 
should be noted that funding from the State is based on Average Daily Membership (ADM) 
figures which are typically lower than enrollment. 

• The assets of the Board exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $414,002,531.  
Assets increased $1,555,386 due to an increase in capital assets.  

• The State of North Carolina continued its economic recession.  The discretionary reduction 
was eliminated in 2012-13.  The 2013-14 State planning allotments vs. conference budget 
proposal reduced funding to Durham Public Schools by $12,456,764.  The reductions were 
taken in the following programs; teachers, instructional support, teacher assistants, limited 
english, classroom materials and textbooks.  Projections from the State indicated continued 
funding shortages for the 2013-14 school year. 

• A local ¼ cent sales tax increase was approved by Durham County voters creating revenue to 
replace the expiring Education Jobs funding in 2012-13.  This has provided an additional $6.8 
million in funding.   

• The Board took numerous measures during the 2012-13 school year to ensure it had a 
balanced budget and compensate for the $5.6 million loss of funding at the federal level.  This 
included continuing to use $1 million in capital funding transferred into local county 
appropriation dollars for operating expenses in fiscal year 2010.  The Board committed $5.9 
million in fund balance to maintain the 2011-12 staffing levels in the district, while not asking 
the County Commissioners’ for additional funding. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Board’s Local Current Expense Fund reported an 
ending fund balance of $32,661,923.  The total fund balance increased by $2,880,239.  This 
includes an increase in reserve for inventories and prepaid expenses of $30,469 and $24,885, 
respectively.  

• Non-spendable fund balance consisting of inventories and prepaid expenses totaled 
$1,387,010. Restricted fund balance consisting of items restricted by State statute totaled 
$4,344,698.  Committed fund balance totaled $7,445,975 which represents the amount of fund 
balance designated by the Board of Education to ensure that teaching and staff positions were 
not eliminated in 2013-14. Assigned fund balance was $3,385,031 for the Board’s self-
insurance reserve.  Unassigned fund balance in the Local Current Expense Fund totaled 
$19,747,754. 
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Overview of the Financial Statements 

The audited financial statements of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education consist of four 
components.  They are as follows: 

 
• Independent Auditors’ Report 
• Management’s Discussion and Analysis (required supplementary information) 
• Basic Financial Statements 
• Requires supplemental section that presents combining and budgetary statements for non-

major governmental funds and budgetary statements for  enterprise funds 

The Basic Financial Statements include two types of statements that present different views of the 
Board’s finances.  The first is the government-wide statements.  The government-wide statements are 
presented on the full accrual basis of accounting and include the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities.  The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Board’s assets, liabilities, and 
deferred inflows of resources.  Assets and liabilities are classified in the order of relative liquidity for 
assets and due date for liabilities.  This statement provides a summary of the Board’s investment in assets, 
deferred inflows or resources, and obligations to creditors.  Liquidity and financial flexibility can be 
evaluated using the information contained in this statement.  The Statement of Activities summarizes the 
Board’s revenues and expenses for the current year.  A net (expense) revenue format is used to indicate to 
what extent each function is self-sufficient. 

The second set of statement included in the basic financial statements is the Fund Financial Statements, 
which are presented for the Board’s governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.  These 
statements present the governmental funds on the modified accrual basis of accounting, measuring the 
near-term inflows and outflows of financial resources and what is available at year-end to spend in the 
next fiscal year.  The proprietary and fiduciary statements are presented on the full accrual basis of 
accounting.  The fund financial statements focus on the Board’s most significant funds.  Because a 
different basis of accounting is used in the government-wide financial statements, reconciliation from the 
governmental fund financial statements to the government-wide financial statements is required.  The 
government-wide financial statements provide information about the Board as an economic unit while the 
fund financial statements provide information on the financial resources of the Board’s major funds. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements report information about the Board as a whole using 
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies.  The Statement of Net Assets 
includes all of the Board’s assets, deferred inflows of resources, and liabilities.  All of the current year’s 
revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is 
received or paid. 
 
The two government-wide financial statements report the Board’s net position and how it has changed.  
Net position - the difference between the Board’s assets and the total of liabilities and deferred inflows – 
is one way to measure the Board’s financial health or position. 
 

• Over time, increases or decreases in the Board’s net position are an indicator of whether its 
financial position is improving or deteriorating. 
 



DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 

6 
 

• To assess the Board’s overall health, one should consider additional non-financial factors such 
as changes in the County’s property tax base and the condition of its school buildings and 
other physical assets. 

 
The Board’s activities are divided into two categories in the government-wide statements: 
 

• Governmental activities:  Most of the Board’s basic services are included here, such as 
regular and special education, transportation, and administration.  County funding and State 
and federal aid finance most of these activities. 

• Business-type activities:  The Board charges fees to help cover the costs of certain services it 
provides.  School food service is included here. 

 
The government-wide statements are shown as Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Board’s funds, focusing on its 
most significant or “major” funds.  Funds are accounting devices the Board uses to keep track of specific 
sources of funding and spending on particular programs. 
 

• Some funds are required by State law, such as the State Public School Fund. 
• The Board establishes other funds, such as the Federal Grants Fund, to control and manage 

money for a particular purpose or to show that it is properly using certain revenues. 
 
Durham Public Schools Board of Education has three types of funds: 
 
Governmental funds:  Most of the Board’s basic services are included in the governmental funds, which 
generally focus on two things - how cash and other assets can readily be converted to cash flow in and out 
and the balances left at year end that are available for spending.  As a result of this focus, the 
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps determine whether there are 
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the coming year to finance the Board’s programs.  
Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide 
statements, a reconciliation following the governmental funds statements, explains the relationship (or 
differences) between the government-wide and the fund financial statements.  The Board has several 
governmental funds:  the Local Current Expense Fund, the State Public School Fund, the Capital Outlay 
Fund, the Grant and Community Schools Special Revenue Fund, the Federal Grants Fund, the Local 
Special Expense Fund, and the School Activity Funds. 
 
The governmental fund statements are shown as Exhibits 3, 4, 5, and 6 of this report. 
 
Proprietary funds:  Services for which the Board charges a fee are generally reported in the proprietary 
funds.  The proprietary fund statements are reported on the same full accrual basis of accounting as the 
government-wide statements.  Durham Public Schools Board of Education has one proprietary fund - the 
School Food Service Fund. 
 
The proprietary fund statements are shown as Exhibits 7, 8, and 9 of this report. 
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Fiduciary funds:  Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 
the government.  Durham Public Schools Board of Education has one fiduciary fund - the Della Bradsher 
Hedgepeth Memorial Scholarship Fund, which is a scholarship fund under the control of the 
administrative unit.  This is accounted for as a private purpose trust fund. 
 
The fiduciary fund statements are shown as Exhibits 10 and 11 of this report. 
 
Financial Analysis of the Board as a Whole 
 
Net position is an indicator of the fiscal health of the Board.  Assets exceeded liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources by $414,002,531 as of June 30, 2013.  The largest component of net position is net 
investment in capital assets, of $390,913,991.  It comprises 94.42% of total net position. 
 
Following is a summary of the Statement of Net Position: 
 

Table 1 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 

as of June 30, 2013 
    
  Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government 
  6/30/2013 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2012 
    
Current assets  $     64,123,842   $     68,494,824  $       5,046,928  $       4,815,222  $     69,170,770   $     73,310,046 
Capital assets       393,763,077        388,160,532              642,068              549,951       394,405,145        388,710,483 
     Total assets       457,886,919        456,655,356           5,688,996           5,365,173       463,575,915        462,020,529 
    
Current liabilities         19,262,529          20,583,921              137,293              111,501         19,399,822          20,695,422 
Long-term liabilities         27,653,241          22,627,435              361,531              313,351         28,014,772          22,940,786 
     Total liabilities         46,915,770          43,211,356              498,824              424,852         47,414,594          43,636,208 
    
Deferred inflows of resources           2,058,890            1,819,764                99,900                83,271           2,158,790            1,903,035 
    
Net investment in capital assets       390,271,923        386,381,988              642,068              549,951       390,913,991        386,931,939 
Restricted net position         10,491,824          10,543,358                       -                         -           10,491,824          10,543,358 
Unrestricted net position           8,148,512          14,698,890           4,448,204           4,307,099         12,596,716          19,005,989 
    
     Total net position  $   408,912,259   $   411,624,236  $       5,090,272  $       4,857,050  $   414,002,531   $   416,481,286 
                     
 
Note that net position decreased during the year, indicating a decline in the financial condition of the 
Board.  The decrease in net position (.60%) was laregly because of a decrease in unrestricted net position 
in the governmental activities due to expenditures for technology and operational support.  Unrestricted 
net positon increased in the business-type activities primarily because of an increase in current assets in 
the School Food Service Fund.   
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The following table shows the revenues and expenses for the Board for the current fiscal year. 
 

Table 2 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

as of June 30, 2013 
    
  Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government 
  6/30/2013 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2012 
    
Revenues:   
Program revenues:   
  Charges for services  $       3,592,237  $       3,810,061  $       2,308,001  $       2,712,070  $       5,900,238   $       6,522,131 
  Operating grants and contributions       213,360,014       216,312,932         12,373,727         11,504,918       225,733,741        227,817,850 
  Capital grants and contributions                  3,787                15,528                        -                          -                    3,787                 15,528 
General revenues:   
  Other revenues       149,741,250       163,089,265                12,240                20,959       149,753,490        163,110,224 
Total revenues       366,697,288       383,227,786         14,693,968         14,237,947       381,391,256        397,465,733 
    
Expenses:   
Governmental activities:   
  Instructional services       253,940,630       252,812,921                        -                          -         253,940,630        252,812,921 
  System-wide support services         82,147,274         70,126,929                        -                          -           82,147,274          70,126,929 
  Ancillary services           4,335,383           4,600,655                        -                          -             4,335,383            4,600,655 
  Non-programmed charges         13,734,133         11,686,197                        -                          -           13,734,133          11,686,197 
  Interest on long-term debt                85,733                        -                          -                          -                  85,733                         -   
  Depreciation         14,991,658         14,003,381                        -                          -           14,991,658          14,003,381 
Business-type activities:   
  Food service                        -                          -           14,635,200         14,151,627         14,635,200          14,151,627 
Total expenses       369,234,811       353,230,083         14,635,200         14,151,627       383,870,011        367,381,710 
    
Transfers in (out)            (174,454)                        -                174,454                        -                          -                           -   
Increase (decrease) in net position         (2,711,977)         29,997,703              233,222                86,320         (2,478,755)         30,084,023 
Net position, beginning       411,624,236       387,085,341           4,857,050           4,770,730       416,481,286        391,856,071 
Adjustment for overstatement   
    of capital assets                        -           (5,458,808)                        -                          -                          -            (5,458,808)
Net position, ending  $   408,912,259  $   411,624,236  $       5,090,272  $       4,857,050  $   414,002,531   $   416,481,286 
                     
 
 
Total governmental activities generated revenues of $366.7 million while expenses in this category 
totaled $369.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2013.  Comparatively, revenues were $383.2 and 
expenses totaled 353.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2012.  After transfers to the business-type 
activities, the decrease in net position stands at $2.7 million at June 30, 2013, compared to a $29.9 million 
increase in 2012.  Instructional services expenses comprised 68.77% of total governmental activities 
expenses while system-wide support services made up 22.25% of those expenses for 2013.  County 
funding comprised 39.95% of total governmental revenue while unrestricted City funding added another 
.42% for 2013.  In 2012, County funding was 40.24% and unrestricted City funding added 1.53%.  Much 
of the remaining 59.63% of total governmental revenue for 2013 consists of restricted State and federal 
money.  This revenue represented 58.23% of total revenue in 2012.  Business-type activities generated 
revenue of $14.7 million and expenses of $14.6 million.  Net position increased in the business-type 
activities by $233,333, after transfers from the governmental activities of $174,454. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 

9 
 

Financial Analysis of the Board’s Funds 
 
Governmental Funds:  The focus of Durham Public Schools Board of Education’s governmental funds is 
to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources.  Such 
information is useful in assessing the Board’s financing requirements. 
 
The Board’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $42,416,197, a decrease of 
$3,263,373 from the previous year.  Of the Board’s governmental funds, the Local Current Expense Fund 
and School Activities Funds had revenues and other financing sources that exceeded expenditures and 
other uses.  Funding from the State increase approximately $3.9 million while federal and County funding 
decreased approximately $6.3 million and $7.6 million, respectively.  Expenditures decreased as well, and 
included over $7.9 million decrease in capital outlay. 
 
Proprietary Funds:  The Board’s business-type activities performed well in the past year.  The School 
Food Service Fund reflected an increase in net position over last year.  Operating revenues decreased 
$404,069 while operating expenses increased $483,573 from the previous year.  Nonoperating revenues 
brought about most of the increase in net position with increases in federal reimbursements and donated 
commodities.  The Board has aggressively sought federal reimbursements by improving the free and 
reduced lunch application approval process, fully utilized federal donated commodities, and carefully 
controlled costs while serving healthy and nutritious meals.  
 

 
 

Expenditures presented on modified accrual basis of accounting 
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General Fund Revenues 
 
Since the merger of the city and county school systems in 1992-93, General Fund revenues have 
increased 149.2% from a total of $46.3 million to $115.4 million.  These revenues have increased $2.3 
million from the prior year.  County appropriations and late property filings increased $3.0 while fines 
and forfeitures decreased $.7 million. 
 
General Fund Expenditures 
 
Counties are charged by statute with providing the funding for operations of local school systems.  Most 
counties provide additional funds beyond the operations allocation to supplement the instructional 
programs.  General Fund expenditures increased 1.3% in 2012-13 over the prior year to a total of 
$114,070,855.  The percentage of expenditures by function to total expenditures remained relatively 
consistent with prior years and slightly increased in the areas of Instructional Services and Non-
programmed charges.  Expenditures for Instruction Services increased by 6.2% due to a reallocation of 
resources into critical classroom areas. 
 

  
 
Federal and State Special Revenue Funds 
 
Substantially all State and federal revenues are accounted for in the State Public School Fund 
($173,503,774) and the Federal Grants Fund ($27,707,997).  This State and federal funding is primarily 
provided to the local education agencies on a per pupil basis.  State funding increased from the prior year 
by approximately $2.5 million.  Federal funding decreased from the prior year by $5.6 million due to the 
expiration of several federal ARRA grants.  Expenditures of these funds provide the basic instructional 
programs for all school systems in North Carolina.  Salaries and benefits account for 92.0% of all 
expenditures in these funds. 
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Capital Outlay Fund 
 
As the school building construction program (supported by the 2001, 2003, and 2007 voter-approved 
County bond referendum) approaches completion, the Board realized $29,554,012 in revenue from 
general obligation bonds issued by Durham County, and $1,370,000 from the County’s general 
appropriation.  Additionally, the State provided capital funds of $2,168,939 for installment financing 
related to the purchase of yellow buses and miscellaneous other local sources provided $540,628.  During 
the 2012-13 school year, Durham Public Schools opened Lucas Middle School and substantial 
improvements were made at Shepard Middle School, several elementary schools, and to the Fuller 
building.  The School for Creative Studies was also substantially completed at year end and opened 
subsequent to year end. 
 

Durham Public Schools Board of Education 
Schedule of Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 

as of June 30, 2013 
    
  Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government 
  6/30/2013 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2012 
    
Land  $      22,222,934   $      22,209,871  $                     -    $                     -    $      22,222,934   $      22,209,871 
Construction in Progress          48,675,723           46,457,726                         -                           -            48,675,723           46,457,726 
Buildings        218,422,973         229,185,365                         -                           -          218,422,973         229,185,365 
Building Improvements          97,468,090           84,656,644                         -                           -            97,468,090           84,656,644 
Furniture and Equipment            2,740,237             3,162,661               638,382               546,265            3,378,619             3,708,926 
Vehicles            4,233,120             2,488,265                   3,686                   3,686            4,236,806             2,491,951 
    
Total  $    393,763,077   $    388,160,532  $           642,068  $           549,951  $    394,405,145   $    388,710,483 
                     
 
Additional information about capital asset activities can be found in the notes of the financial statements:  
Note II, A – 4&5. 
   
School Activity Funds 
 
Due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the School Activity Funds are now being treated 
as a governmental fund type.  This fund consists of the revenues and expenditures of the activity funds of 
the 56 individual schools operated by the Board.  The individual school principals exercise significant 
authority over revenues and expenditures.  The activities of the schools that generate revenue consist of 
picture sales, field trips, athletic events, club fundraising, and other school functions. 
 
Proprietary Fund 
 
The proprietary fund operation consists of the School Food Service Fund.  The School Food Service Fund 
operates as an enterprise fund and provides meals to students and staff.  The School Food Service Fund 
reflected an increase in net assets of $233,222 in the current year.  Total net position is $5,090,272, of 
which $4,175,815 is cash and cash equivalents.  This financial position allows Durham Public Schools to 
maintain a strong Child Nutrition Program. 
 
Fiduciary Fund 
 
The private-purpose trust fund, the Della Bradsher Hedgepeth Memorial Scholarship Fund, is used to 
award scholarships based on established criteria.  An independent committee advises us when a 
scholarship is awarded to a student.  
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Budgetary Highlights 
 
Over the course of the year, the Board, as is normal, revised the budget several times to account for 
changes in revenue expectations and align categorical expenditures appropriately.  A brief summary of 
these amendments and budget to actual variances follows: 
 

• Current Expense Fund – A positive budget to actual variance of $2,849,770 was accomplished 
due to the increase in funding from the County of Durham. 

• Capital Outlay Fund – Construction projects are budgeted but revenues are only recorded as the 
funds are spent and drawn down.  Although budgeted revenues show a negative variance of 
$48,474,317, budgeted expenditures show a positive variance of $49,775,172 creating an overall 
positive budget to actual variance of $1,300,855. 

• Local Special Expense Fund – The fund realized a $545,696 increase in actual revenue over 
budgeted revenue.  This was due to additional e-rate, indirect cost, and miscellaneous other 
revenues being received.  Expenditures were also less than budgeted by $45,510.  This variance 
occurred in the area of teacher salaries and school administration salaries.  The total budget to 
actual variance was $591,206 which was a combination of additional revenues being received and 
less expenditures occurring. 

• Grants and Community Schools Special Revenue Fund - $340 budget to actual expenditure 
negative variance occurred since expenditures deferred from prior year were recognized in the 
current year.  Any funds unspent at year end are recorded as deferred revenue. 

 
Debt Outstanding 
 
During the year, the Board’s outstanding debt increased $1,712,610, with an ending balance of 
$3,491,154.  The debt for capital leases decreased due to continued payments.  The debt for installment 
purchases increased due to the purchase of 38 school buses and a computer server during the year.  Future 
debt service payments to retire the debt for the school buses will be funded by State revenues allotted for 
repayment of lease purchase contracts as authorized under G. S. 115C-528(a), Session Law 2003-284, 
Section 7.25.  The Board is limited by North Carolina General Statutes with regards to the types of debt it 
can issue and for what purpose that debt can be used. 
 
Additional information on the Board’s long-term debt can be found in Note II.B.6c of this report. 
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Economic Factors 

The Board experienced an decrease in enrollment of 164 students in the 2012-13 school year.  As our 
local housing market rebounds we continue to see an influx of families as is evidenced by meeting 
enrollment projections in last school year and the current school year 2013-14.  Over the next several 
years the Board will need continued increases in classroom space, teachers, and equipment.  County 
funding is a major source of income for the Board; therefore, the County’s economic outlook directly 
affects that of the school Board.   
 
The following factors have affected the economic outlook of Durham County. 
 
• The County’s unemployment rate decreased from 8.2% in June, 2012 to 7.5% in June, 2013.  The 

County’s unemployment rate remains high due to the recession and economic downturn.  The 
County’s rate compares favorably to the State’s rate at 8.8% and the national average of 7.6%. 

• Retail sales increased 11.1% despite the current economic environment.  2013 and 2012 retail sales for 
the County were approximately $4,925,320,533 and $4,434,078,534, respectively. 

• The population in Durham County continues to grow.  The population increased .59% in 2013.   
 
These factors, as well as the State’s budget situation and increased utility costs, were considered in 
preparing the Board’s budget for the 2012-13 fiscal year.  The 2013 fiscal year budget was created to 
maintain the offsetting effect of such economic factors, by cutting expenditures and reducing or 
eliminating services, while attempting to protect core instructional programs and the personnel associated 
with them. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This report is intended to provide a summary of the financial condition of Durham Public Schools Board 
of Education.  Questions or requests for additional information should be addressed to: 
 

Paul LeSieur, Interim Chief Financial Officer 
Durham Public Schools 
Post Office Box 30002 

Durham, North Carolina 27702 
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Exhibit 1

Governmental 
Activities

Business-Type 
Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 52,051,462$        4,175,815$          56,227,277$        
Other receivable, net 522,870              14,187                537,057              
Due from other governments 10,129,842          379,204              10,509,046          
Internal balances 32,658                (32,658)               -                          
Inventories 172,092              510,380              682,472              
Prepaid items 1,214,918           -                          1,214,918           

64,123,842          5,046,928           69,170,770          
Capital assets:
  Land and construction in progress 70,898,657          -                          70,898,657          
  Other capital assets, net of depreciation 322,864,420        642,068              323,506,488        
     Total capital assets 393,763,077        642,068              394,405,145        

Total assets 457,886,919        5,688,996           463,575,915        

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5,037,252           137,293              5,174,545           
Accrued salaries and wages payable 14,225,277          -                          14,225,277          
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 13,137,695          332,800              13,470,495          
Due in more than one year 14,515,546          28,731                14,544,277          

Total liabilities 46,915,770          498,824              47,414,594          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,058,890           99,900                2,158,790           

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 390,271,923        642,068              390,913,991        
Restricted for:

Stabilization by State statute 4,344,698           -                          4,344,698           
School capital outlay 1,027,644           -                          1,027,644           
Grants and scholarships 3,244,686           -                          3,244,686           
Individual schools 1,874,796           -                          1,874,796           

Unrestricted 8,148,512           4,448,204           12,596,716          

Total net position 408,912,259$     5,090,272$         414,002,531$      

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2013

Primary Government

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Functions / Programs Expenses
Charges for 

Services

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions

Capital
Grants and

Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:

Instructional services:
Regular instructional   131,522,037$   3,264,826$      98,248,626$    -$                    
Special populations    48,741,545      -                      42,914,892      -                      
Alternative programs   22,831,242      -                      20,080,214      -                      
School leadership    20,634,695      -                      11,542,043      -                      
Co-curricular    6,761,331        -                      5,063,550        -                      
School-based support   23,449,780      -                      14,093,603      -                      

System-wide support services:    
Support and development    2,596,395        -                      791,302           -                      
Special population support and    
   development    1,505,398        -                      1,041,118        -                      
Alternative programs and services   
   support and development   860,139           -                      278,132           -                      
Technology support    5,610,239        -                      281,835           -                      
Operational support    58,120,132      327,411           15,074,149      3,787               
Financial and human resource   6,201,320        -                      1,021,847        -                      
Accountability    1,519,428        -                      257,516           -                      
System-wide pupil support    1,665,663        -                      128,904           -                      
Policy, leadership and public relations  4,068,560        -                      1,351,930        -                      

Ancillary services   4,335,383        -                      195,298           -                      
Non-programmed charges   13,819,866      -                      995,055           -                      
Unallocated depreciation expense,    

excluding direct depreciation expense  14,991,658      -                      -                      -                      

Total governmental activities  369,234,811  3,592,237      213,360,014  3,787              

Business-type activities:   
Food services  14,635,200    2,308,001      12,373,727    -                     

Total business-type activities      14,635,200    2,308,001      12,373,727    -                     

Total primary government   383,870,011$  5,900,238$     225,733,741$  3,787$            

General revenues:
Unrestricted County appropriations - operating  
Unrestricted County appropriations - capital  
Unrestricted City appropriations - capital  
Unrestricted other County revenues - capital  
Investment earnings, unrestricted  
Miscellaneous, unrestricted  

Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers  

Change in net position    
Net position - beginning    

Net position - ending   

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Activities     

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  

Program Revenues



Exhibit 2

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

(30,008,585)$   -$                    (30,008,585)$   
(5,826,653)       -                      (5,826,653)       
(2,751,028)       -                      (2,751,028)       
(9,092,652)       -                      (9,092,652)       
(1,697,781)       -                      (1,697,781)       
(9,356,177)       -                      (9,356,177)       

(1,805,093)       -                      (1,805,093)       

(464,280)          -                      (464,280)          

(582,007)          -                      (582,007)          
(5,328,404)       -                      (5,328,404)       

(42,714,785)     -                      (42,714,785)     
(5,179,473)       -                      (5,179,473)       
(1,261,912)       -                      (1,261,912)       
(1,536,759)       -                      (1,536,759)       
(2,716,630)       -                      (2,716,630)       
(4,140,085)       -                      (4,140,085)       

(12,824,811)     -                      (12,824,811)     

(14,991,658)     -                      (14,991,658)     

(152,278,773)   -                      (152,278,773) 

-                      46,528             46,528           

-                      46,528             46,528           

(152,278,773)   46,528             (152,232,245) 

115,572,760    -                      115,572,760    
1,370,000        -                      1,370,000        
1,538,793        -                      1,538,793        

29,554,012      -                      29,554,012      
275,925           12,240             288,165           

1,429,760        -                      1,429,760        
(174,454)          174,454           -                      

149,566,796    186,694           149,753,490    

(2,711,977)       233,222           (2,478,755)       
411,624,236    4,857,050        416,481,286  

408,912,259$   5,090,272$      414,002,531$  

Primary Government

Net (Expenses) Revenue
and Changes in Net Position

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Exhibit 3

Non-major Funds
Local Current 

Expense           
Fund

State              
Public School       

Fund

Capital
Outlay
Fund

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total
Governmental 

Funds
ASSETS
  Cash and cash equivalents 40,015,808$            -$                            4,796,322$              7,239,332$              52,051,462$            
  Due from other governments 299,050                   6,063,006                3,285,788                481,998                   10,129,842              
  Other receivable, net 349,015                   -                              -                              173,855                   522,870                   
  Due from other funds 38,088                     -                              -                              171,501                   209,589                   
  Inventories 172,092                   -                              -                              -                          172,092                   
  Prepaid items 1,214,918                -                              -                              -                          1,214,918                

              Total assets 42,088,971$            6,063,006$              8,082,110$              8,066,686$              64,300,773$            

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
  Accounts payable and accrued
    expenses 1,258,420$              -$                            3,768,678$              10,154                     5,037,252$              
  Due to other funds 145,915                   -                              -                              31,016                     176,931                   
  Accrued salaries and wages payable 7,757,138                6,063,006                -                              405,133                   14,225,277              

              Total liabilities 9,161,473                6,063,006              3,768,678              446,303                  19,439,460            

Deferred inflows of resources 265,575                   -                              -                              2,179,541                2,445,116                

Fund balances:
  Nonspendable:

    Inventories 172,092                   -                              -                              -                          172,092                   
    Prepaid expenses 1,214,918                -                              -                              -                          1,214,918                
  Restricted:

    Stabilization by State statute 686,153                   -                              3,285,788                372,757                   4,344,698                
    School capital outlay -                              -                              1,027,644                -                              1,027,644                
    Grants and scholarships -                              -                              -                              3,244,686                3,244,686                
    Individual schools -                              -                              -                              1,874,796                1,874,796                
  Committed:

    Teacher and staff salaries 7,455,975                -                              -                              -                          7,455,975                
  Assigned:
    Self-insurance 3,385,031                -                              -                              -                          3,385,031                
  Unassigned 19,747,754              -                              -                              (51,397)                    19,696,357              

              Total fund balances 32,661,923              -                            4,313,432              5,440,842               42,416,197            

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fund balances 42,088,971$            6,063,006$              8,082,110$              8,066,686$              64,300,773$            

Reconciliation of the balance sheet to the statement of net position:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (Exhibit 1) are different because:

   Total fund balance - governmental funds 42,416,197$            

   Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported
      as assets in governmental funds.
        Cost of capital assets 624,583,920$          
        Accumulated depreciation (230,820,843)           393,763,077            

   Long-term liabilities, including capital leases, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
     are not reported as liabilities in the funds.  Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:
        Installment purchases (3,491,154)               
        Claims liability for retained risk (4,078,000)               
        Compensated absences payable (20,084,087)             (27,653,241)             

   Sales tax receivable deferred in the governmental funds 386,226                   

Net position of governmental activities 408,912,259$          

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

June 30, 2013

Major Funds

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Exhibit 4

Non-major Funds

Local Current 
Expense           

Fund

State              
Public School       

Fund

Capital
Outlay
Fund

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total
Governmental 

Funds

REVENUES
State of North Carolina -$                            173,503,774$          2,168,939$              1,398$                     175,674,111$          
Durham County 115,381,832            -                              30,924,012              -                              146,305,844            
City of Durham -                              -                              -                              190,928                   190,928                   
U.S. Government -                              -                              -                              29,467,024              29,467,024              
Other 1,538,793                -                              540,628                   14,170,552              16,249,973              

      Total revenues 116,920,625            173,503,774            33,633,579              43,829,902              367,887,880            

EXPENDITURES
Current:
  Instructional services:
    Regular instructional 35,341,197             90,461,996            -                            4,118,335                129,921,528          
    Special populations 5,010,815               35,966,714            -                            7,170,874                48,148,403            
    Alternative programs 2,425,712               8,431,382              -                            11,696,311              22,553,405            
    School leadership 8,349,991               10,801,735            -                            1,231,862                20,383,588            
    Co-curricular 1,708,164               -                            -                            4,970,887                6,679,051              
    School-based support 9,034,444               10,056,105            -                            4,073,867                23,164,416            
  System-wide support services:
    Support and development 1,772,930               535,667                 -                            256,202                   2,564,799              
    Special population support and development 445,961                  193,519                 -                            847,599                   1,487,079              
    Alternative programs and services
      support and development 571,539                  2,038                     -                            276,094                   849,671                 
    Technology  support 2,739,304               281,835                 -                            2,520,828                5,541,967              
    Operational support 21,449,017             13,662,126            -                            7,986,298                43,097,441            
    Financial and human resource 5,095,495               1,020,691              -                            9,669                       6,125,855              
    Accountability 1,243,423               257,516                 -                            -                             1,500,939              
    System-wide pupil support 1,468,575               128,904                 -                            47,915                     1,645,394              
    Policy, leadership and public relations 2,624,355               1,344,437              -                            50,257                     4,019,049              
  Ancillary services 1,148,952               184,655                 -                            3,001,776                4,335,383              
  Non-programmed charges 13,623,959             -                            -                            796,259                   14,420,218            
  Capital outlay -                              -                              36,226,962              -                              36,226,962              
  Debt service:
    Principal repayments 17,022                    -                            3,186,367              -                             3,203,389              
    Interest -                             -                            85,733                   85,733                   

      Total expenditures 114,070,855            173,329,320            39,499,062              49,055,033              375,954,270            

      Revenues over (under) expenditures 2,849,770                174,454                   (5,865,483)               (5,225,131)               (8,066,390)               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers to other funds -                              (174,454)                  -                              -                              (174,454)                  
Installment purchase obligations issued -                              -                              4,915,999                -                              4,915,999                

      Total other financing sources (uses) -                              (174,454)                  4,915,999                -                              4,741,545                

Appropriated fund balance -                              -                              31,003                     -                              31,003                     

      Net change in fund balance 2,849,770                -                              (918,481)                  (5,225,131)               (3,293,842)               

FUND BALANCES
Beginning of year 29,781,684              -                              5,231,913                10,665,973              45,679,570              

Increase in reserve for inventories 30,469                     -                              -                              -                              30,469                     

End of year 32,661,923$            -$                            4,313,432$              5,440,842$              42,416,197$            

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  

Major Funds

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Exhibit 4
(Continued)

Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
 to the statement of activities:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit 2) are
  different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds (3,293,842)$     

Change in fund balances due to change in reserve for inventory 30,469             

     Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
       However, for governmental activities those costs are allocated over their estimated useful 
       lives as annual depreciation expenses in the statement of activities.  This is the amount by 
       which capital outlays exceed depreciation in the period.

          Depreciation expense (16,769,883)$   
          Capital outlays 22,701,917      5,932,034        

    Loss on disposal of capital assets (329,489)          

    In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses - compensated absences (vacations) - are
       measured by the amounts earned during the year.  In the governmental funds, however,
       expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially,
       the amounts actually paid.

          This year, vacation used was less than the amounts earned (2,504,196)       

          Estimated liabilities for retained risks increased during the year (809,000)          

    The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while 
       the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of  
       governmental funds.  Neither transaction has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds  
       report the effect of premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued,  whereas 
       these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.  This amount is the  
       net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.  

          Proceeds from the issuance of debt (4,915,999)       
          Repayment of debt 3,203,389        (1,712,610)       

    Increase in deferred revenues for sales tax receivable reported in the governmental funds (25,343)            

Total changes in net position of governmental activities (2,711,977)$    

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Exhibit 5

Variance with Final
Actual Budget - Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES

Durham County 115,381,832$        115,381,832$        115,381,832$        -$                         
Other:

Fines and forfeitures 1,500,000              1,500,000              1,538,793              38,793                     

Total revenues 116,881,832          116,881,832          116,920,625          38,793                     

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instructional services:
  Regular instructional 32,932,340            35,763,702            35,341,197            422,505                   
  Special populations 5,687,372              5,038,640              5,010,815              27,825                     
  Alternative programs 1,773,394              2,581,669              2,425,712              155,957                   
  School leadership 3,124,478              8,353,462              8,349,991              3,471                       
  Co-curricular 1,729,181              1,709,156              1,708,164              992                          
  School-based support 6,936,551              9,037,302              9,034,444              2,858                       
System-wide support services:
  Support and development 6,156,870              1,805,764              1,772,930              32,834                     
  Special population support and development 515,889                 445,979                 445,961                 18                            
  Alternative programs and services support
     and development 309,726                 607,805                 571,539                 36,266                     
  Technology support 5,106,958              2,749,722              2,739,304              10,418                     
  Operational support 30,164,745            22,847,060            21,449,017            1,398,043                
  Financial and human resource 3,819,300              5,141,470              5,095,495              45,975                     
  Accountability 1,437,130              1,247,260              1,243,423              3,837                       
  System-wide pupil support 1,222,123              1,483,034              1,468,575              14,459                     
  Policy, leadership, and public relations 2,290,420              2,629,491              2,624,355              5,136                       
Ancillary services 579,049                 1,176,844              1,148,952              27,892                     
Non-programmed charges 13,079,284            14,246,450            13,623,959            622,491                   

Debt service on capital leases:
Principal 17,022                   17,022                   17,022                   -                               

Total expenditures 116,881,832          116,881,832          114,070,855          2,810,977                

Revenues over expenditures -                            -                            2,849,770              2,849,770                

Net change in fund balance -$                         -$                         2,849,770             2,849,770$             

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year 29,781,684          

Increase in reserve for inventories 30,469                  

End of year 32,661,923$         

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  

Budgeted Amounts

Local Current Expense Fund

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Exhibit 6

Variance with Final
Actual Budget - Positve

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES

State of North Carolina 170,024,357$            174,802,270$            173,503,774$            (1,298,496)$                

Total revenues 170,024,357              174,802,270              173,503,774              (1,298,496)                  

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instructional services:
  Regular instructional 97,199,027                91,242,125                90,461,996                780,129                       
  Special populations 30,845,987                35,996,091                35,966,714                29,377                         
  Alternative programs 7,105,040                  8,431,593                  8,431,382                  211                              
  School leadership 9,029,584                  10,871,182                10,801,735                69,447                         
  School-based support 9,927,568                  10,186,298                10,056,105                130,193                       
System-wide support services:
  Support and development 550,487                     535,671                     535,667                     4                                  
  Special population support and development 571,552                     193,522                     193,519                     3                                  
  Alternative programs and services support
     and development 76,968                       2,038                         2,038                         -                                  
  Technology support 32,500                       314,338                     281,835                     32,503                         
  Operational support 10,406,632                13,662,133                13,662,126                7                                  
  Financial and human resource 2,215,398                  1,020,696                  1,020,691                  5                                  
  Accountability 413,568                     501,532                     257,516                     244,016                       
  System-wide pupil support 42,087                       141,491                     128,904                     12,587                         
  Policy, leadership, and public relations 1,358,648                  1,344,441                  1,344,437                  4                                  
Ancillary services 128,928                     184,661                     184,655                     6                                  

Total expenditures 169,903,974              174,627,812              173,329,320              1,298,492                    

Revenues over (under) expenditures 120,383                     174,458                     174,454                     (4)                                

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers to other funds (120,383)                    (174,458)                    (174,454)                    4                                  

Total other financing sources (uses) (120,383)                    (174,458)                    (174,454)                    4                                  

Net change in fund balance -$                           -$                           -                                 -$                            

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year -                                 

End of year -$                               

Budgeted Amounts

State Public School Fund

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Exhibit 7

Major Fund
School Food
Service Fund

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 4,175,815$         
Accounts receivable, net 14,187                
Due from other governments 379,204              
Inventories 510,380              

                  Total current assets 5,079,586           

Noncurrent assets:
Furniture and equipment, net 642,068              

                  Total assets 5,721,654           

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 137,293              
Due to other funds 32,658                
Compensated absences 332,800              

                  Total current liabilities 502,751              

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 28,731                

                  Total liabilities 531,482              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 99,900                

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 642,068              
Unrestricted:

Undesignated 4,448,204           

                  Total net position 5,090,272$         

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2013

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Exhibit 8

 Major Fund
School Food
Service Fund

OPERATING REVENUES
Food sales 2,308,001$          

           Total operating revenues 2,308,001            

OPERATING EXPENSES
Food costs:
   Purchase of food 4,989,004            
   Donated commodities 730,231               
Salaries and benefits 7,299,234            
Indirect costs 763,708               
Materials and supplies 521,678               
Repairs and maintenance 171,850               
Depreciation 87,134                 
Contracted services 367                      
Other 71,994                 

           Total operating expenses 14,635,200          

           Operating loss (12,327,199)         

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Federal reimbursements 11,537,008          
Federal donated commodities 811,715               
State reimbursements 25,004                 
Interest earned 12,240                 

           Total nonoperating revenues 12,385,967          

Income before contributions and transfers 58,768                 

Transfers from other funds 174,454               

           Change in net position 233,222               

NET POSITION
Beginning of year 4,857,050            

End of year 5,090,272$          

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Exhibit 9

Major Fund
School Food
Service Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers 2,293,816$          
Cash paid for goods and services (6,477,923)           
Cash paid to employees for services (7,076,600)           

              Net cash used by operating activities (11,260,707)         

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Federal reimbursements 11,646,712          
State reimbursements 25,004                 

              Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 11,671,716          

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets (179,250)              

              Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (179,250)              

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 12,240                 

              Net cash provided from investing activities 12,240                 

              Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 243,999               

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 3,931,816            

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 4,175,815$          

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
Proprietary Fund

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Exhibit 9
(Continued)

Major Fund
School Food
Service Fund

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
   used by operating activities:

Operating loss (12,327,199)$       

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
   cash used by operating activities:

  Depreciation 87,134                 
  Donated commodities consumed 811,715               
  Salaries paid by other fund 174,454               

Changes in assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources:
  (Increase) decrease in:
      Accounts receivable (14,185)                
      Inventories (83,227)                
  Increase (decrease) in:
      Accounts payable and accrued expenses 25,792                 
      Compensated absences 48,180                 
      Deferred inflows of resources 16,629                 

              Total adjustments 1,066,492            

              Net cash used by operating activities (11,260,707)$       

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:

The School Food Service Fund received donated commodities with a value of $811,715 during the fiscal
year. The receipt of the commodities is recognized as a nonoperating revenue. The fund recorded the
consumption of $730,231 worth of donated commodities during the fiscal year as an operating expense.
These transactions are reported on Exhibit 8. 

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
Proprietary Fund

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Exhibit 10

Della Bradsher 
Hedgepeth 
Memorial 

Scholarship 
Fund

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 37,136$               

                  Total assets 37,136$              

NET POSITION

Held in trust for scholarships 15,000$               
Unassigned 22,136                 

                  Total net position 37,136$              

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Private-Purpose Trust
June 30, 2013

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Exhibit 11

Della Bradsher 
Hedgepeth 
Memorial 

Scholarship 
Fund

ADDITIONS
 Interest on investments 17$                      

DEDUCTIONS
Scholarships awarded 1,000                   

                  Change in net assets (983)                     

NET POSITION
Beginning of year 38,119                 

End of year 37,136$               

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Private-Purpose Trust
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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I) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The accounting policies of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina conform to 
generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments.  The following is a summary of the 
more significant accounting policies: 

 
A)  Reporting Entity 

 
The Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina (Board) is a Local Education Agency 
empowered by State law [Chapter 115C of the North Carolina General Statutes] with the responsibility to 
oversee and control all activities related to public school education in Durham County, North Carolina.  The 
Board receives State, local, and federal government funding and must adhere to the legal requirements of 
each funding entity.   
 
The Board is governed by a seven-member governing body elected by the citizens of Durham County.  The 
County provides approximately 38% of the total funding for the Board and has the authority to control how 
this funding is spent.  However, beyond this, the County does not have legal authority over the Board’s 
budget.  Accordingly, the Board is not considered to be a component unit of Durham County. 
 

B) Basis of Presentation 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities 
present information about the Board.  These statements include the financial activities of the overall 
government, except for fiduciary activities.  Eliminations have been made to minimize the effect of internal 
activities upon revenues and expenses.  These statements distinguish between the governmental and 
business-type activities of the Board.  Governmental activities generally are financed through 
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions.  Business-type activities are financed in 
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 
 
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the 
different business-type activities of the Board and for each function of the Board’s governmental activities.  
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and; therefore, are 
clearly identifiable to a particular function.  Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds 
have been reversed for the statement of activities.  Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the 
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.  Revenues that are not classified as 
program revenues are presented as general revenues. 
 
Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Board’s funds, 
including its fiduciary fund.  Separate statements for each fund category – governmental, proprietary, and 
fiduciary – are presented.  The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and 
enterprise funds, each of which is displayed in a separate column.  All remaining governmental and 
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.  The fiduciary fund is presented separately. 

 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund.  Exchange transactions are those in which each party 
receives and gives up essentially equal values.  Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment 
earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 
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I) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

B) Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 
The Board reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Board.  The General Fund accounts 
for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund.  This fund is the 
“Local Current Expense Fund,” which is mandated by State law [G.S. 115C-426].   
 
State Public School Fund: The State Public School Fund includes appropriations from the Department of 
Public Instruction for the current operating expenditures of the public school system. 
 
Capital Outlay Fund: The Capital Outlay Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and 
trust funds) and is reported as a capital projects fund.  It is mandated by State law [G.S.115C-426].  Capital 
projects are funded by Durham County appropriations, restricted sales tax monies, proceeds of Durham 
County bonds issued for public school construction, lottery proceeds, as well as certain State assistance. 

 
The Board reports the following major enterprise fund: 
 
School Food Service Fund: The School Food Service Fund is used to account for the food service program 
within the school system and is reported as an enterprise fund. 

 
 The Board reports the following fiduciary fund: 
 

Private-Purpose Trust: The Board has one Private-Purpose Trust, the Della Bradsher Hedgepeth Memorial 
Scholarship Fund.  Interest earned on the principal is to be used to award scholarships according to the 
criteria set forth in the scholarship fund agreement. 
 

C) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 

Government-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: The government-wide, 
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at 
the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange 
transactions, in which the Board gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value 
in exchange, include grants and donations.  Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal 
year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are 
recognized when measurable and available.  The Board considers all revenues reported in the governmental 
funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. These could include 
federal, State, and County grants, and some charges for services.  Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred, except for claims and judgments and compensated absences, which are recognized 
as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds.  Acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing 
sources.  
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I) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

C) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
 

Under the terms of grant agreements, the Board funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants and general revenues.  Thus when program expenses are incurred, there are both 
restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program.  It is the Board’s policy to first apply 
cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs and then general revenues.  
 

D) Budgetary Data 
 

The Board’s budgets are adopted as required by North Carolina General Statutes.  Annual budgets are 
adopted for all funds, except for the school activity funds and private-purpose trust fund, as required by 
North Carolina General Statutes.  No budget is required by State law for individual school funds.  All 
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.  All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the functional level within funds for all 
annually budgeted funds.  The Finance Officer, with the approval of the Superintendent, is authorized by the 
governing Board to transfer appropriations within a fund.  Such transfers must be reported to the governing 
board at its next regular meeting.  Transfers between funds require governing board approval.  Amendments 
which alter the County appropriation or transfer monies between the Local Current Expense Fund and the 
Capital Outlay Fund require the approval of the Durham County Board of Commissioners.  During the year, 
significant amendments to the budget were necessary and were appropriately approved by the Board. 
 
A budget calendar is included in G.S. 115C, Article 31, and prescribes the last day on which certain steps of 
the budget procedure are to be performed.  The following schedule lists the tasks to be performed and the 
date each is required to be completed. 
 

May 1 The Superintendent must submit the budget request along with a copy of the budget message 
to the Board of Education not later than May 1. 

 
May 15 The Board of Education should make changes, if necessary, to the budget request as 

submitted by the Superintendent and forward an approved budget request to the Board of 
County Commissioners not later than May 15, unless the County Commissioners have 
established a later date. 

 
July 1 The Board of County Commissioners must complete its actions on the school budget not 

later than July 1, unless a later date is agreed upon between the Board of Education and the 
County Commissioners. 

 
Month 
of July The Board of Education must adopt its balanced budget resolution after the Board of County 

Commissioners has decided upon the amount of appropriations to be provided by the County 
or after the appeal procedures as set forth in State law [G.S. 115C-431]. 
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I) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

D) Budgetary Data (Continued) 
 
As required by State law, the Board maintains encumbrance accounts which are considered to be “budgetary 
accounts.”  Encumbrances outstanding at year end represent the estimated amounts of the expenditures 
ultimately to result if unperformed contracts-in-process at year end are completed.  Encumbrances 
outstanding at year end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. If any, these encumbrances outstanding 
are reported as restricted within “Stabilization by State Statute” in the fund balance section of the balance 
sheet – governmental funds.  Encumbrances are reappropriated in the subsequent fiscal year since 
appropriations lapse at year end. At June 30, 2013, the Board has no outstanding encumbrances.   
 

E)  Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Equity 
 

1)  Deposits and Investments 
 

All deposits of the Board are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by 
State law [G.S. 115C-444].  The Board may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings 
association whose principal office is located in North Carolina.  Also, the Board may establish time deposit 
accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.  The 
Board also has money credited in its name with the State Treasurer and may issue State warrants against 
these funds.  
 
State law [G.S. 115C-443] authorizes the Board to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations 
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North 
Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of certain 
non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; 
the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT), an SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual 
fund; and the North Carolina State Treasurer’s Short Term Investment Fund (STIF).   
 
The STIF is managed by the staff of the Department of State Treasurer and operated in accordance with state 
laws and regulations.  It is not registered with the SEC.  It consists of an internal portion and an external 
portion in which the Board participates.  Investments are restricted to those enumerated in G.S. 147-69.1. 
 
The Board’s investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices.  The NCCMT 
Cash Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT’s share price.  The STIF securities 
are reported at cost and maintain a constant $1 per share value.  Under the authority of G.S. 147-69.3, no 
unrealized gains or losses of the STIF are distributed to external participants of the fund. 
 

2)  Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

The Board pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize 
investment income.  Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered 
cash and cash equivalents. 
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I) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

E)  Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Equity (Continued) 
 

3) Inventories 
 

The inventories of the Board are valued at cost and the Board uses the first-in, first-out (FIFO) flow 
assumption in determining cost.  The inventories of the Board’s General Fund consist of expendable 
materials and supplies, which are recorded as expenditures when purchased.  The General Fund inventories 
do not reflect current appropriable resources and, thus, an equivalent portion of fund balance is reserved. 
 
Proprietary Fund inventories consist of food and supplies and are recorded as expenses when consumed. 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 

4)  Prepaid items 
 

Regular expenses to the Board are recognized in the period in which they incur.  Prepaid expenses include 
insurance, services not yet received, and operating supplies when payment is made before the end of the 
fiscal year.  Revenues are recognized when the corresponding liabilities and expenses are incurred. 
 

5)  Capital Assets 
 

The Board's capital assets are recorded at original cost.  Donated assets are listed at their estimated fair value 
at the date of donation or forfeiture.  Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful 
lives of the related capital assets. 

 
It is the policy of the Board to capitalize all capital assets costing more than $5,000 with an estimated useful 
life of two or more years.  In addition, other items, which are purchased and used in large quantities such as 
student desks, including library books and materials are capitalized. The library collections consist of large 
numbers of books with modest values; the composite depreciation method has been used as discussed GASB 
35, para 163-166.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 
 
Durham County holds title to certain properties which are reflected as capital assets in the financial 
statements of the Board. The properties have been deeded to the County to permit installment purchase 
financing of acquisition and construction costs and to permit the County to receive refunds of sales tax paid 
for construction costs.  Agreements between the County and the Board gives the schools full use of the 
facilities, full responsibility for maintenance of the facilities, and provides that the County will convey title 
of the property back to the Board once all restrictions of the financing agreements and all sales tax 
reimbursement requirements have been met. 
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I) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

E)  Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Equity (Continued) 
 

5)  Capital Assets (Continued) 
 

Capital assets, excluding land and construction in progress, are depreciated using the straight-line method 
over the following estimated useful lives: 
 
 Buildings 20 to 50 years 
 Building improvements 20 years 
 Equipment and furniture 5 to 20 years 
 Vehicles 8 years 
 
Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. 
 
Depreciation for buildings and equipment that serve multiple purposes cannot be allocated ratably and is 
therefore reported as “unallocated depreciation” on the statement of activities. 
 

6)  Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as 
revenue until then.  The Board has items that meet this criterion consisting of sales tax refunds receivable in 
the Local Current Expense Fund, Grant and Community Schools Special Revenue Fund, Federal Grants 
Fund, Local Special Expense Fund, School Activity Funds, and School Food Service Fund and grants and 
scholarships receivable in the Grant and Community Schools Special Revenue Fund. 

 
7)  Long-term Obligations 

 
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities. 

 
8)  Compensated Absences 

 
The Board follows the State’s policy for vacation and sick leave.  Employees may accumulate up to thirty 
(30) days earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the Board, the current 
portion of the accumulated vacation pay is not considered to be material. The Board’s liability for 
accumulated earned vacation and salary-related payments as of June 30, 2013 is recorded in the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements on a FIFO basis. An estimate of the current portion of 
compensated absences based on prior years’ records has been made. 
 
The sick leave policy of the Board provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave.  Sick leave 
does not vest, but unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination 
of length of service for retirement benefit purposes.  Since the Board has no obligation for accumulated sick 
leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made. 
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I) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

E)  Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Equity (Continued) 
 

9)  Net Position/Fund Balances 
 
Net Position 
Net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as net 
investment in capital assets, restricted; and unrestricted.  Restricted net position represents constraints on 
resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of 
other governments, or imposed by law through State statute. 

 
Fund Balance 
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications designed to 
disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.   
 
The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

 
Nonspendable Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are 
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  
 

Inventories - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the year-
end balance of ending inventories, which are not spendable resources.  

 
Prepaid expenses - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the 
year-end balance of assets held for prepaid items, which are not spendable resources.  

 
Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes 
externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.  
 

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute - portion of fund balance that is restricted by State 
Statute [G.S. 115C-425(a)]. 
 
Restricted for School Capital Outlay – portion of fund balance that can only be used for School 
Capital Outlay [G.S. 159-18 through 22]. 

 
Restricted for Grants and Scholarships - revenue sources restricted for distribution as described per 
their original intent from the source for which they were received.  

 
Restricted for Individual Schools - revenue sources restricted for expenditures for the various clubs 
and organizations, athletic events, and various fund raising activities for which they were collected.  

 
Committed Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that can only be used for a specific purpose imposed by a 
majority vote by quorum of the Board of Education’s governing body (highest level of decision-making 
authority) and in certain instances approval by the County’s governing body is required. Any changes or 
removal of specific purpose requires majority action by the governing bodies that approved the original 
action.  
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I) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

E)  Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Equity (Continued) 
 

9)  Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued) 
 
Assigned Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that Durham Public Schools Board of Education intends to 
use for specific purposes. 

 
Subsequent year’s expenditures - portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next year’s 
budget that is not already classified in restricted or committed. The governing body approves the 
appropriation; however the budget ordinance authorizes the Chief Finance Officer to recommend 
modifications of the appropriations within funds for approval by the governing body.   

 
Unassigned Fund Balance - the portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned 
to specific purposes or other funds.  
 
Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina has a revenue spending policy that provides 
guidance for programs with multiple revenue sources. The Chief Finance Officer will use resources in the 
following hierarchy: bond proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local non-board of education funds, board of 
education funds. For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are to be spent from restricted 
fund balance first, followed in-order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned 
fund balance. The Chief Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best 
interest of the Board of Education.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

 
 

35 
 

I) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

E)  Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Equity (Continued) 
 

10)  Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

a) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide 
statement of net position. 

 
 The governmental funds balance sheet includes a reconciliation between total fund balance of the 

governmental funds and net position of the governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of net position.  The net adjustment of $366,496,062 consists of several elements as follows: 
 
              Description             Amount 
      
 Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and   
 are therefore not reported in the funds (total capital assets on government-  
 wide statement in governmental activities column)     $   624,583,920
  Less: Accumulated depreciation       (230,820,843)
 Net capital assets         393,763,077
        
 Liabilities that, because they are not due and payable in the current period, do  
 not require current resources to pay and are therefore not recorded in the  
 fund statements:     
  Installment purchases           (3,491,154)
  Claims liability for retained risk          (4,078,000)
  Compensated absences        (20,084,087)
  Sales tax receivable, deferred              386,226
        
 Total adjustment      $   366,496,062
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I) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

E)  Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Equity (Continued) 
 

10)  Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
b) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 

changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities. 
 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances – total governmental funds and changes in net position 
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities.  There are several 
elements of that total adjustment of $581,865 as follows: 
 

 Description   Amount   
      

 Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements but capitalized as  
 assets in the statement of activities   $    22,701,917
      
 Depreciation expense, the allocation of those assets over their useful lives, that  
 is recorded on the statement of activities, but not in the fund statements       (16,769,883)
      
 New debt issued during the year is recorded as a source of funds on the fund  
 statements; it has no effect on the statement of activities - it affects only the  
 government-wide statement of net position          (4,915,999)
      
 Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of funds on the fund  
 statements but affect only the statement of net position in the government-  
 wide statements           3,203,389
      
 Expenses reported in the statement of activities that do not require the use of  
 current resources to pay are not recorded as expenditures in the fund statements:  
  Difference in compensated absences that are accrued in the government-wide  
   statements but not in the fund statements because they do not use current  
   resources         (2,504,196)
      
  Loss on disposal of assets            (329,489)
      
  Estimated liabilities for retained risks increased during the year            (809,000)
      
 Revenues reported in the statement of activities that do not provide current   
 resources are not recorded as revenues in the fund statements:  
      
  Decrease in deferred revenue for sales tax receivable reported in the  
   governmental funds            (25,343)
      
  Adjustment due to the use of the consumption method of recording inventory  
   in the government-wide statements             30,469
      
 Total adjustment   $         581,865
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II)  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 

A)  Assets 
 

1)  Deposits 
 

All of the Board's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods.  Under the 
dedicated method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage level are 
collateralized with securities held by the Board's agent in the Board’s name.  Under the pooling method, 
which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State 
Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer.  Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary 
capacity for the Board, these deposits are considered to be held by the Board’s agent in the Board’s name.  
The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing 
deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits.  Depositories using the pooling 
method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits.  
The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the Board or with the escrow agent.  Because 
of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the Board under the pooling method, 
the potential exists for under-collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows.  
However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each 
depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. The Board has no policy 
regarding custodial credit risk for deposits. 
 
At June 30, 2013, the Board had deposits with banks with a carrying amount of $10,538,869 and with the 
State Treasurer of $0.  The bank balances with financial institutions and the State Treasurer were 
$13,623,496 and $295,102, respectively. Of these balances, $501,420 was covered by federal depository 
insurance and $13,417,178 was covered by collateral held by authorized escrow agents in the name of the 
State Treasurer. 
 

2)  Investments 
 
At June 30, 2013, the Board of Education had $3,707,844 invested with the North Carolina Capital 
Management Trust’s Cash Portfolio which carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. 
There was $42,017,700 invested with the State Treasurer in the Short Term Investment Fund (STIF).  The 
STIF is unrated and had a weighted average maturity of 1.6 years at June 30, 2013.  The Board has no 
policy for managing interest rate risk or credit risk. 
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II)  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

A)  Assets (Continued) 
 

3)  Accounts Receivable 
 

Receivables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2013, were as follows: 
 
      Net 

 Due from (to) 
  Other Funds   Due from 
  (Internal   Other 
  Balances)  Governments  Other   Total  
Governmental activities: 
 Local Current Expense Fund  $ (107,827) $ 299,050 $ 349,015 $ 540,238 
 Other governmental  
  activities   140,485  9,830,792     173,855  10,145,132 
 

   Total  $ 32,658 $ 10,129,842 $ 522,870 $ 10,685,370 
 

Business-type activities: 
 School Food Service Fund  $ (32,658) $ 379,204 $ 14,187 $ 360,733 
 

Due from other governments consists of the following: 
 

Governmental activities: 
 Local Current Expense Fund  $ 299,050 Net sales tax revenue from State 
 State Public School Fund   6,063,006 11th and 12th installments due from NCDPI 
 Capital Outlay Fund   3,285,788 Appropriations from County 

Grant and Community Schools 
Special Revenue Fund   8,256 Sales tax revenue from State 

 Federal Grants Fund   405,133 11th and 12th installments due from NCDPI 
    49,464 Sales tax revenue from State 

Local Special Expense Fund   19,145 Sales tax revenue from State 
 

 Total   $10,129,842 
 
Business-type activities: 
 School Food Service Fund  $ 379,204 USDA and Summer Feeding programs 
             

 All receivables are expected to be collected within one year. 
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II)  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

A)  Assets (Continued) 
 

4)  Capital Assets  
 

Capital asset activity for the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows: 
 

  Beginning 
Balances 

 
Additions 

 Disposals/ 
Transfers 

 Ending 
Balances 

Governmental activities:         
    Capital assets not being              
      depreciated: 

        

        Land  $  22,209,871 $                   -   $      13,063   $   22,222,934 
        Construction in progress  46,457,726  18,208,311  (15,990,314)    48,675,723  
           Total capital assets not         
                being depreciated            

 
68,667,597  18,208,311  

  
(15,977,251) 70,898,657  

   
Capital assets being depreciated:   
       Buildings  395,823,089 - (366,202)  395,456,887  
       Building improvements  101,998,518  40,153  15,977,251 118,015,922  
       Furniture and equipment  11,689,057   951,596  (1,273,066)  11,367,587  
       Vehicles  26,248,287  3,523,080  (926,500)  28,844,867  
           Total capital assets 
               being depreciated 

 
535,758,951 4,514,829  13,411,483  553,685,263  

   
Less accumulated depreciation for:   
       Buildings  166,637,724 10,622,464  (226,274)  177,033,914  
       Building improvements  17,341,874  3,205,958  -  20,547,832  
       Furniture and equipment  8,526,396  1,163,236  (1,062,282)  8,627,350  
       Vehicles  23,760,022  1,778,225  (926,500)  24,611,747  
       Total accumulated     
           depreciation 

 
216,266,016 16,769,883  (2,215,056)  230,820,843  

          Total capital assets being 
              depreciated, net 

 
319,492,935  322,864,420  

         
Governmental activity capital  
       assets, net 

 
$388,160,532    $ 393,763,077 

 
 
Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows: 
 
 Unallocated depreciation    $ 14,991,658 
 Operational support services         1,778,225 
 
   Total    $ 16,769,883 
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II)  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

A)  Assets (Continued) 
 

4)  Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
  Beginning         Ending 
  Balances   Additions   Disposals   Balances  
Business-type activities: 
 School Food Service Fund 
  Capital assets being depreciated: 
   Furniture and equipment  $ 3,122,312 $ 179,250 $ - $ 3,301,562 
   Vehicles   193,626  -  -  193,626 
  Total capital assets being 
       depreciated   3,315,938 $ 179,250 $ -  3,495,188 

   
  Less accumulated depreciation for:  

   Furniture and equipment   2,576,047 $ 87,133 $ -  2,663,180 
   Vehicles   189,940  -  -  189,940 
  Total accumulated depreciation   2,765,987 $ 87,133 $ -  2,853,120 
 School Food Service Fund 
  capital assets, net  $ 549,951     $ 642,068 
 

5)  Construction Commitments 
 

The Board has entered into several planned construction projects for school construction and 
improvements as of June 30, 2013.  These projects with a cumulative value of approximately 
$310,876,955 are evidenced by contractual commitments with various contractors on approved 
budgeted amounts.  As of June 30, 2013, the total remaining commitments under these contracts are 
approximately $34,722,066.  The projects are commitments of the Capital Outlay Fund which will be 
funded primarily from the proceeds of County-issued general obligation bonds, as well as other 
general County and State revenues. 
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II)  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

B) Liabilities 
 

1)  Pension Plan and Other Postemployment Obligations 
 

a) Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System 
 

Plan Description.  The Durham Public Schools Board of Education contributes to the statewide Teachers’ 
and State Employees’ Retirement System (TSERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 
pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina.  TSERS provides retirement benefits to plan 
members and beneficiaries.  Article 1 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend 
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.  The Teachers’ and State Employees’ 
Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of 
North Carolina.  The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information 
for TSERS.  That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail 
Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454. 
 
Funding Policy.  Plan members are required to contribute 6% of their annual covered salary and the Board 
is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate.  The current rate is 8.33% of annual covered 
payroll.  The contribution requirements of plan members and the Durham Public Schools Board of 
Education are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly.  The Board’s 
contributions to TSERS for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, were $14,918,550, 
$12,656,502, and $8,098,495, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

 
 b) Other Postemployment Benefits 
 

Healthcare Benefits 
 

Plan Description.  The postemployment healthcare benefits are provided through a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit plan administered by the Executive Administrator and the Board of Trustees of 
the Comprehensive Major Medical Plan (the Plan).  The Executive Administrator and the Board of Trustees 
of the Plan establishes premium rates except as may be established by the General Assembly in an 
appropriation act.  The Plan’s benefit and contribution provisions are established by Chapter 135-7, Article 
1, and Chapter 135, Article 3 of the General Statutes and may be amended only by the North Carolina 
General Assembly.  By General Statute, the Plan accumulates contributions from employers and any 
earnings on those contributions in the Retiree Health Benefit Fund.  These assets shall be used to provide 
health benefits to retired and disabled employees and their applicable beneficiaries.  These contributions are 
irrevocable.  Also, by law, these assets are not subject to the claims of creditors of the employers making 
contributions to the Plan. 
 
The State of North Carolina issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the State’s Comprehensive Major Medical Plan (also, referred 
to as the State Health Plan).  An electronic version of this report is available by accessing the North 
Carolina Office of the State Controller’s Internet home page http://www.ncosc.net/ and clicking on 
“Financial Reports”, or by calling the State Controller’s Financial Reporting Section at (919) 981-5454. 



DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

 
 

42 
 

II)  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

B) Liabilities (Continued) 
 
1)  Pension Plan and Other Postemployment Obligations (Continued) 

 
b) Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 
 

Healthcare Benefits (Continued) 
 

Funding Policy.  The Comprehensive Major Medical Plan is administered by the Executive Administrator 
and Board of Trustees of the Plan, which establish premium rates except as may be established by the 
General Assembly in an appropriation act.  The healthcare benefits for retired and disabled employees are 
the same as for active employees, except that the coverage becomes secondary when former employees 
become eligible for Medicare.  For employees first hired on and after October 1, 2006, future coverage as 
retired employees is subject to the requirement that the future retiree have 20 or more years of retirement 
service credit in order to receive coverage on a noncontributory basis.  Employees first hired on and after 
October 1, 2006 with 10 but less than 20 years of retirement service credit are eligible for coverage on a 
partially contributory basis.  For such future retirees, the State will pay 50% of the State Health Plan’s total 
noncontributory premium.  For employees hired before October 1, 2006, healthcare benefits are provided to 
retirees (at no charge to the retirees) who have at least five years of contributing retirement membership 
prior to disability or retirement.  In addition, persons who became surviving spouses of retirees prior to 
October 1, 1986, receive the same coverage as retirees at the State’s expense. 

 
Contributions are determined as a percentage of covered monthly payroll.  Annually, the monthly 
contribution rates to the Plan, which are intended to finance benefits and administrative expenses on a pay-
as-you-go basis, are determined by the General Assembly in the Appropriations Bill.  For the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, the Board paid all annual required contributions to the Plan for 
postemployment healthcare benefits of $9,491,995, $8,505,714, and $8,049,214 respectively.  These 
contributions represented 5.30%, 5.00%, and 4.90% of covered payroll, respectively. 
 
Long-term Disability Benefits 
 
Plan Description.  Short-term and long-term disability benefits are provided through the Disability Income 
Plan of North Carolina (DIPNC), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan.  The DIPNC is 
administered by the Board of Trustees of the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System.  Long-
term disability benefits are payable as an other postemployment benefit from DIPNC after the conclusion of 
the short-term disability period or after salary continuation payments cease, whichever is later, for as long 
as an employee is disabled.  Benefit and contribution provisions are established by Chapter 135, Article 6, 
of the General Statutes and may be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly.  The Plan 
accumulates contributions from employers and any earnings on those contributions in the Disability Income 
Plan Trust Fund.  The plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases. 
 
The State of North Carolina issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the DIPNC.  An electronic version of this report is available by 
accessing the North Carolina Office of the State Controller’s Internet home page http://www.ncosc.net/ and 
clicking on “Financial Reports”, or by calling the State Controller’s Financial Reporting Section at (919) 
981-5454. 
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II)  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

B) Liabilities (Continued) 
 
1)  Pension Plan and Other Postemployment Obligations (Continued) 

 
b) Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

 
Long-term Disability Benefits (Continued) 
 
Funding Policy.  An employee is eligible to receive long-term disability benefits provided the following 
requirements are met:  (1) the employee has five or more years of contributing membership service in the 
Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System of North Carolina, earned within 96 months prior to the 
end of the short-term disability period or cessation of salary continuation payments, whichever is later; (2) 
the employee must make application to receive long-term benefits within 180 days after the conclusion of 
the short-term disability period or after salary continuation payments cease or after monthly payments for 
workers’ compensation cease (excluding monthly payments for permanent partial benefits), whichever is 
later; (3) the employee must be certified by the Medical Board to be mentally or physically disabled for the 
further performance of his/her usual occupation; (4) the disability must have been continuous, likely to be 
permanent, and incurred at the time of active employment; (5) the employee must not be eligible to receive 
an unreduced retirement benefit from the Retirement System; and (6) the employee must terminate 
employment as a permanent, full-time employee.  An employee is eligible to receive an unreduced 
retirement benefit from the Retirement System after (1) reaching the age of 65 and completing five years of 
creditable service, or (2) reaching the age of 60 and completing 25 years of creditable service, or (3) 
completing 30 years of creditable service, at any age. 
 
The monthly long-term disability benefit is equal to 65% of one-twelfth of an employee’s annual base rate 
of compensation last payable to the participant of beneficiary prior to the beginning of the short-term 
disability period, plus the like percentage of one-twelfth of the annual longevity payment to which the 
participant or beneficiary would be eligible.  The monthly benefits are subject to a maximum of $3,900 per 
month reduced by any primary Social Security disability benefits and by monthly payments for workers’ 
compensation to which the participant or beneficiary may be entitled.  The monthly benefit shall be further 
reduced by the amount of any monthly payments from the Department of Veterans Affairs, any other 
federal agency or any payments made under the provisions of G.S.127A-108, to which the participant or 
beneficiary may be entitled on account of the same disability.  Provided in any event, the benefits payable 
shall be no less than $10 a month.  When an employee qualifies for an unreduced service retirement 
allowance from the Retirement System, the benefits payable from DIPNC will cease, and the employee will 
commence retirement under the TSERS.  For members who obtain five years of membership service on or 
after August 1, 2007, the monthly long-term disability benefit is reduced by the primary Social Security 
retirement benefit to which they might be entitled should they become age 62 during the first 36 months.  
After 36 months of long-term disability, there will be no further payments from the DIPNC unless the 
member is approved for and are in receipt of primary Social Security disability benefits.  It is payable so 
long as the member remains disabled and is in receipt of a primary Social Security disability benefit until 
eligible for an unreduced service retirement benefit.  When an employee qualifies for an unreduced service 
retirement allowance from the Retirement System, the benefits payable from DIPNC will cease, and the 
employee will commence retirement under the TSERS. 
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II)  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

B) Liabilities (Continued) 
 
1)  Pension Plan and Other Postemployment Obligations (Continued) 

 
b) Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

 
Long-term Disability Benefits (Continued) 
 
The Board’s contributions are established in the Appropriations Bill by the General Assembly.  Benefit and 
contribution provisions are established by Chapter 135, Article 6, of the General Statutes and may be 
amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly.  The contributions cannot be separated between the 
amounts that relate to other postemployment benefits and employment benefits for active employees.  
Those individuals who are receiving extended short-term disability benefit payments cannot be separated 
from the number of members currently eligible to receive disability benefits as an other postemployment 
benefit.  For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, the Board paid all annual required 
contributions to the DIPNC for disability benefits of $788,015, $884,594, and $854,202, respectively.  
These contributions represented 0.44%, 0.52%, and 0.52% of covered payroll, respectively. 
 

2)  Accounts Payable 
 

Accounts payable as of June 30, 2013, are as follows: 
 

Salaries and
Vendors benefits Total

Governmental activities:
Local Current Expense Fund 1,258,420$     7,757,138$     9,015,558$     
Other governmental 3,778,832       6,468,139       10,246,971     

Total governmental activities 5,037,252$     14,225,277$   19,262,529$   

Business-type activities:
School Food Service Fund 137,293$        -$              137,293$        
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II)  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

B) Liabilities (Continued) 
 
3)  Deferred Inflows of Resources 

 
The balance in deferred inflows of resources at year-end is composed of the following elements: 

 
Unearned
Revenue

Governmental activities:
Grants and scholarships (Grant and Community Schools
      Special Revenue Fund) 2,058,890$         

Business-type activities:
Prepaid meals (School Food Service Fund) 89,590$             
Sales tax refund (School Food Service Fund) 10,310               

   Total business-type activities 99,900$             
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II)  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

B) Liabilities (Continued) 
 
4)  Risk Management 
 

The Board is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The Board protects itself from 
potential loss through a combination of the purchase of commercial insurance from primary and/or excess 
liability coverage and self-funded risk retention. 
 
The Board is self insured for general liability claims up to $75,000 per claim and maintains excess 
commercial insurance coverage of $1,000,000 per occurrence with a $2,000,000 annual aggregate.  The 
Board also carries commercial errors and omissions coverage with a $75,000 deductible amount per claim 
and a $3,000,000 annual aggregate. 
 
The Board is self-insured for workers’ compensation claims for employees paid from local and federal 
funds and carries excess workers’ compensation coverage for claims over $400,000.  The State of North 
Carolina provides workers’ compensation coverage for employees to the extent they are paid from State 
funds. 
 
Tangible property assets of the Board are insured through commercially purchased insurance coverage up 
to $800,000,000.  Deductibles range from $1,000 to $50,000 per occurrence.  Umbrella coverage in the 
amount of $4,000,000 applies as excess over the general liability, automobile liability and employer’s 
liability. 
 
Changes in the claims liability for retained risks were as follows: 

The Board also participates in the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Comprehensive Major Medical Plan a 
self-funded risk financing pool of the State administered by Blue Cross and Blue Shield of North Carolina.  
Through the Plan, permanent full-time employees of the Board are eligible to receive health care benefits 
up to a $5 million lifetime limit.  The Board pays the full cost of coverage for employees enrolled in the 
Comprehensive Major Medical Plan. 

 
In accordance with G.S. 115C-442, the Board’s employees who have custody of the Board’s monies at any 
given time are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond.  The Chief Finance Officer is 
bonded for $250,000.  The remaining employees that have access to funds are bonded under a blanket 
bond for $175,000. 

 
The Board carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss.  There have been no significant 
reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of 
the past three fiscal years.  
 

Beginning
Balances

Current
Year Claims

Claims
Payments

Ending
Balances

Governmental activities
2011-2012 2,491,000$     1,705,822$     927,822$       3,269,000$     
2012-2013 3,269,000$     1,499,467$     690,467$       4,078,000$     
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II)  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

B) Liabilities (Continued) 
 

5)  Contingent Liabilities 
 
At June 30, 2013, the Board was a defendant to various lawsuits.  In the opinion of the Board’s 
management and the Board’s attorney, the ultimate outcome of these legal matters will not have a material 
adverse effect on the Board’s financial position. 

 
6) Long-Term Obligations 

 
a) Capital Leases 

 
As authorized by State law [G.S. 115C-528(a)], the Board has entered into various lease agreements to 
lease computers and related equipment.  The leasing arrangements were made for three years, and, at the 
conclusion of each of the leases, ownership was transferred to the Board.  The lease agreements qualify as 
capital leases for accounting purposes; therefore, any obligations have been recorded at the present value 
of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their inception. 

 
At June 30, 2013, no new capital leases were entered into.  The Board has no future minimum lease 
payments scheduled as of June 30, 2013. 

 
b) Installment Purchase 
 

The Board is authorized to finance the purchase of school buses under G.S. 115C-528(a).  Session law 2003-
284, section 7.25 authorized the State Board of Education to allot monies for the payments on financing 
contracts entered into pursuant to G.S. 115-528.  The State has accepted the bid to purchase Thomas Built 
Buses through a special third party financing arrangement by Mercedes Benz Financial Services USA LLC at 
total payments less than the purchase price.  In August 2012, the Board entered into an installment purchase 
contract to finance the purchase of 38 school buses.  The financing contract requires only principal payments 
of $791,514 due at the beginning of each contract year. 
 
The Board is authorized by State law [G.S. 115C-528(a)] to enter into installment purchase contracts to 
finance the purchase of computer equipment.  In July 2012, the Board entered into such a contract to 
purchase a computer network for the schools.  The financing contracts require principal payments for five 
years beginning in the fiscal year 2013 with an interest rate of 2.65 percent. 
 
The future minimum payments of the installment purchases as of June 30, 2013, including $90,758 of 
interest, are as follows: 
 

             Governmental Activities          
 Year Ending June 30,         Principal            Interest         
  2014 $ 1,502,624      $       46,330 
  2015  1,279,136  25,474 
             2016  365,626  14,382 
  2017  343,768  4,572 
 

       Total $ 3,491,154 $    90,758 
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II)  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

B) Liabilities (Continued) 
 

6) Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 
 
c) Long-Term Obligation Activity 

 
The following is a summary of changes in the Board’s long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended  June 
30, 2013: 

  Beginning         Ending   Current 
  Balance   Increases   Decreases   Balance        Portion    

  Governmental activities: 
   Capital leases  $ 17,022 $ - $ 17,022 $ - $ - 
   Installment purchases   1,761,522  4,915,999  3,186,367  3,491,154  1,502,624 
   Compensated absences  17,579,891  13,364,211  10,860,015 20,084,087  10,860,000 
   Claims liability for 
    retained risk    3,269,000  1,499,467  690,467  4,078,000  775,071 
 

      $22,627,435 $ 19,779,677 $14,753,871 $24,653,241 $ 13,137,695 
  Business-type activities: 
   Compensated absences  $ 313,351 $ 380,977 $ 332,797 $ 361,531 $ 332,800 

 

Compensated absences are paid by the General Fund and the School Food Service Fund when leave is 
taken. 

 
C) Interfund Balances and Activity 
 

Transfers to/from other funds and interfund balances at June 30, 2013, consist of the following: 
 

  Amount  
From the Local Current Expense Fund to the School Activity Funds 
     for portion of sales tax refund and temporary investments $          145,915
 

From the Local Special Expense Fund to the Local Current Expense 
     for operational costs $            31,016
 

From the School Food Service Fund to Local Current Expense Fund 
     for operational cost $              7,655
 

From the School Food Service Fund to the Local Special Expense 
     Fund for indirect costs $            25,003
 

From the State Public School Fund to the School Food Service Fund 
     for administrative costs $          174,454 
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II)  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 
 

D) Fund Balance 
 
The Board of Education has a revenue spending policy that provides policy for programs with multiple 
revenue sources. The Chief Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: federal funds, 
State funds, local non-Board of Education funds, Board of Education funds. For purposes of fund balance 
classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by 
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Chief Finance 
Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the Board of Education.  
 
The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of the General 
Fund balance that is available for appropriation, as of June 30, 2013.  
  

       
  Local Current   
  Expense   
  Fund   
 Total fund balance $       32,661,923   
 Less: Inventories           (172,092)   
  Prepaid expense        (1,214,918)   
  Stabilization by State Statute        (686,153)   
  Committed funds        (7,455,975)   
  Assigned for self-insurance        (3,385,031)   
    
 Remaining unassigned fund balance $       19,747,754    
   

Encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders and contracts that 
remain unperformed at year-end.  The Board has no encumbrances as of June 30, 2013. 
 

III)  SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES 
 

Federal and State Assisted Program 
 
The Board has received proceeds from several federal and State grants.  Periodic audits of these grants are 
required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant 
agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies. Management 
believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying 
financial statements for the refund of grant monies. 
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IV) SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
 Date of Management’s Review 
 

Subsequent events were evaluated through November 18, 2013, which is the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued. There were no recognized subsequent events meriting disclosure. 
 

V) CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 
 

In June 2011, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) released Statement No. 63, Financial 
Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position.  This 
statement is effective for accounting periods beginning after December 15, 2011.  This statement provides 
financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.  This 
statement also amends the net asset reporting requirement in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – 
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments, and other pronouncements 
by incorporating deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources into the definition of net position and 
renaming that measure as net position rather than net assets.  GASB No. 63 has been implemented for fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2013. 

 
In March 2012, GASB released Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This 
statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. This statement establishes accounting 
and financial reporting standards that reclassify and recognize, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred 
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. 
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Schedule 1

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Durham County:

Appropriation from general revenues 115,381,832$                        115,381,832$                        -$                                            
Total Durham County 115,381,832                          115,381,832                          -                                              

Other :
Fines and forfeitures 1,500,000                              1,538,793                              38,793                                    

Total other 1,500,000                              1,538,793                              38,793                                    

Total revenues 116,881,832                          116,920,625                          38,793                                    

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instructional services:
Regular instructional:

Regular curricular 34,421,789                            
CTE curricular 919,408                                  
    Total regular instructional 35,763,702                            35,341,197                            422,505                                  

Special populations:
Children with disabilities curricular 2,812,105                              
Special populations CTE curricular 53,743                                    
Pre-K children with disabilities curricular 230,281                                  
Speech and language pathology 459,024                                  
Audiology 10,205                                    
Acedemically gifted curricular 771,876                                  
Limited English proficiency 673,581                                  
    Total special populations 5,038,640                              5,010,815                              27,825                                    

Alternative programs:
Alternative instructional services K-12 252,875                                  
Attendance and social work 480,621                                  
Remedial and supplemental K-12 1,241,274                              
Pre-K readiness/remedial and supplemental 8,918                                      
Extended day/year instructional 442,024                                  
    Total alternative programs 2,581,669                              2,425,712                              155,957                                  

School leadership 8,353,462                              8,349,991                              3,471                                      

Co-curricular 1,709,156                              1,708,164                              992                                         

School-based support:
Educational media 2,193,989                              
Student accounting 832,862                                  
Guidance 3,614,175                              
Health support 165,805                                  
Safety and security support 518,464                                  
Instructional technology 1,366,554                              
Staff development unallocated 144,359                                  
Parent involvement 99,063                                    
Volunteer 99,173                                    
    Total school-based support 9,037,302                              9,034,444                              2,858                                      

System-wide support services:
Support and development:

Regular curricular support and development 1,767,330                              
CTE curricular support and development 5,600                                      
    Total support and development 1,805,764                              1,772,930                              32,834                                    

Special population support and development 445,979                                  445,961                                  18                                           

Alternative programs and services support
   and development 607,805                                  571,539                                  36,266                                    

Technology support 2,749,722                              2,739,304                              10,418                                    

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Local Current Expense Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  
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Schedule 1
(Continued)

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Current:

System-wide support services (Continued):
Operational support:

Communication 28,559$                                  
Printing and copying 268,255                                  
Public utility and energy 9,375,444                              
Custodial/housekeeping 4,748,284                              
Transportation 2,977,333                              
Warehouse and delivery 1,028,621                              
Facilities planning, acquisitions and construction 207,942                                  
Maintenance 2,814,579                              
    Total operational support 22,847,060$                          21,449,017                            1,398,043$                            

Financial and human resource:
Financial 2,978,270                              
Human resources 2,117,225                              
    Total financial and human resources 5,141,470                              5,095,495                              45,975                                    

Accountability:
Student testing 862,640                                  
Program evaluation 380,783                                  
    Total accountability 1,247,260                              1,243,423                              3,837                                      

System-wide pupil support:
Educational media support 141,862                                  
Student accounting support 684,615                                  
Guidance support 6,769                                      
Safety and security support 512,480                                  
Instructional technology support 122,849                                  
    Total system-wide pupil support 1,483,034                              1,468,575                              14,459                                    

Policy, leadership and public relations:
Board of education 214,774                                  
Legal 406,432                                  
Audit 69,348                                    
Leadership 1,389,348                              
Public relations and marketing 544,453                                  
    Total policy, leadership and public relations 2,629,491                              2,624,355                              5,136                                      

Ancillary services:
Community 1,056,913                              
Nutritional 92,039                                    

Total ancillary services 1,176,844                              1,148,952                              27,892                                    

Non-programmed charges:
Payments to other governmental units 14,246,450                            13,623,959                            622,491                                  

Debt service:
Principal 17,022                                    17,022                                    -                                              

Total expenditures 116,881,832                          114,070,855                          2,810,977                              

Net change in fund balance -$                                            2,849,770                              2,849,770$                            

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year 29,781,684                            

Increase in reserves for inventories 30,469                                    

End of year 32,661,923$                          

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Local Current Expense Fund
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Schedule 2

Variance
Positve

Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES

State of North Carolina:
Public School Building Capital Fund 2,472,241$                102,473$                   (2,369,768)$               
State appropriations - school buses 2,066,466                 2,066,466                 -                                 

Total State of North Carolina 4,538,707                 2,168,939                 (2,369,768)                 

Durham County:
Annual appropriation 1,370,000                 1,370,000                 -                                 
General obligation bonds 74,316,215               29,554,012               (44,762,203)               

Total Durham County 75,686,215               30,924,012               (44,762,203)               

Other:
Tower site lease 1,405,623                 237,939                    (1,167,684)                 
Other revenues 477,351                    302,689                    (174,662)                    

Total other 1,882,974                 540,628                    (1,342,346)                 

Total revenues 82,107,896               33,633,579               (48,474,317)               

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:

School construction and renovation:
Instructional services 17,716,266               13,267,264               4,449,002                  
Transportation services 2,907,853                 163,361                    2,744,492                  
Construction of new building and additions 64,539,231               22,796,337               41,742,894                
Contingency 838,784                    -                                 838,784                     

Total capital outlay 86,002,134               36,226,962               49,775,172                

Debt service:
Principal 3,186,367                 3,186,367                 -                                 
Interest 85,733                      85,733                      -                                 

Total debt service 3,272,100                 3,272,100                 -                                 

Total expenditures 89,274,234               39,499,062               49,775,172                

Revenues over (under) expenditures (7,166,338)                (5,865,483)                1,300,855                  

Other financing sources:
Installment purchase obligations issued 4,915,999                 4,915,999                 -                                 

Total other financing sources 4,915,999                 4,915,999                 -                                 

Appropriated fund balance 2,250,339                 31,003                      (2,219,336)                 

Net change in fund balance -$                               (918,481)                   (918,481)$                  

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year 5,231,913                 

End of year 4,313,432$                

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Outlay Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Grant and Community Schools Special Revenue Fund

Federal Grants Fund

Local Special Expense Fund

School Activity Funds

Combining Statements                                    
for Non-major Funds

The Grant and Community Schools Special Revenue Fund includes grants received by the Board as well
as fiscal agency monies.

The Federal Grants Fund is used to account for funds provided by the federal government under various
federal programs.

The School Activity Funds includes revenues and expenditures of the activity funds of the individual
schools. The primary revenue sources include funds held on the behalf of various clubs and
organizations, receipts from athletic events, and proceeds from various fund raising activities. The
primary expenditures are for athletic teams, club programs, activity buses, and instructional needs.

The Local Special Expense Fund accounts for revenues from reimbursements, including indirect costs,
fees for actual costs, tuition, sales tax refunds, gifts and grants restricted as to use, federal grants
restricted as to use, federal appropriations made directly to local school administrative units, and special
programs and appropriated fund balances (revenues accruing to a school administrative unit in prior
years but not yet expended).



Schedule 3

Grant and 
Community Schools 

Special Revenue 
Fund

Federal
Grants
Fund

Local             
Special            
Expense           

Fund

School
Activity
Funds

Total              
Non-major 

Governmental 
Funds

ASSETS

  Cash and cash equivalents 5,331,061$               -$                             -$                             1,908,271$               7,239,332$               

  Due from other governments 8,256                       454,597                   19,145                     -                               481,998                   

  Other receivable, net 129,532                   -                               44,323                     -                               173,855                   

  Due from other funds -                               -                               25,003                     146,498                   171,501                   

              Total assets 5,468,849$               454,597$                 88,471$                   2,054,769$               8,066,686$               

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

    Accounts payable and accrued expenses 8,918$                     -$                             1,236$                     -$                             10,154$                   

    Due to other funds -                               -                               31,016                     -                               31,016                     

    Accrued salaries and wages payable -                               405,133                   -                               -                               405,133                   

              Total liabilities 8,918                       405,133                   32,252                     -                               446,303                   

Deferred inflows of resources 2,077,457                49,464                     19,145                     33,475                     2,179,541                

Fund balances:

  Restricted:

    Stabilization by State statute 137,788                   -                               88,471                     146,498                   372,757                   

    Grants and scholarships 3,244,686                -                               -                               -                               3,244,686                

    Individual schools -                               -                               -                               1,874,796                1,874,796                

  Unassigned -                               -                               (51,397)                    -                               (51,397)                    

              Total fund balances 3,382,474                -                               37,074                     2,021,294                5,440,842                

              Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
              resources, and fund balances 5,468,849$               454,597$                 88,471$                   2,054,769$               8,066,686$               

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2013
Non-major Governmental Funds
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Schedule 4

Grant and 
Community Schools 

Special Revenue 
Fund

Federal
Grants
Fund

Local             
Special           
Expense           

Fund

School
Activity
Funds

Total             
Non-major 

Governmental 
Funds

REVENUES
State of North Carolina 1,398$                     -$                            -$                            -$                            1,398$                     
City of Durham -                          -                          190,928                   -                          190,928                   
U.S. Government 173,326                   27,707,997              1,585,701                -                              29,467,024              
Other 4,477,628                -                              4,683,485                5,009,439                14,170,552              

      Total revenues 4,652,352                27,707,997              6,460,114                5,009,439                43,829,902              

EXPENDITURES
Current:
  Instructional services:
    Regular instructional 421,311                  1,810,353              1,886,671              -                             4,118,335              
    Special populations 272,862                  6,675,316              222,696                 -                             7,170,874              
    Alternative programs 458,199                  11,211,252            26,860                   -                             11,696,311            
    School leadership 338                         739,970                 491,554                 -                             1,231,862              
    Co-curricular 54,111                    -                            -                            4,916,776                4,970,887              
    School-based support 138,375                  3,932,652              2,840                     -                             4,073,867              
  System-wide support services:
    Support and development 37,735                    217,900                 567                        -                             256,202                 
    Special population support and development -                             847,599                 -                            -                             847,599                 
    Alternative programs and services
      support and development -                             276,094                 -                            -                             276,094                 
    Technology  support -                             -                            2,520,828              -                             2,520,828              
    Operational support 15,556                    1,396,467              6,574,275              -                             7,986,298              
    Financial and human resource 1,156                      -                            8,513                     -                             9,669                     
    System-wide pupil support 47,915                    -                            -                            -                             47,915                   
    Policy, leadership and public relations 7,493                      -                            42,764                   -                             50,257                   
  Ancillary services 3,001,734               42                          -                            -                             3,001,776              
  Non-programmed charges 195,907                  600,352                 -                            -                             796,259                 

      Total expenditures 4,652,692                27,707,997              11,777,568              4,916,776                49,055,033              

      Revenues over (under) expenditures (340)                         -                              (5,317,454)               92,663                     (5,225,131)               

FUND BALANCES
Beginning of year 3,382,814                -                              5,354,528                1,928,631                10,665,973              

End of year 3,382,474$              -$                            37,074$                   2,021,294$              5,440,842$              

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Schedule 5

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
State of North Carolina:

Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Grant 11,155$                           -$                                     (11,155)$                          
Dropout Prevention Grant -                                       1,398                               1,398                               

Total State of North Carolina 11,155                             1,398                               (9,757)                              

U.S. Government:
Carol White Physical Grant 358,958                           60                                    (358,898)                          
Teaching American History Grant -                                       20                                    20                                    
History Link 216,483                           146,546                           (69,937)                            
Job Creation Grant 29,700                             26,700                             (3,000)                              
National Science Foundation Grant 3,435                               -                                       (3,435)                              

Total U.S. Government 608,576                           173,326                           (435,250)                          

Other :
Community education 3,663,688                        3,275,911                        (387,777)                          
Target Literacy 15,000                             11,635                             (3,365)                              
AT&T 44,796                             10,907                             (33,889)                            
High Five 15,685                             15,685                             -                                       
Student Science 91,901                             46,949                             (44,952)                            
Stars Grant 132,325                           97,611                             (34,714)                            
Harvard Project 203,167                           177,568                           (25,599)                            
Target School Award 95,922                             66,421                             (29,501)                            
NC New Schools Project 12,589                             9,361                               (3,228)                              
New Voices Project 64,500                             25,671                             (38,829)                            
SOS-Middle School/After School 34,270                             8,668                               (25,602)                            
More for Four reimbursement 890,210                           593,338                           (296,872)                          
Other 1,130,106                        137,903                           (992,203)                          

Total other 6,394,159                        4,477,628                        (1,916,531)                       

Total revenues 7,013,890                        4,652,352                        (2,361,538)                       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instructional services:
Regular instructional 765,741                           421,311                           344,430                           
Special populations 425,013                           272,862                           152,151                           
Alternative programs 711,166                           458,199                           252,967                           
School leadership 839                                  338                                  501                                  
Co-curricular 112,044                           54,111                             57,933                             
School-based support 192,355                           138,375                           53,980                             

Total instructional services 2,207,158                        1,345,196                        861,962                           

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Grant and Community Schools Special Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  
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Schedule 5
(Continued)

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
System-wide support services:

Support and development 79,002$                           37,735$                           41,267$                           
Operational support 29,854                             15,556                             14,298                             
Financial and human resource 1,167                               1,156                               11                                    
System-wide pupil support 81,326                             47,915                             33,411                             
Policy, leadership and public relations 7,494                               7,493                               1                                      

Total system-wide support services 198,843                           109,855                           88,988                             

Ancillary services:
Community 3,134,802                        3,000,847                        133,955                           
Nutrition 9,740                               887                                  8,853                               

Total ancillary services 3,144,542                        3,001,734                        142,808                           

Non-programmed charges:
Indirect costs 378,807                           193,008                           185,799                           
Unbudgeted funds 1,080,821                        180                                  1,080,641                        
Scholarships 3,719                               2,719                               1,000                               

Total non-programmed charges 1,463,347                        195,907                           1,267,440                        

Total expenditures 7,013,890                        4,652,692                        2,361,198                        

Revenues over (under) expenditures -$                                 (340)                                 (340)$                               

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year 3,382,814                        

End of year 3,382,474$                      

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Grant and Community Schools Special Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  
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Schedule 6

Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
U.S. Government 39,976,296$               27,707,997$               (12,268,299)$              

Total revenues 39,976,296                 27,707,997                 (12,268,299)                

EXPENDITURES
Instructional services 29,733,696                 24,369,543                 5,364,153                   
System-wide support services 3,047,330                   2,738,060                   309,270                      
Ancillary services 353                             42                               311                             
Non-programmed charges 7,194,917                   600,352                      6,594,565                   

Total expenditures 39,976,296                 27,707,997                 12,268,299                 

Revenues over (under) expenditures -$                                -                                  -$                                

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year -                                  

End of year -$                                

Variance

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
Federal Grants Fund
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Schedule 7

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
City of Durham:

Holton Center Project 190,927$                         190,928$                         1$                                    

U.S. Government:
ROTC 200,000                           171,403                           (28,597)                            
Medicaid 1,650,000                        1,414,298                        (235,702)                          

Total U.S. Government 1,850,000                        1,585,701                        (264,299)                          

Other :
Community education 13,799                             13,799                             -                                       
Rental of school property 322,880                           327,411                           4,531                               
E-Rate revenue 1,101,005                        1,510,551                        409,546                           
Indirect cost allocated 1,195,373                        1,576,837                        381,464                           
Interest earned on investments 350,000                           250,925                           (99,075)                            
Other 890,434                           1,003,962                        113,528                           

Total other 3,873,491                        4,683,485                        809,994                           

Total revenues 5,914,418                        6,460,114                        545,696                           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instructional services:
Regular instructional 1,912,587                        1,886,671                        25,916                             
Special populations 223,406                           222,696                           710                                  
Alternative programs 38,548                             26,860                             11,688                             
School leadership 491,558                           491,554                           4                                      
School-based support 3,840                               2,840                               1,000                               

Total instructional services 2,669,939                        2,630,621                        39,318                             

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Local Special Expense Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  
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Schedule 7
(Continued)

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
System-wide support services:

Support and development 1,000$                             567$                                433$                                
Technology 2,520,834                        2,520,828                        6                                      
Operational 6,579,118                        6,574,275                        4,843                               
Financial and human resource 8,600                               8,513                               87                                    
Policy, leadership and public relations 43,587                             42,764                             823                                  

Total system-wide support services 9,153,139                        9,146,947                        6,192                               

Total expenditures 11,823,078                      11,777,568                      45,510                             

Revenues over (under) expenditures (5,908,660)                       (5,317,454)                       591,206                           

APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE 5,908,660                        -                                       (5,908,660)                       

Net change in fund balance -$                                     (5,317,454)                       (5,317,454)$                     

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year 5,354,528                        

End of year 37,074$                           

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Local Special Expense Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  
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Schedule 8

Total School
 Elementary  Middle  Senior  Activity 

 Schools  Schools  High Schools  Funds 

REVENUES
General 137,100$       70,642$         375,879$       583,621$       
Athletic funds 404                182,054         768,979         951,437         
Instructional services 614,356         472,342         894,165         1,980,863      
Student activities 11,219           15,422           112,767         139,408         
Contributions 409,183         242,749         702,178         1,354,110      

Total revenues 1,172,262      983,209         2,853,968      5,009,439      

EXPENDITURES
Co-curricular instructional 1,177,183      951,842         2,787,751      4,916,776      

Revenues over (under) expenditures (4,921)            31,367           66,217           92,663           

FUND BALANCES
Beginning of year 578,152         275,270         1,075,209      1,928,631      

End of year 573,231$       306,637$       1,141,426$    2,021,294$    

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Detailed Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  
School Activity Funds
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Schedule 9

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
OPERATING REVENUES

Food sales 3,289,551$    2,308,001$    (981,550)$      

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Food cost:

Purchase of food 5,072,231     
Donated commodities 730,231        

Salaries and benefits 7,347,414     
Indirect costs 763,708        
Material and supplies 521,678        
Repairs and maintenance 171,850        
Contracted services 367                
Other 71,994          
Capital outlay 179,250        

Total operating expenditures 15,360,470   14,858,723   501,747         

Operating loss (12,070,919)  (12,550,722)  (479,803)        

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Federal reimbursements 10,759,609   11,537,008   777,399         
Federal donated commodities 677,309        811,715        134,406         
State reimbursements 20,440          25,004          4,564             
Interest earned 14,107          12,240          (1,867)            

Total nonoperating revenues 11,471,465   12,385,967   914,502         

Revenues over (under) expenditures
before other financing sources (599,454)       (164,755)       434,699         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers from other funds 174,454        174,454        -                     

Revenues and other financing sources 
  over (under) expenditures before fund 
  balance appropriation (425,000)       9,699             434,699         

APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE 425,000        -                     (425,000)        

Revenues and other financing sources
  over expenditures -$                   9,699             9,699$           

Reconciliation of modified accrual to full accrual basis:
Depreciation (87,134)         
Capital outlay 179,250        
Increase in inventory 83,227          
Increase in accrued vacation pay 48,180          

Net income - full accrual (page 22) 233,222$       

School Food Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
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Table 1

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Governmental activities
Net investment in capital 
assets 251,212,990$    263,186,310$    270,467,057$    270,367,774$    275,702,774$    298,497,927$    305,378,332$    364,841,047$    386,381,988$    390,271,923$    
Restricted 4,393,104          3,804,724          3,225,651          2,748,856          4,287,800          4,691,584          5,181,893          10,388,736        10,543,358        10,491,824        
Unrestricted 61,501               (3,261,120)        (5,490,861)        (3,403,804)        (6,238,397)        (10,131,399)      (2,986,565)        11,855,558        14,698,890        8,148,512          

255,667,595$    263,729,914$    268,201,847$    269,712,826$   273,752,177$   293,058,112$   307,573,660$   387,085,341$    411,624,236$    408,912,259$   

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital 
assets 808,487$           683,835$           573,202$           591,205$           513,953$           486,927$           454,205$           418,232$           549,951$           642,068$           
Unrestricted 2,316,694          2,464,736          2,658,645          2,348,012          2,070,663          2,164,776          3,111,563          4,352,498          4,307,099          4,448,204          

3,125,181$        3,148,571$        3,231,847$        2,939,217$       2,584,616$       2,651,703$       3,565,768$       4,770,730$        4,857,050$       5,090,272$       

District-wide
Net investment in capital 
assets 252,021,477$    263,870,145$    271,040,259$    270,958,979$    276,216,727$    298,984,854$    305,832,537$    365,259,279$    386,931,939$    390,913,991$    
Restricted 4,393,104          3,804,724          3,225,651          2,748,856          4,287,800          4,691,584          5,181,893          10,388,736        10,543,358        10,491,824        
Unrestricted 2,378,195          (796,384)           (2,832,216)        (1,055,792)        (4,167,734)        (7,966,623)        124,998             16,208,056        19,005,989        12,596,716        

258,792,776$    266,878,485$    271,433,694$    272,652,043$   276,336,793$   295,709,815$   311,139,428$   391,856,071$    416,481,286$    414,002,531$   

Note:  This table is a ten-year schedule. 

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013
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Table 2
Page 1 of 2

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Expenses:
Governmental activities:

Instructional programs 171,445,859$    176,840,044$    183,464,731$    197,361,081$    239,812,185$    249,930,621$    225,210,682$    228,269,412$      252,812,921$         253,940,630$         
Support services 65,395,039        72,725,991        76,713,152        81,127,871        63,429,498        65,080,679        62,913,423        62,691,265          75,585,737             82,147,274             
Community services 3,727,908          3,988,587          4,216,967          3,907,337          3,960,838          4,129,830          3,725,081          3,984,105            4,600,655               4,335,383               
Non-program charges 3,778,682          4,216,142          4,639,124          6,005,539          8,291,224          9,314,233          11,366,345        11,170,948          11,686,197             13,819,866             
Interest on long-term debt 135,255             7,944                 15,538               13,291               4,020                 28,813               -                    -                      -                         -                         
Depreciation expense 9,958,854          11,064,219        10,337,807        12,102,901        9,988,185          9,845,429          9,960,861          11,253,657          14,003,381             14,991,658             

   Total governmental activities 254,441,597      268,842,927      279,387,319      300,518,020      325,485,950      338,329,605      313,176,392      317,369,387        358,688,891           369,234,811           

Business-type activities:
School food service 10,110,623        10,173,742        10,738,464        11,565,098        12,132,950        13,386,066        12,862,212        12,981,507          14,151,627             14,635,200             

       Total district-wide 264,552,220$    279,016,669$    290,125,783$    312,083,118$    337,618,900$    351,715,671$    326,038,604$    330,350,894$      372,840,518$         383,870,011$         

Program Revenues:
Governmental activities:

Charges for services 8,931,587$        9,426,233$        8,784,061$        9,146,530$        4,158,758$        3,933,321$        3,593,740$        3,590,883$          3,810,061$             3,592,237$             
Operating grants and contributions 156,643,309      162,498,629      172,794,460      184,951,079      210,264,462      215,065,379      205,360,536      209,280,266        216,312,932           213,360,014           
Capital grants -                        -                        -                        -                        43,488               129,698             -                    8,755                   15,528                    3,787                      

   Total governmental activities 165,574,896      171,924,862      181,578,521      194,097,609      214,466,708      219,128,398      208,954,276      212,879,904        220,138,521           216,956,038           

Business-type activities:
Charges for services - School Food 
Service Fund 3,990,401          3,726,781          3,736,771          3,552,393          3,336,431          3,628,656          3,307,918          2,955,052            2,712,070               2,308,001               
Operating grants and contributions - 
USDA grant 6,111,667          6,430,229          7,002,227          7,614,453          8,354,339          9,783,996          10,365,136        11,216,035          11,504,918             12,373,727             

   Total business-type activities 10,102,068        10,157,010        10,738,998        11,166,846        11,690,770        13,412,652        13,673,054        14,171,087          14,216,988             14,681,728             

       Total district-wide 175,676,964$    182,081,872$    192,317,519$    205,264,455$    226,157,478$    232,541,050$    222,627,330$    227,050,991$      234,355,509$         231,637,766$         

Net (Expense) Revenue
Governmental activities (88,866,701)$    (96,918,065)$    (97,808,798)$    (106,420,411)$  (111,019,242)$  (119,201,207)$  (104,222,116)$  (104,489,483)$    (138,550,370)$        (152,278,773)$        
Business-type activities (8,555)               (16,732)             534                    (398,252)           (442,180)           26,586               810,842             1,189,580            65,361                    46,528                    

       Total district-wide (88,875,256)$    (96,934,797)$    (97,808,264)$    (106,818,663)$  (111,461,422)$  (119,174,621)$  (103,411,274)$  (103,299,903)$    (138,485,009)$        (152,232,245)$        

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013
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Table 2
Page 2 of 2

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities:
Unrestricted county appropriations - 
operating 75,149,932$    79,399,928$      84,127,705$      89,127,705$     95,727,705$    102,654,263$    100,996,102$    107,214,112$    108,971,662$    115,572,760$    
Unrestricted county appropriations - 
capital -                       -                         1,500,000          2,740,000         2,370,000        8,229,858          3,340,906          1,649,332          1,440,981          1,370,000          
Unrestricted city appropriations - capital 2,302,134        1,893,486          1,465,735          1,386,219         470,080           7,003,740          945,679             1,014,991          5,860,947          1,538,793          
Unrestricted other county revenues - 
capital 25,151,543      20,357,320        10,967,181        8,156,468         11,729,046      16,782,957        13,394,396        70,906,098        43,802,250        29,554,012        
Unrestricted state appropriations - capital 1,025,051        2,118,326          4,029,828          2,272,012         16,346             -                         707,678             1,128,798          -                    -                    
Unrestricted other state revenues - 
operating 990,411           528,600             -                        -                       -                       -                         -                        -                        -                        -                        
Investment earnings, unrestricted 583,168           342,437             555,952             981,790            1,270,536        672,429             406,126             412,175             391,167             275,925             
Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets 960,941           400,709             (83,490)             (55,148)            -                       -                         -                        -                        -                        -                        
Miscellaneous, unrestricted 495,286           1,269,578          1,461,820          3,322,344         3,527,087        3,163,895          1,362,500          1,675,658          2,622,258          1,429,760          
Transfers and capital contributions -                       -                         -                        -                       -                       -                         (82,491)             -                    (174,454)           
   Total governmental activities 106,658,466    106,310,384      104,024,731      107,931,390     115,110,800    138,507,142      121,070,896      184,001,164      163,089,265      149,566,796      

Business-type activities:
Investment earnings, unrestricted 33,789             40,122               82,742               105,622            87,579             40,501               20,732               15,382               20,959               12,240               
Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets 6,060               -                         -                        -                       -                       -                         -                        -                        -                        -                        
Transfers and capital contributions -                       -                         -                        -                       -                       -                         82,491               -                        -                        174,454             
   Total business-type activities 39,849             40,122               82,742               105,622            87,579             40,501               103,223             15,382               20,959               186,694             

       Total district-wide 106,698,315$  106,350,506$    104,107,473$    108,037,012$   115,198,379$  138,547,643$    121,174,119$    184,016,546$    163,110,224$    149,753,490$    

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities 17,791,765$    9,392,319$        6,215,933$        1,510,979$       4,091,558$      19,305,935$      16,848,780$      79,511,681$      24,538,895$      (2,711,977)$      
Business-type activities 31,294             23,390               83,276               (292,630)          (354,601)          67,087               914,065             1,204,962          86,320               233,222             

       Total district-wide 17,823,059$    9,415,709$        6,299,209$        1,218,349$       3,736,957$      19,373,022$      17,762,845$      80,716,643$      24,625,215$      (2,478,755)$      

Note:  This table is a ten-year schedule.

Source:  Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina, Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2013

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

General fund

Nonspendable 614,805$       1,556,765$    1,061,955$    1,382,381$    1,307,594$    
Restricted 4,691,854      1,022,034      753,455         1,031,721      993,500         
Committed -                       -                       -                 -                       -                       
Assigned 2,557,570      2,557,570      4,830,055      3,807,570      2,807,570      
Unassigned 1,083,157      638,823         948,816         2,854,518      4,125,689      

Total General Fund 8,947,386$    5,775,192$    7,594,281$    9,076,190$    9,234,353$    

All other governmental funds
Restricted 6,775,078      5,953,941      3,720,476      3,019,378      5,310,948      
Assigned -                 -                 255,295         1,323,033      1,365,711      
Unassigned (2,381,974)     (2,149,217)     (750,120)        215,174         (2,388,859)     

Total all other governmental funds 4,393,104      3,804,724      3,225,651      4,557,585      4,287,800      

Total all governmental funds 13,340,490$  9,579,916$   10,819,932$ 13,633,775$ 13,522,153$ 

Note:  GASB Statement No. 54, presenting restated Fund Balances, was implemented for the year ended June 30, 2011.

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FUND BALANCE
Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013



Table 3

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

265,573$       1,234,557$    1,195,663$    1,331,656$    1,387,010$    
605,882         1,201,028      2,459,570      8,648,572      686,153         

-                       -                       6,442,119      5,408,660      7,455,975      
7,709,453      5,556,908      6,696,190      4,497,568      3,385,031      

805,634         6,049,121      12,827,309    9,895,228      19,747,754    
9,386,542$    14,041,614$  29,620,851$  29,781,684$  32,661,923$  

4,430,504      8,982,810      13,023,081    13,939,259    9,805,671      
1,365,711      1,365,711      975,651         4,179,132      -                 

(1,104,631)     (5,166,628)     (3,609,996)     (2,220,505)     (51,397)          
4,691,584      5,181,893      10,388,736    15,897,886    9,754,274      

14,078,126$  19,223,507$  40,009,587$  45,679,570$ 42,416,197$ 
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2004 2005 2006 2007

Revenues
State of North Carolina 140,096,295$ 144,205,845$ 154,217,728$ 163,447,232$ 
Durham County 100,301,475   99,757,252     96,594,886     100,024,173   
City of Durham - - - -
U.S. Government 15,918,059     19,077,317     21,053,176     23,642,599     
Other 16,995,033     16,367,337     16,992,604     17,072,668     
   Total revenues 273,310,862   279,407,751   288,858,394   304,186,672   

Expenditures
Instructional programs 170,544,041   178,380,588   183,206,062   196,326,146   
Support services 64,568,567     69,542,725     76,555,851     81,687,024     
Community services 3,684,090       3,974,213       4,165,813       3,906,701       
Non-program charges 4,600,068       5,222,652       5,722,840       7,187,502       
Capital outlay 30,318,485     26,519,342     17,286,879     12,536,314     
Debt service - principal 905,405          1,678,679       1,576,304       1,930,283       
Debt service - interest 5,629              7,944              15,538            13,884            
   Total expenditures 274,626,285   285,326,143   288,529,287   303,587,854   

Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,315,423)     (5,918,392)     329,107          598,818          

Other financing sources (uses)
Installment purchase obligations issued 2,392,698       1,892,735       808,606          2,193,345       
Capital leases -                      370,777          49,065            -                      
Increase in reserve for inventories (45,886)          (105,694)        53,238            21,680            
Transfers in (out) -                      -                      -                      -                      
Other -                      -                      -                      -                      

   Net change in fund balance 1,031,389$    (3,760,574)$  1,240,016$    2,813,843$     

Ratio of debt service to non-capital expenditures 0.37% 0.66% 0.59% 0.67%

Source:  Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina, Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2013

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013



Table 4

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

180,752,537$ 181,491,906$ 162,824,820$ 163,204,852$ 171,743,913$ 175,674,111$ 
109,826,751   127,667,078   116,587,638   179,308,287   153,909,202   146,305,844   

470,080          7,003,740       1,143,766       374,032          234,710          190,928          
22,181,948     23,632,816     35,881,228     39,470,884     35,819,632     29,467,024     
17,844,318     19,830,583     15,543,451     15,847,274     23,125,460     16,249,973     

331,075,634   359,626,123   331,980,903   398,205,329   384,832,917   367,887,880   

238,788,373   246,851,238   227,017,268   226,953,898   250,231,115   250,850,391   
61,716,022     64,178,239     63,484,308     60,695,006     65,352,876     66,832,194     

3,960,838       4,129,830       3,725,081       3,984,105       4,600,655       4,335,383       
8,291,224       9,314,233       11,366,345     12,085,088     12,378,157     14,420,218     

18,449,768     33,642,435     18,391,623     74,274,614     46,270,479     36,226,962     
1,179,376       1,804,652       782,504          1,175,084       1,181,892       3,203,389       

4,020              2,207              -                      -                      47,233            85,733            
332,389,621   359,922,834   324,767,129   379,167,795   380,062,407   375,954,270   

(1,313,987)     (296,711)        7,213,774       19,037,534     4,770,510       (8,066,390)     

1,159,341       861,349          162,614          1,771,157       949,858          4,915,999       
86,815            -                      128,553          -                      -                      -                      

8,416              (8,665)            (26,328)          (22,611)          (50,385)          30,469            
-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (174,454)        
-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      31,003            

(59,415)$        555,973$        7,478,613$     20,786,080$  5,669,983$    (3,263,373)$  

0.38% 0.56% 0.26% 0.39% 0.37% 0.98%
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Fiscal Year Tax Year
Ended Ended Real Personal Public Service Registered

June 30, December 31, Property Property Companies Vehicles (3)

2013 2012 24,909,554,030$     3,304,053,564$       494,110,311$          1,739,032,299$       

2012 2011 24,580,465,174       3,166,306,877         471,720,126            1,623,871,164         

2011 2010 24,353,954,146       3,074,419,178         501,907,483            1,530,317,547         

2010 2009 23,976,021,000       2,905,267,206         524,524,630            1,627,078,510         

2009 2008 23,508,752,957       2,824,338,529         517,202,960            1,690,561,506         

2008 2007 18,068,249,108       2,837,548,386         514,897,106            1,715,889,532         

2007 2006 17,319,467,597       2,518,003,626         517,286,245            1,680,614,666         

2006 2005 16,769,216,308       2,465,434,636         515,456,602            1,530,608,393         

2005 2004 16,281,035,800       2,323,311,138         523,810,967            1,473,351,385         

2004 2003 15,689,112,679       2,361,973,098         536,047,783            1,484,745,571         

Notes:       (1)

                 (2)

                 (3)

(4)                  Per $100 of assessed value

Source:  Durham County, North Carolina (as of October,  2013)

 Government, eleemosynary institutions, etc., not subject to taxation.  Assessed valuation equals estimated 
 estimated actual value. 

 Effective July 1, 1993, registered  vehicles were  separated from personal  property.  The  taxes on  
 registered vehicles now coincide with the Department of Motor Vehicles renewals. 

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY FOR DURHAM COUNTY

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013

 All taxable property is assessed at one hundred percent (100%) of its estimated actual value.   
 Revaluation of taxable property occurred on January 1, 1985, 1993, 2001, and 2008. 

 This does not include valuations of property owned by the State of North Carolina, United States  



Table 5

County-wide Special Tax Average
Total Assessed Tax Districts County

Value (1)(2) Rate (4) Tax Rate (4) Tax Rate (4)

30,446,750,204$     0.7444 0.0599-0.1524 0.7734

29,842,363,341       0.7459 0.0599-0.2500 0.7745

29,460,598,354       0.7459 0.0360-0.2500 0.8359

29,032,891,346       0.7081 0.0360-0.2500 0.8359

28,540,855,952       0.7081 0.0361-0.2500 0.7981

23,136,584,132       0.8340 0.0187-0.2500 0.9190

22,035,372,134       0.8090 0.0187-0.2500 0.8765

21,280,715,939       0.8090 0.0187-0.2500 0.7990

20,601,509,290       0.7900 0.0187-0.2000 0.7690

20,071,879,131       0.7630 0.0187-0.2000 0.7680
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DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA

2004 2005 2006 2007
County direct rate
Operating rate 0.6910            0.7019            0.7144            0.7536            
Capital rate 0.0720            0.0881            0.0946            0.0554            
    Total general fund direct rate 0.7630           0.7900          0.8090          0.8090            

Fire district rates 0.0550-0.0900 0.0600-0.1100 0.0570-0.1100 0.0570-0.1100

Other special district rates 0.1087-0.2000 0.1287-0.2000 0.1287-0.2500 0.1287-0.2500

Municipality Rates
City of Durham 0.5450            0.5830            0.5830            0.6030            
City of Durham BID -              -              -              -              
Town of Chapel Hill 0.5530            0.5750            0.5220            0.5220            
City of Raleigh 0.3850            0.3950            0.3950            0.4350            
Town of Morrisville -              -              -              -              

Notes:
(1)  All taxable property is subject to the County direct rate.  Most property in unincorporated areas is also               
      subject to one of the seven fire district taxes.                                                                                           
(2)  A revaluation of real property is required by N. C. General Statues at least every eight years.  Revaluation 
       of taxable property occurred on January 1, 2008.                                                                                                            

Source:  Durham County, North Carolina (as of October,  2013)

PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING
GOVERNMENTS FOR DURHAM COUNTY

PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE (1)

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013



Table 6

20082 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

0.7801            0.6594            0.6604            0.6911            0.6865            0.6850            
0.0539            0.0487            0.0477            0.0548            0.0594            0.0594            
0.8340            0.7081            0.7081           0.7459          0.7459          0.7444            

0.0570-0.1150 0.0570-0.1100 0.0570-0.1100 0.0599-0.1100 0.0599-0.1125 0.0599-0.1150

0.1474-0.2500 0.1461-0.2500 0.1461-0.2500 0.1460-0.2500 0.1474-0.2500 0.1374-0.1524

0.6180            0.5400            0.5400            0.5519            0.5575            0.5675            
-              -              -              -              -              0.6375            

0.5220            0.5810            0.4940            0.4940            0.4940            0.4940            
0.4350            0.3735            0.3735            0.3735            0.3735            0.3826            
-              -              -              -              0.3665            0.3665            
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Percentage
of Total
Taxable

Type of Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Enterprise Valuation Rank Valuation

International Business Machine Manufacturer 537,620,386$     1 1.87%

GlaxoSmithKline Manufacturer 490,134,296        2 1.71%

Cree Inc Manufacturer 385,996,271        3 1.34%

AW North Carolina Inc Manufacturer 306,265,079        4 1.07%

Merck Sharp & Dohme Corp Bio Tech 285,128,867      5 99.00%

Duke Energy Corp Utility 198,892,209      6 69.00%

SouthPoint Mall LLC Retail 171,926,928      7 60.00%

EMC Corporation Manufacturer 161,316,645      8 56.00%

EISAI  Inc Pharmaceutical 123,330,961      9 43.00%

Fiscal Year 2013

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS FOR DURHAM COUNTY

Year Ended June 30, 2013 and 2004

Frontier Communications Communications 113,355,689      10 39.00%

Verizon South Inc Communications -                     - -                      

Highwoods/Forsyth Limited Part Real Estate -                     - -                      

CMD Properties Inc Real Estate -                     - -                      

State Street Bank & Trust Finance -                     - -                      

Vac Ltd Partnership Real Estate -                     - -                      

2,773,967,331$  9.65%

Source:  Durham County, North Carolina (as of October, 2013)



Table 7

Percentage
of  Total
Taxable

Assessed Assessed
Valuation Rank Valuation

554,112,462$      2 2.76%

637,758,856        1 3.18%

99,050,796          6 0.49%

-                       - -                       

-                       - -                      

164,596,552        4 0.82%

82,926,225          8 0.41%

-                       - -                      

-                       - -                      

Fiscal Year 2004
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-                       - -                      

247,089,391        3 1.23%

106,250,975        5 0.53%

67,617,206          9 0.34%

83,584,221          7 0.42%

66,579,533          10 0.33%

2,109,566,217$   10.51%
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Fiscal Year Tax Year Current Percent
Ended Ended Adjusted Year Levy of Levy

June 30, December 31, Tax Levy Collections Collected

2013 2012 368,162,207$      364,152,559$      98.91%

2012 2011 356,876,076        352,704,112        98.83%

2011 2010 363,164,888        358,623,043        98.75%

2010 2009 343,120,176        338,558,945        98.67%

2009 2008 337,224,715        331,357,242        98.26%

2008 2007 317,413,489        313,396,710        98.73%

2007 2006 289,156,326        285,179,105        98.62%

2006 2005 276,254,924        271,744,257        98.37%

2005 2004 260,809,549        255,882,258        98.11%

2004 2003 241,771,354        236,816,081        97.95%

Source:  Durham County, North Carolina (as of October, 2013)

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS FOR DURHAM COUNTY

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013



Table 8

Percent of Percent of
Collections Total Tax Outstanding Delinquent

in Subsequent Total Tax Collections Delinquent Taxes to
Years Collections to Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy

-$                    364,152,559$      98.91% 6,530,429$          1.77%

3,118,383            355,822,495        99.70% 6,555,562            1.84%

2,465,889            361,088,932        99.43% 7,165,866            1.97%

3,417,043            341,975,988        99.67% 7,997,259            2.33%

4,676,027            336,033,269        99.65% 8,686,871            2.58%

2,948,261            316,344,971        99.66% 8,642,528            2.72%

3,076,804            288,255,909        99.69% 7,439,573            2.57%

3,517,987            275,262,244        99.64% 8,498,119            3.08%

4,021,830            259,904,088        99.65% 8,644,800            3.31%

4,015,963            240,832,044        99.61% 8,795,501            3.64%
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Fiscal Year
Ended Population Total Gross

June 30, Estimate (1) Assessed Value Debt Limit Bonded Debt

2013 277,588 30,446,750,204$  2,435,740,016$    273,900,000$       

2012 275,960 29,842,363,341    2,387,389,067      298,585,000         

2011 272,156 29,460,598,354    2,356,847,868      272,680,000         

2010 267,849 29,032,891,346 2,322,631,308      233,930,000

2009 265,670 28,540,855,952    2,283,268,476      255,335,000         

2008 261,206 23,136,584,132    1,850,926,731      275,570,001         

2007 254,902 22,035,372,134    1,762,829,771      247,445,003         

2006 249,654 21,280,715,939    1,702,457,275      265,660,004         

2005 246,924 20,601,509,290    1,648,120,743      221,945,003         

2004 242,000 20,071,879,131    1,605,750,322      239,020,001         

Note 1: Estimate from Durham City/County Planning Department.

Source:  Durham County, North Carolina (as of October, 2013)

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE
AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA FOR DURHAM COUNTY

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013



Table 9

Debt to
Taxable Net

Net Property Bonded Debt
Bonded Debt Assessed Value Per Capita

273,900,000$       0.90% 987$                     

298,585,000         1.00% 1,082                    

272,680,000         0.93% 1,002                    

233,930,000         0.81% 873                       

255,335,000         0.89% 961                       

275,570,001         1.2% 1,037                    

247,445,003         1.1% 950                       

265,660,004         1.2% 1,041                    

221,945,003         1.0% 873                       

239,020,001         1.2% 960                       
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Fiscal Year
Ended Other

June 30, Principal Interest Expenditures

2013 39,155,769$         19,669,554$         244,735$              

2012 109,738,120         16,642,611           540,070                

2011 53,158,145           15,794,753           683,053                

2010 25,431,125           16,349,362           231,637                

2009 27,266,955           14,372,730           3,350                    

2008 25,249,056           13,254,045           3,350                    

2007 25,321,777           13,441,166           3,350                    

2006 23,344,788           12,613,290           3,500                    

2005 21,476,140           13,440,112           -                            

2004 19,061,212           11,428,032           3,600                    

Notes:      (1)

Source:  Durham County, North Carolina (as of October, 2013)

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL

BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES FOR DURHAM COUNTY
Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013

 General expenditures are taken from all General Government Fund types 
 Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects Fund. 



Table 10

Ratio of Debt
Service to

Total Total General Total General
Debt Service Expenditures (1) Expenditures

59,070,058$         331,823,530$       17.80%

126,920,801         329,489,901         38.52%

69,635,951           323,275,838         21.54%

42,012,124           314,831,306         13.34%

41,643,035           374,809,528         11.11%

38,506,451           373,328,462         10.31%

38,766,293           356,860,759         10.86%

35,961,578           342,123,072         10.51%

34,916,252           406,585,461         8.59%

30,492,844           376,179,317         8.11%
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Table 11

Fiscal Year Capital Total Business- Total
Ended Lease Installment Governmental Type Primary

June 30, Obligation Purchases Activities Activities Government

2013 -$                         3,491,154$          3,491,154$          -$                         3,491,154$          

2012 17,022                 1,761,522            1,778,544            -                           1,778,544            

2011 34,045                 1,976,533            2,010,578            -                           2,010,578            

2010 80,831                 409,075               489,906               -                           489,906               

2009 26,604                 954,139               980,743               -                           980,743               

2008 53,210                 1,890,456            1,943,666            -                           1,943,666            

2007 36,073                 1,840,813            1,876,886            -                           1,876,886            

2006 174,307               1,439,517            1,613,824            -                           1,613,824            

2005 273,068               2,059,389            2,332,457            -                           2,332,457            

2004 130,705               1,616,918            1,747,623            -                           1,747,623            

Notes:  Details regarding the school system's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE - DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013
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Table 12

Fiscal Year Student Per Capita
Ended Population Average Daily Unemployment Personal Retail

June 30, Estimate Membership Rate Income Sales

2013 277,588          32,405               7.18% *   4,925,320,533$  

2012 275,960          32,569               8.20% *   4,434,078,534    

2011 271,238          32,118               8.40% 38,795           4,163,246,000    

2010 267,849          31,956               7.80% 40,116           4,022,518,000    

2009 265,290          32,313               7.30% 37,308           3,630,249,000    

2008 261,206          32,749               4.10% 38,923           3,703,207,039    

2007 254,902          31,981               3.80% 36,388           3,796,970,577    

2006 246,184          31,343               3.90% 34,212           3,707,313,563    

2005 242,527          30,191               4.60% 34,212           5,085,955,806    

2004 236,781          30,615               4.20% 33,161           4,646,891,369    

*Data not available.

Source:  Durham Chamber of Commerce; Retail sales provided to the Chamber by the North Carolina Department of
              Revenue with a note that monthly sales and use tax reports are not comparable to periods prior to July, 2005
              due to the Streamlined Sales Tax Agreement so not all taxpayers report Gross Retail Sales.

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS FOR DURHAM COUNTY

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013
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Percentage
of Total County

Employer Employees Rank Employment

Duke University & Health System 34,863 1 19.22%

International Business Machines (IBM) 10,000 2 5.51%

Durham Public Schools 4,600 3 2.54%

GlaxoSmithKline 3,700 4 2.04%

Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Carolina 2,725 5 1.50%

Durham City Government 2,437 6 1.34%

Fidelity Investments 2,400 7 1.32%

QuintilesTransnational Corporation 2,300 8 1.27%

Research Triangle Institute (RTI) 2,300 9 1.27%

Veterans Affairs (VA) Medical Center 2,162 10 1.19%

Nortel Networks -                           - -                           

Durham County Government -                           - -                           

67,487 37.20%

Source:  Durham Chamber of Commerce and Bureau of Labor Statistics

2013

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS FOR DURHAM COUNTY

Year Ended June 30, 2013 and 2004



Table 13

Percentage
of Total County

Employees Rank Employment

19,205 1 11.51%

14,000 2  8.39%

4,500 4 2.70%

5,000 3 3.00%

2,500 6 1.50%

1,979 7 1.19%

-                           - -                           

-                           - -                           

1,800 9 1.08%

1,600 10 0.96%

3,100 5 1.86%

1,815 8 1.09%

55,499 33.28%

2004
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Table 14

Function 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Instructional Programs 3,184   3,298   3,432   3,322   3,208   3,127   2,827   2,753   2,765   2,813   

Support Services 1,181   1,211   1,266   1,237   1,235   1,345   1,364   1,330   1,438   1,459   

Community Services 124      124      125      125      125      125      121      121      121      142      

Food Services 228      233      237      237      173      177      167      178      181      190      

Total 4,717   4,866   5,060   4,921 4,741 4,774 4,479 4,382   4,505 4,604 

Note:  This table is a ten-year schedule. 

Source:  Finance Department of Durham Public Schools

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013

77



Table 15

2012-13 Percentage Years
Site Building Day 20 Over/(Under) Year Renovations/

School Acreage Square Feet Capacity Enrollment Capacity Constructed Additions

City of Medicine 7.20 40,519            320 329 2.81% 2011
Durham PLC/ARC @ Holton 7.00 104,869          350 248 -29.14% 1933 2009
Durham School. of Arts** 11.70 304,550 916 916 0.00% 1921 1928,49,55,62,76,

1988, 2008, 2011
Hillside 63.04 299,943 1,535 1,315 -14.33% 1995 2005, 2009
Jordan 55.74 266,477 1,810 1,723 -4.81% 1963 1979,80,91,94,2008,2012
Northern 39.89 258,659 1,790 1,422 -20.56% 1953 1954,55,57,66,75,

1981,83,84,88,
1992, 94

Riverside 63.29 282,845 1,540 1,758 14.16% 1991 1992
Southern 84.09 284,000 1,540 923 -40.06% 1993
J D Clement Early College (1) Leased 350 342 -2.29%
Hospital School (2) Leased 28 32 14.29%
Lakeview (3)* 7.16 28,169 64 64 0.00% 1964 2005, 2010
Middle College High School (4) Leased 100 108 8.00%
Southern School of Engineering(5) 160 222 38.75%
Hillside New Tech High (5) 210 339 61.43%

31,956               
*Lakeview has both middle and high school students
**Durham School of Arts has both middle and high school students.

(1)  J D Clement Early College uses facilities at NC Central University
(2)  Hospital School is located on Duke University's campus
(3)  Lakeview is an alternative school housed in two separate facilities:  Lakewood School & Chewning Middle School (both middle and high school students)
(4)  Middle College High School is located on the campus of Durham Technical Community College
(5)  Southern School of Engineering and Hillside New Tech High School are small schools within existing high schools.

Source:  Durham Public Schools' Long Range Facilities Plan

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHOOL BUILDING DATA-HIGH SCHOOLS

Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Table 16

2012-2013 Percentage Years
Site Building Day 20 Over/(Under) Year Renovations/

Acreage Square Feet Capacity Enrollment Capacity Constructed Additions

Elementary:
Bethesda 43.92 85,432 712 666 -6.46% 1982 1989, 2003
Burton 7.14 71,360 376 369 -1.86% 1949 1954,76,92
Club Boulevard 5.50 45,099 492 511 3.86% 1949 1955,90,92,95,2010,11
Creekside 37.11 94,673 764 873 14.27% 2004 2010
Easley 18.97 71,170 522 548 4.98% 1989
Eastway 14.58 78,000 544 562 3.31% 1995
Eno Valley 62.27 88,550 596 609 2.18% 1977 1993
Fayetteville Street 7.91 62,797 408 286 -29.90% 1959 1960,61,2008
Forest View 21.95 85,890 659 659 0.00% 1993
Glenn 34.28 80,330 591 671 13.54% 1981 1993
Harris 21.36 70,343 376 375 -0.27% 1968 2003, 2013
Hillandale 42.07 85,890 689 632 -8.27% 1993
Holt 23.61 98,208 585 524 -10.43% 1958 1984,92
Hope Valley 16.48 79,228 628 656 4.46% 1967 1999
Lakewood 12.57 60,264 428 455 6.31% 1962 1963,64,2005
Little River 23.23 83,620 658 435 -33.89% 1993
Mangum 22.03 54,838 408 386 -5.39% 1925 1939,62,83,2009
Merrick-Moore 16.39 103,075 648 692 6.79% 1951 1953,58,81.2012
Morehead 4.98 40,861 222 218 -1.80% 1958 \
Oak Grove 15.72 96,061 710 535 -24.65% 1981 1993
Parkwood 22.59 79,063 648 558 -13.89% 1967 1983,89,92,2005
Pearson 40.50 82,474 586 541 -7.68% 2006
Pearsontown 25.50 108,471 836 834 -0.24% 1954 1958,64,92
Powe 5.50 99,384 404 404 0.00% 1926 1950,67,91,94,2001,13
Sandy Ridge 25.07 98,638 628 585 -6.85% 2011
Smith 5.30 46,311 290 356 22.76% 1967
Southwest 21.91 91,170 585 557 -4.79% 1989 1991
Spaulding 9.96 69,486 325 242 -25.54% 1954 1960,76,91,2008
Spring Valley 35.82 79,921 638 535 -16.14% 2008
Watts 3.98 65,841 340 340 0.00% 1919 1926,94

Middle:
Brogden 29.35 156,380 872 680 -22.02% 1959 1976,2000
Carrington 66.14 207,804 1,288 1,243 -3.49% 1964 1984,2005, 10
Chewning 54.96 124,250 852 173 -79.69% 1974 2005,06,2009
Durham School of Arts** 8.80 133,847 722 638 -11.63% 1921 1928,49,55,62,76,88

1990, 92, 2007,08,11
George Watts 65 65 0.00%
Githens 38.28 133,859 852 1,010 18.54% 1988 2005,06
Lakewood Montesorri 7.37 71,278 300 291 -3.00% 1965 2011
Lowe's Grove 28.07 122,504 774 657 -15.12% 1975 2009
Lucas 31.83 153,593 644 374 -41.93% 2012
Neal 49.12 129,403 810 781 -3.58% 1966 1988, 2011
Rogers-Herr 23.50 167,902 644 624 -3.11% 1967 2005
Shepard 22.53 96,870 546 519 -4.95% 1964 1966,2001,2010
WG Pearson Middle 5.92 54,057 306 312 1.96% 1928 1950, 57, 76, 91, 92

2007
Lakeview (1) 4.75 12,600 30 30 0.00% 1964 2005, 2010

31956
**Durham School of Arts has both middle and high school students.
(1)  Lakeview is an alternative school housed in two separate facilities: Lakewood School and Chewning Middle School
It has both middle and high school students.

Source:  Durham Public Schools' Long Range Facilities Plan

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHOOL BUILDING DATA-ELEMENTARY & MIDDLE SCHOOLS

Year Ended June 30, 2013

School
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Table 17

Fiscal Year Student Percentage Pupil/ Student
Ended Average Daily Cost Per Change In Teaching Teacher Attendance

June 30, Expenses Membership Pupil Per Pupil Cost Staff Ratio Percentage

2013  $  376,887,237 32,405 11,631$        1.60% 2,252 14.4 96.60%

2012      372,840,518 32,569 11,448          11.30% 2,241 14.5 96.53%

2011      330,350,894 32,118 10,286          0.81% 2,311 13.9 95.92%

2010 326,038,604     31,956 10,203          -6.27% 2,293 13.9 94.21%

2009 351,715,671     32,313 10,885          5.59% 2,432 13.3 94.28%

2008 337,618,900     32,749 10,309          5.65% 2,368 13.8 94.65%

2007 312,083,118     31,981 9,758            5.42% 2,329 13.7 94.22%

2006 290,125,783     31,343 9,256            0.54% 2,368 13.2 94.44%

2005 279,016,669     30,307 9,206            4.82% 2,134 14.2 94.61%

2004 264,552,220     30,120 8,783            2.70% 2,064 14.6 94.42%

Source:  NC Department of Public Instruction, Student Accounting Section and Finance Department of Durham Public Schools

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
OPERATING STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013
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Table 18

Fiscal Year
Ended

June 30, Minimum Maximum Average

2013 34,650$                     77,917$                     45,057$                     

2012 34,234                       80,854                       46,343                       

2011 34,234                       88,126                       45,031                       

2010 34,234                       88,967                       45,466                       

2009 34,234                       88,967                       45,466                       

2008 33,469                       73,463                       41,062                       

2007 32,074                       70,280                       39,349                       

2006 29,542                       65,723                       38,119                       

2005 28,470                       63,596                       37,522                       

2004 28,280                       63,178                       37,907                       

Source:  Finance Department of Durham Public Schools

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
TEACHER SALARIES

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013

The above tabulation represents total salaries including both State base salary including the State salary
differential for National Board Certification and system-wide local supplement. It does not include
longevity payments (ranging from 1.5% to 4.5% of the annual salary to teachers for 10 or more years of
service), bonus payments, or payments for performing extra duties.
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State
Fiscal Year Public School State

Ended State Public Building Facilities Other County Durham City
June 30, School Fund Bond Fund Fund State Appropriation Appropriation

2013 173,503,774$    102,473$       -$               2,066,466$    116,751,832$     190,928$        

2012 171,045,245      172,946         -                 525,722         110,106,952       234,710          

2011 160,586,816      1,036,766      -                 1,128,798      108,402,189       192,109          

2010 160,894,234      1,063,268      414,500         867,318         103,193,242       1,143,766       

2009 178,493,867      -                 721,100         2,276,939      110,884,121       7,003,740       

2008 177,180,642      -                 2,293,199      1,278,696      98,582,664         470,080          

2007 160,423,279      (16,448)          496,411         1,792,049      89,127,705         -                  

2006 147,973,330      95,749           2,505,601      1,428,478      84,127,705         -                  

2005 140,266,668      391,759         276,302         3,271,116      77,899,932         -                  

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES BY SOURCE

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013(1)

2004 137,464,352      115,566         133,706         2,382,671      75,149,932         -                  

Notes:      (1)

Source:  Durham Public Schools' Finance Department

 Includes General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects and School Activity Funds.  Prior to 2002, School 
Activity Funds were reported as Expendable Trust Funds and therefore not included in Governmental Fund 
expenditures. 



Table 19

General
Obligation Fines and Tuition Other

Bond Funds Forfeitures Interest and Fees Local Funds Federal Total

29,554,012$  1,538,793$    250,925$       3,220,048$    13,000,632$  27,707,997$  367,887,880$      

43,802,250    5,860,947      391,088         3,294,404      16,050,453    33,348,200    384,832,917        

70,906,098    1,014,991      430,131         3,297,708      13,253,373    37,956,350    398,205,329        

13,394,396    945,679         356,937         3,232,580      10,593,755    35,881,228    331,980,903        

16,782,957    847,154         672,429         3,601,908      14,709,092    23,632,816    359,626,123        

11,244,087    1,160,849      1,270,536      3,697,076      11,715,857    22,181,948    331,075,634        

8,156,468      1,386,219      904,655         3,411,378      15,428,932    21,216,755    302,327,403        

10,967,181    1,465,735      509,574         3,545,444      16,147,223    20,092,374    288,858,394        

20,357,320    1,893,486      342,437         3,224,083      12,407,331    19,077,317    279,407,751        
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25,151,543    2,302,134      583,168         2,768,924      11,340,807    15,918,059    273,310,862        
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Fiscal
Year Average

Ended Daily Regular Special Other Pupil Instructional General
June 30, Membership Instructional Instructional Instructional Support Support Administration

4,009                1,486              1,531             130              289                124                     
2013 32,405 129,921,528$   48,148,403$   49,616,044$  4,210,193$  9,379,656$    4,019,049$         

4,084                1,445              1,515             116              248                110                     
2012 32,569           133,016,687     47,048,122     49,334,190    3,766,986    8,069,436      3,586,774           

3,561                1,370              1,558             100              223                106                     
2011 32,118           114,362,660     44,010,448     50,045,606    3,223,542    7,176,724      3,413,113           

3,703                1,356              1,441             123              254                118                     
2010 31,956           118,328,744     43,337,483     46,047,333    3,918,338    8,106,634      3,767,853           

4,117                1,387              1,502             133              225                120                     
2009 32,313           133,019,137     44,832,337     48,524,545    4,302,185    7,254,755      3,875,481           

3,928                1,326              1,424             109              189                113                     
2008 32,749           128,625,270     43,414,525     46,641,394    3,573,050    6,201,595      3,712,956           

2,876                930                 2,332             7                  196                120                     
2007 31,981           91,991,634       29,744,594     74,590,085    217,260       6,276,976      3,842,906           

2,747                896                 2,202             5                  211                127                     
2006 31,343           86,107,196       28,086,343     69,012,523    164,210       6,623,197      3,982,796           

2,879                906                 2,123             10                131                121                     
2005 30,191           86,924,230       27,366,425     64,089,933    288,987       3,945,962      3,666,352           

2,715                894                 1,961             10                90                  116                     
2004 30,615           83,129,735       27,363,902     60,050,404    308,158       2,770,562      3,549,756           

Notes:      (1)

                (2)

Source:  Durham Public Schools' Finance Department

GOVERNMENTAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA

Expenditures per average daily membership.

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013
PER AVERAGE DAILY MEMBERSHIP (1) AND IN TOTAL (2)

Includes General and Special Revenue Funds. Capital Outlay Fund expenditures are reported in Table 3. Prior to
2002, School Activity Funds were reported as Expendable Trust Funds and therefore not included in Governmental
Fund expenditures.



Table 20

Other
School Business Central Support Community

Administration Support Support Services Services Other Total

715                     1,330                189                   -                    134                   445                   10,512              
23,164,416$       43,097,441$     6,125,855$       -$                  4,335,383$       14,420,218$     340,648,379$   

640                     1,346                187                   -                    141                   380                   10,211              
20,832,116         43,849,838       6,079,842         -                    4,600,655         12,378,157       332,562,803     

577                     1,293                167                   -                    124                   376                   9,456                
18,535,184         41,518,413       5,363,214         -                    3,984,105         12,085,088       303,718,097     

604                     1,314                178                   -                    117                   356                   9,563                
19,303,708         42,002,968       5,688,515         -                    3,725,081         11,366,345       305,593,002     

634                     1,320                188                   -                    128                   288                   10,042              
20,475,219         42,659,661       6,086,157         -                    4,129,830         9,314,233         324,473,540     

614                     1,275                197                   -                    121                   253                   9,550                
20,107,184         41,767,952       6,460,469         -                    3,960,838         8,291,224         312,756,457     

451                     1,147                179                   454                   122                   225                   9,040                
14,421,428         36,692,716       5,718,173         14,517,565       3,906,701         7,187,502         289,107,540     

437                     1,093                167                   433                   133                   183                   8,635                
13,704,933         34,267,017       5,243,790         13,569,908       4,165,813         5,722,840         270,650,566     

444                     1,048                157                   394                   132                   173                   8,516                
13,393,876         31,628,615       4,736,101         11,882,832       3,974,213         5,222,652         257,120,178     

419                     985                   123                   366                   120                   150                   7,950                
12,841,539         30,148,405       3,750,672         11,199,475       3,684,090         4,600,068         243,396,766     
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Table 21

Fiscal Year Sites and Furniture
Ended Building and

June 30, Improvements Equipment Vehicles Total

2013  $       22,796,337  $       13,267,264  $            163,361 36,226,962$       

2012           40,678,771             5,312,686                279,022 46,270,479         

2011           71,314,915                861,678             2,098,021 74,274,614         

2010           17,161,520             1,032,913                197,190 18,391,623         

2009 31,950,516         569,565              1,122,354           33,642,435         

2008 16,679,140         298,982              225,490              17,203,612         

2007 9,442,821           578,358              2,095,024           12,116,203         

2006 15,841,436         210,183              377,589              16,429,208         

2005 21,238,748         2,705,920           1,761,427           25,706,095         

2004 26,383,434         993,611              1,324,521           28,701,566         

Source:  Durham Public Schools' Finance Department

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND EXPENDITURES

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013
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Fiscal Year Salaries
Ended Purchased Donated and

June 30, Food Commodities Benefits

2013 5,072,231$            730,231$               7,347,414$            

2012 4,609,755              856,145                 6,648,054              

2011 4,480,572              617,629                 6,206,286              

2010 4,617,991              651,865                 5,970,717              

2009 4,859,146              733,192                 5,926,945              

2008 4,228,105              607,096                 5,778,290              

2007 3,809,407              625,432                 5,250,973              

2006 3,485,107              541,898                 4,885,860              

2005 3,383,779              477,050                 4,707,808              

2004 3,537,172              528,378                 4,670,692              

Source:  Durham Public Schools' Finance Department

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE FUND EXPENSES

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013



Table 22

Materials
and Indirect

Supplies Costs Other Total

521,678$               763,708$               423,461$               14,858,723$          

933,492                 815,624                 288,557                 14,151,627            

540,571                 866,646                 269,803                 12,981,507            

469,627                 832,878                 319,134                 12,862,212            

548,266                 1,005,171              313,346                 13,386,066            

484,904                 685,756                 348,799                 12,132,950            

485,404                 833,452                 560,430                 11,565,098            

481,500                 760,488                 459,564                 10,614,417            

344,986                 694,591                 323,659                 9,931,873              

403,115                 635,251                 336,015                 10,110,623            
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Fiscal Year
Ended

June 30, Amount Percent Amount Percent

2013 2,308,001$   15.7% 11,537,008$ 78.5%

2012 2,712,070     19.0% 10,746,241   75.5%

2011 2,955,052     20.8% 10,382,931   73.2%

2010 3,307,918     24.2% 9,546,103     69.7%

2009 3,628,656     27.0% 9,162,082     68.1%

2008 3,336,431     28.4% 7,673,178     65.1%

2007 3,552,393     31.5% 7,022,026     62.3%

2006 3,736,771     34.5% 6,474,298     59.8%

2005 3,726,781     36.5% 5,953,179     58.4%

2004 3,990,401     39.4% 5,539,649     54.6%

Source:  Durham Public Schools' Finance Department

Food Sales Reimbursement
USDA

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE REVENUES AND OPERATING TRANSFERS IN BY SOURCES

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013



Table 23

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

811,715$      5.5% 37,244$        0.3% 14,693,968$ 100.0%

739,882        5.2% 39,754          0.3% 14,237,947   100.0%

813,104        5.7% 35,382          0.3% 14,186,469   100.0%

795,410        5.8% 44,355          0.3% 13,693,786   100.0%

621,914        4.6% 40,501          0.3% 13,453,153   100.0%

681,161        5.8% 87,579          0.7% 11,778,349   100.0%

592,427        5.3% 105,622        0.9% 11,272,468   100.0%

527,929        4.9% 82,742          0.8% 10,821,740   100.0%

477,050        4.7% 40,122          0.4% 10,197,132   100.0%

572,018        5.6% 39,849          0.4% 10,141,917   100.0%

Donated
Commodities Other Total
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Table 24

Building
Value of Assessed

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Permits Issued (1) Valuation (2)

2013 912,531,665$            30,446,750,204$       

2012 782,358,521              29,842,363,341         

2011 918,447,009              29,460,598,354         

2010 854,185,593              29,032,891,346         

2009 832,707,556              28,540,855,952         

2008 937,163,464              23,136,584,132         

2007 908,064,082              22,035,372,939         

2006 833,845,052              21,280,715,939         

2005 897,110,133              20,601,509,290         

2004 700,759,078              20,071,879,031         

(1)   Source:  City of Durham/Durham County Inspections Department
 
(2)   Last revalutaion of taxable property occurred on January 1, 2008

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
PROPERTY VALUE AND CONSTRUCTION

FOR DURHAM COUNTY
Last Ten Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2013
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Table 25

Area: Durham County 299             square miles

Population: Durham County 277,588     

Average Daily Membership: 32,405       

Schools: Elementary 30              
Middle 11              
Secondary 2                
Senior/High 9                
Hospital School 1                
Alternative 3                

School Personnel (approximate): 4,604         

Sources:  Durham County CAFR, Durham Public Schools' Finance Department

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

Year Ended June 30, 2013
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COMPLIANCE SECTION



 

 

 
 

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance 
And Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed 

In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

 
 
 

To the Durham Public Schools Board  
of Education, North Carolina 

Durham, North Carolina 
 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Durham Public 
Schools Board of Education, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North 
Carolina’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 18, 2013. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Durham Public Schools Board 
of Education, North Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Durham Public Schools 
Board of Education, North Carolina’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as finding 2013-1, which we consider to be a significant deficiency. 

Compliance and Other Matters  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North 
Carolina’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as finding 2013-1.  

Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s Response to Findings 

The Durham Public Schools Board of Education’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in 
the accompany schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North 
Carolina’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

 
Rives & Associates, LLP 
 
Lexington, North Carolina 
November 18, 2013 
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Report On Compliance For Each Major Federal Program; Report On  
Internal Control Over Compliance; In Accordance With OMB  

Circular A-133; And The State Single Audit Implementation Act 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

 
 
 

To the Durham Public Schools Board  
of Education, North Carolina 

Durham, North Carolina 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual 
for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.  The Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North 
Carolina’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Durham Public Schools Board of 
Education, North Carolina’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those 
standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North 
Carolina’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. 
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Durham Public Schools Board of 
Education, North Carolina’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina complied, in all material respects, 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to. 
In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Durham Public Schools Board of 
Education, North Carolina’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s 
internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified.  

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
Rives & Associates, LLP 
 
Lexington, North Carolina 
November 18, 2013 
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Report On Compliance For Each Major State Program; Report On 
Internal Control Over Compliance; In Accordance With OMB  

Circular A-133; And The State Single Audit Implementation Act 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

 
 

To the Durham Public Schools Board  
of Education, North Carolina 

Durham, North Carolina 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 

We have audited the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s compliance, with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by 
the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Durham Public 
Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.  The 
Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s major State programs are identified in the summary 
of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its State programs. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Durham Public Schools Board of 
Education, North Carolina’s major State programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in and applicable 
sections of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, as 
described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major State 
program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Durham Public Schools 
Board of Education, North Carolina’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major State 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Durham Public Schools Board of 
Education, North Carolina’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major State Program 

In our opinion, the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina complied, in all material respects, 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to. 
In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Durham Public Schools Board of 
Education, North Carolina’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major State program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major State program and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina’s internal 
control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance.   

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified.  

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
Rives & Associates, LLP 
 
Lexington, North Carolina 
November 18, 2013 
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Schedule 10

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified? yes X no

Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? X yes none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted yes X no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weaknesses identified? yes X no

Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for 
major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of 
Circular A-133? yes X no

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Names of Federal Program or Cluster

Title I, Part A Cluster:
84.010 Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies (Title I, Part A of ESEA)

Special Education Cluster:
84.027 Grants to the States (IDEA, Part B) - Education of the Handicapped
84.173 Preschool Grants (IDEA Preschool) - Preschool Handicapped
84.027 Special Education - Coordinated Early Intervening Services
84.027 Children with Disabilities - Risk Pool
84.027 Special Needs Targeted Assistance

School Improvement Cluster:
84.010 Title I, Grants to Local Educational Agencies, 

   (Title I, Part A of ESEA) - School Improvements
84.377 Title I, School Improvement Grants
84.389 ARRA - Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Recovery Act

84.048 Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States

84.410 ARRA-Education Jobs Fund

84.395 ARRA-Race to the Top Grant

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS
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Schedule 10
(Continued)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type
A and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no

State Awards

Internal control over major State programs:

Material weaknesses identified? yes X no

Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
 major State programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in  accordance with the State Single
Audit Implementation Act? yes X no

Identification of major State programs:

State Public School Fund

Vocational Education:
   State Months of Employment
   Program Support Funds

Textbooks

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS (Continued)

Program Name

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

1,212,043$            

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Schedule 10
(Continued)

Finding 2013-1  Internal control weakness over credit cards

Significant Deficiency

Criteria:

Condition:

Effect:

Recommendation:

None reported.

None reported.

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

We recommend that the Board implement policies and procedures to ensure the internal controls
over credit cards are followed and only allowable costs are charged to the school system.

The Board's system of internal controls should include procedures necessary to ensure school funds 
are not used for personal expenses.

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Internal controls over credit cards were not properly followed to ensure items of a personal nature
are billed to the individual and not paid for with school funding. Proper receipts and
documentation was not maintained and local funding was used to pay for personal items charged to
the Board's credit card.  The dollar value of the personal items was immaterial.

Local funding was used to pay for personal expenses.
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Schedule 11

Finding 2012-1

Description: 

Status:   Corrected.

Finding 2012-2

Description: 

Status:   Corrected.

The Board filled vacant positions associated with Education Jobs funding without posting the
open positions with the Employment Security Commission.

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Capital assets of the Board were not properly depreciated requiring the Board to restate
previously issued financial statements.
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Schedule 12

Finding 2013-1

Name of contact person: Paul LeSieur - Interim Chief Financial Officer

Corrective action: 

Proposed completion date: Immediately

None reported.

None reported.

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Corrective Action Plan

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

The use of credit cards will be terminated until policies and procedures
for their use can be redefined and implemented by the Board.
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Schedule 13

State/Pass-
 Federal Through

CFDA Grantor's
Number Number Expenditures

Federal Grants:

U. S. Department of Agriculture
Child Nutrition Cluster:
  Passed through the U.S. Department of Agriculture:

Non-Cash Assistance (Commodities):
National School Lunch Program 10.555 811,715$          

Cash Assistance:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 2,504,816         
National School Lunch Program 10.555 8,539,274         

Passed through the N. C. Department of Health and Human Services:
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 492,918            

Total Cash Assistance 11,537,008       

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 12,348,723       

U.S. Department of Education:
Direct programs:

Carol White Physical Grant 84.215F 332 60                     
Fund for the Improvement of Education - Teaching American History 84.215 340 20                     
History Link 146,546            
Job Creation Grant 26,700              

173,326            

Passed through the N. C. Department of Public Instruction:
Special Education Cluster:

Special Education - Grants to the States (IDEA, Part B) -
Education of the Handicapped 84.027 PRC 060 8,299,890         

Special Education - Preschool Grants (IDEA Preschool) -
Preschool Handicapped 84.173 PRC 049 197,964            

Special Education - Coordinated Early Intervening Services 84.027 PRC 070 699,668            
Children With Disabilities - Risk Pool 84.027 PRC 114 237,730            
Special Needs Targeted Assistance 84.027 PRC 118 33,142              

Total Special Education Cluster 9,468,394         

Title I, Part A Cluster:
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies (Title I,

Part A of ESEA) 84.010 PRC 050 8,542,629         

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  

Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
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Schedule 13
(Continued)

State/Pass-
 Federal Through

CFDA Grantor's
Number Number Expenditures

Federal Grants (Continued):

U.S. Department of Education (Continued):
Passed through the N. C. Department of Public Instruction (Continued):

School Improvement Cluster:
Title I, Grants to Local Educational Agencies, (Title I, 

Part A of ESEA) - School Improvements 84.010 PRC 105 1,587,067$       
Title I, School Improvement Grants 84.377 PRC 117 2,471,780         
ARRA-Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Recovery Act 84.389 PRC143 552,123            

Total School Improvement Cluster 4,610,970         

Education for Homeless Children and Youth Cluster:
Education for Homeless Children and Youth 84.196 PRC 026 39,945              

Education Technology State Grants Cluster:
ARRA-Education Technology State Grants (Enhancing

Education through Technology Program) 84.386 PRC 146 90                     

Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 PRC 017 451,355            
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities, Title IV, Part A 84.186 PRC 048 2,109                
Special Education-State Personnel Development Grant 84.323 PRC 082 9,024                
Improving Teacher Quality 84.367 PRC 103 1,441,258         
English Language Acquisitions Grant 84.365 PRC 104 490,253            
21st Century - Community Learning Centers 84.287 PRC 110 151,815            
Math and Science Partnerships 84.366 PRC 112 202,314            
ARRA-Education Jobs Fund 84.410 PRC 155 473,152            
ARRA-Race to the Top Grant 84.395 PRC 156 1,300,098         
ARRA-RttT-Recruitment Incentives-Low Achieving Schools 84.395 PRC 158 408,463            
ARRA-RttT-STEM 84.395 PRC 159 116,128            

Total U.S. Department of Education 27,881,323       

U.S. Department of Defense:
Direct program:

ROTC NONE 171,403            

Total federal awards 40,401,449       

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA

Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  
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Schedule 13
(Continued)

State/Pass-
 Federal Through

CFDA Grantor's
Number Number Expenditures

State Grants:

Cash Assistance:
North Carolina Department of Public Instruction:

State Public School Fund 164,408,404$   
Driver Training - SPSF 12 644,921            
Vocational Education

State Months of Employment 13 7,522,686         
Program Support Funds 14 609,353            

School Technology Fund - SPSF 15 119,567            
Dropout Prevention Grant 1,398                
State breakfast reimbursement 25,004              

Total North Carolina Department of Public Instruction 173,331,333     

Office of the Governor:
Passed through Durham County:

Public School Building Capital Fund 74 102,473            

Total cash assistance 173,433,806     

Non-Cash Assistance:
North Carolina Department of Public Instruction:

Textbooks 130 198,843            
State Buses Appropriations 2,066,466         

Total non-cash assistance 2,265,309         

Total State awards 175,699,115     

Total federal and State awards 216,100,564$  

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards:

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards includes the federal and State grant
activity of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education, North Carolina and is presented on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013  

Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title
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BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Education of the Durham Public Schools administrative Unit:

Section 1:

5000 Instructional Services 70,060,276.00$                   
6000 System Wide Support Services 47,054,421.00$                   
7000 Ancillary Services 1,258,758.00$                     
8000 Non-Programmed Services 14,903,136.00$                   

Total Current Local Expense Appropriations: 133,276,591.00$                 

Section 2:

County Appropriations- Current Expense 117,818,481.00$                 
County Appropriations- City Revenue for Holton 190,927.00$                        
Local Revenue- Unrestricted 1,755,000.00$                     
Local Revenue- Special/Restricted 6,056,208.00$                     
Fund Balance Appropriated 7,455,975.00$                     

Total Current Local Expense Revenues: 133,276,591.00$                 

Section 3:

5000 Instructional Services 159,549,431.00$                 
6000 System Wide Support Services 17,844,280.00$                   
7000 Ancillary Services 133,256.00$                        

Total State Public School Fund Programs: 177,526,967.00$                 

Section 4:

State Public School Fund Allocation 173,262,884.00$                 
State Unbudgeted Funds 2,218,326.00$                     
State Textbook Allotment 2,045,757.00$                     

Total State Public School Fund Revenues: 177,526,967.00$                 

Section 5:

5000 Instructional Services 23,373,573.23$                   
6000 System Wide Support Services 1,324,111.05$                     
8000 Non-Programmed Services 2,167,643.59$                     

Total Federal Grant Fund Appropriations: 26,865,327.87$                   

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS
2013-14 BUDGET RESOLUTION

The following amounts are hereby appropriated for the operation of the Durham Public Schools
administrative unit in the Local Current Expense Fund for the fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2013 and
ending June 30, 2014:

The following revenues are estimated to be available to the Local Current Expense Fund for the
fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014:

The following amounts are hereby appropriated for the operation of the Durham Public Schools
administrative unit in the State Public School Fund for the fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2013 and
ending June 30, 2014:

The following revenues are estimated to be available to the State Public School Fund for the fiscal
Year beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014:

The following amounts are hereby appropriated for the operation of the Durham Public Schools
administrative unit in Federal Grants for the fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30,
2014:



BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Education of the Durham Public Schools administrative Unit:

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS
2013-14 BUDGET RESOLUTION

Section 6:

Federal Grants Fund Revenues 26,865,327.87$                   

Total Federal Grants Fund Revenues: 26,865,327.87$                   

Section 7:

7000 Ancillary Services (Child Nutrition) 14,297,169.00$                   
8000 Non-Programmed Charges 888,847.00$                        

Total Child Nutrition Fund Appropriations: 15,186,016.00$                   

Section 8:

State Funds 20,440.00$                          
Federal Funds 11,436,918.00$                   
Local Funds 3,303,658.00$                     
Fund Balance Appropriated 425,000.00$                        

Total Child Nutrition Revenues: 15,186,016.00$                   

Section 9:

5000 Instructional Services 2,012,024.66$                     
6000 System Wide Support Services 60,604.86$                          
7000 Ancillary Services 3,077,154.45$                     
8000 Non-Programmed Services 1,737,022.34$                     

Total Grant Expense Appropriations: 6,886,806.31$                     

Section 10:

State Revenues 11,154.95$                          
Federal Revenues 444,876.38$                        
Local Revenue- Tuition and Fees 3,778,212.12$                     
Local Revenue- Unrestricted 70,279.75$                          
Local Revenue- Restricted 2,582,283.11$                     

Total Grant Fund Revenues: 6,886,806.31$                     

The following revenues are estimated to be available to the Grant Fund for the fiscal Year beginning
July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014:

The following revenues are estimated to be available to the Federal Grants Fund for the fiscal Year
beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014:

The following amounts are hereby appropriated for the operation of the Durham Public Schools
administrative unit in the Child Nutrition Fund for the fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2013 and ending
June 30, 2014:

The following revenues are estimated to be available to the Child Nutrition Fund for the fiscal Year
beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014:

The following amounts are hereby appropriated for the operation of the Durham Public Schools
administrative unit in the Grant Fund for the fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30,
2014:



BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Education of the Durham Public Schools administrative Unit:

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS
2013-14 BUDGET RESOLUTION

Section 11:

5000 Instructional Services 6,570,830.23$                     
6000 System Wide Support Services 1,760,367.85$                     
8000 Non-Programmed Services 843,051.55$                        
9000 Capital Outlay 43,969,503.98$                   

Total Capital Appropriations: 53,143,753.61$                   

Section 12:

State Replacement School Bus 833,791.00$                        
County Appropriation 1,370,000.00$                     
State Lottery Funds 1,126,927.00$                     
State Bond Proceeds 2,369,768.43$                     
Local Bond Proceeds 44,774,436.43$                   
Miscellaneous 1,526,880.79$                     
Fund Balance Appropriated 1,141,949.96$                     

Total Capital Fund Revenues: 53,143,753.61$                   

Section 13:

Section 14:

Section 15:

Adopted this day of , 2013.

Secretary Chairman

The following amounts are hereby appropriated for the operation of the Durham Public Schools
administrative unit in the Capital Fund for the fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June
30, 2014:

The following revenues are estimated to be available to the Capital Outlay Fund for the fiscal Year
beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014:

All appropriations shall be paid firstly from revenues restricted as to use, and secondly from general
unrestricted revenues.

The Superintendent is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within a fund under the following
conditions. The Superintendent may transfer amounts between sub-functions and objects or
expenditures within a function and between Capital Outlay Categories.

Copies of the Budget Resolution shall be immediately furnished to the Superintendent and Chief
Finance Officer for direction in carrying out their duties.



Durham Public Schools
Local Fund Balance by Category
Fiscal Year 2012-13

LOCAL FUND BALANCE FY 2012-13
Total

1 Non-spendable 1,387,010.00          
2 Restricted 686,153.00              
3 Committed 7,455,975.00          
4 Assigned 3,385,031.00          
5 Unassigned (Savings Account) 19,747,754.00        

Total Fund Balance 32,661,923.00        

1. Non-spendable Fund Balance

Inventory 172,092.00              
Prepaid Expenses 1,214,918.00          

Total Non-spendable Fund Balance 1,387,010.00          

2. Restricted Fund Balance

Accounts Receivable 686,153.00              

Total Restricted Fund Balance 686,153.00              

3. Committed Fund Balance

Teacher and Staff 7,455,975.00          

Total Committed Fund Balance 7,455,975.00          

4. Assignment Fund Balance

Self-insurance 3,385,031.00          

Total Assigned Fund Balance 3,385,031.00          
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Durham Public Schools
Local Fund Balance
Unassigned / Committed-Assigned Fund Balance
Prior Fiscal Years

Year
Unassigned Fund 

Balance
Committed  / Assigned 

Fund Balance

2006-07 2,854,518.00              6,221,672.00                       
2007-08 4,125,689.00              5,108,664.00                       
2008-09 805,634.00                 8,580,908.00                       
2009-10 2,812,309.00              7,927,319.00                       
2010-11 13,638,468.00           15,982,383.00                     
2011-12 9,395,228.00              20,386,456.00                     
2012-13 19,747,754.00           12,914,169.00                     

7 Yr Average 7,625,657.14             11,017,367.29                    

Local County Appropriations 117,818,481.00                  
Appropriations per Month 9,818,206.75                       
Unassigned Fund Balance 19,747,754.00                     

Months in Fund Balance 2.01                                      
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Tenure Law: Teacher Contracts

2013‐2014
Office of Human Resource Services

Durham Public Schools

1



2

Changes in Tenure Law

SB 402: Session Law 360 9.6(g)
• No career contracts awarded this year
• Identify 25% of teachers employed for at 

least 3 years in DPS; award 4‐year 
contracts 2014‐15

• If career, must agree to relinquish
• $500 added to teacher’s base salary each 

year of contract



Changes in Tenure Law
2018‐2019

• No career status for anyone

• 3 types of contracts: 1‐year, 2‐year & 4‐year

• Salary implications not spelled out (ex. if move 
to another district after four years)

3



Implementing Changes in Tenure Law

2013‐2014       Choosing DPS’ 25%

1) Identify eligible  teachers (3 years or more): 
1422; 25% of 1422= 355.5; 355 four‐year 
contracts can be offered for 2014‐15 (must 
round down).

2) Identify eligible staff at each school; compute 
25%. 

4



Implementing Changes in Tenure Law
3) Identify eligible instructional support personnel; sort 
by category; compute 25%.   

25% counselors; 25% psychologists; 25% SLP; 25% social 
workers; 25% media specialists; 25% technology 
facilitators; 25% content specialists; 25% area facilitator; 
25% instructional facilitators; 25% CD counselors/special 
pops coordinator; 25% licensed coordinators, etc.

4) Survey DPS staff regarding the proposed methodology 
and their interest in accepting the four‐year contract if 
offered.

5



Implementing Changes in Tenure Law
5) Review evaluations of eligible staff (3 years or more) and 
eliminate staff who are not proficient on any standard. If 
narrative evaluations or no evaluations are available a 
committee of 3: HR Administrator, TOY and POY will use a  point 
system and determine proficiency and numerical ratings.

6) Assign numerical value to standards included in the teacher 
summary rating form: Not Demonstrated‐0; Developing‐1; 
Proficient‐2; Accomplished‐3; Distinguished‐4 for past two years 
(2011‐12 & 2012‐13); divide total by number of ratings; sort 
highest to lowest.

6



Implementing Changes in Tenure Law
Example A:

7

2011‐12 Standard 1 Standard 2 Standard 3 Standard 4 Standard 5 Total

2 3 2 3 3 13

2012‐13 3 2 2 3 3 13

26/10=2.6

2011‐12 Standard 1 Standard 2 Standard 3 Standard 4 Standard 5 Total

2 2

2012‐13 2 3 9/4=2.25



Implementing Changes in Tenure Law
7) Identify staff with highest ratings that fall 
within the 25% who are eligible for the four‐year 
contracts.

8) If there is a tie, apply numerical value to 
elements under each standard.

8



Implementing Changes in Tenure Law
9) Apply the same principle for computing a numerical value 
for instructional support staff and determine eligibility for 
four‐year contract.  If there is a tie and the evaluations do not 
have rated elements, seniority will be used.  

10) If evaluations are not available, the following criteria will 
be used: educational leadership in school/district/community; 
attendance; seniority, discipline/reprimands; advanced 
degrees; multiple certifications, national board certified; 
school/district recognitions/awards. If there is a tie and the 
evaluations do not have rated elements, seniority will be 
used.  

9



Implementing Changes in Tenure Law
11) Compile 25% list and submit to the BOE for approval.

12) Offer contracts to eligible 25% staff; staff must accept or reject offer. 
• Career status teachers who are not offered four‐year contracts in June 

2014 or reject a four‐year contract will retain career status under the 
existing law until July 1, 2018.

• Non‐career status teachers who did not attain career status prior to 2013‐
14 and are not chosen for four‐year contracts in June 2014 are only 
eligible to receive one year contracts until July 1, 2018, and are subject to 
new teacher employment provisions.
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Implementing Changes in Tenure Law
$5000??

Example: 2013‐14 teacher’s base pay for 10 years= $35,800
Teacher is offered and accepts four‐year contract
• 2014‐15‐ base pay + $500     $35,800 + $500 =   $36,300        
• 2015‐16‐ base pay + $1000   $35,800 + $1000 = $36,800
• 2016‐17‐ base pay + $1500   $35,800 + $1500 = $37,300
• 2017‐18‐ base pay + $2000   $35,800 + $2000 = $37,800

Total $5000
Actual raise to salary at the end of 4 years is $2000; $500 
each year ($500 X 4=$2000)
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Implementing Changes in Tenure Law
Feedback from Superintendent’s Teacher Advisory Council, Durham 

Association of Educators, and Principals

• Concerned about making commitment to relinquish tenure and the 
money not being available

• Lots of concern about the repeal of tenure and the 25% legislation
• Add advanced degrees, multiple certifications, recognitions/awards 

and educational community leadership to the criteria for identifying 
eligible staff with no evaluations or narratives

• Add to survey a question regarding receiving supplement monthly
• In light of the decisions by the general assembly, what is DPS going 

to do to retain good teachers?
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Implementing Changes in Tenure Law

DISCUSSION
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                                                                      Date:   December 19, 2013 

Durham Public Schools 
Board of Education 

PRECIS 

Agenda Item:   Teacher Tenure – Board Resolution 
 

Staff Liaison Present: Heidi Carter, Chair   Phone # 919-560-2502 
      

 

 
Main Points: 
 
The Board Chair submits the attached Resolution regarding changes to teacher employment law. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Fiscal Implications: 
 
 
Strategic Plan Alignment: 

 
 
 
 
 
Purpose    

Information    Discussion    Action    Consent    

Reviewed by:  Finance __________      Attorney __________ 

 
 



RESOLUTION BEFORE THE 
DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGARDING CHANGES TO TEACHER EMPLOYMENT LAW 
 

WHEREAS, the Appropriations Act of 2013 (SL 2013 36, SB 402, Sec. 9.6), includes  
legislation that requires school boards to offer four-year contracts and bonuses to 25 percent of 
its teachers (”25 percent contract”); and 
 
WHEREAS, school districts are finding it difficult to select a method of determining who 
qualifies for the four-year contract offer; and 
 
WHEREAS, school boards value their teachers and believe them to be deserving of adequate 
and equitable compensation; and 
 
WHEREAS, teachers have received only a 1.12 percent state salary increase once out of the past 
five years, resulting in a greater need by school districts to increase recruitment and retention of 
teachers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Appropriations Act of 2013 cut funding for classroom teachers, teacher 
assistants, textbooks, instructional materials, and limited English proficiency, while continuing 
the elimination of funding for mentor pay and professional development. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Durham Public Schools Board of 
Education requests that the General Assembly allow it to retain its prorated share of the $10 
Million Dollars allocated for the 25 percent contract to be used for alternative pay or 
compensation for additional duties such as mentoring or leadership roles; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER that the Durham Public Schools Board 
of Education urges the North Carolina General Assembly to repeal the 25 percent contract and 
develop a more effective long-term compensation plan for teachers tied to career paths with input 
from the education and business community. 
  

This the 19th  day of December, 2013 
 
 
__________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Heidi Carter, Chair     Minnie Forte-Brown, Vice Chair 
 
 
__________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Natalie Beyer      Nancy Cox 
 
 
__________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Fredrick Davis      Leigh Bordley 
 
 
__________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Omega Parker      Dr. Eric J. Becoats, Superintendent    
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